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Corporate name of overseas company

Corporate name @

SAIl LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED -

Do you propose to carry on business in the UK under the corporate name as
incorporated in your home state or country, or under an alternative name?

% To register using your corporate name, go to Section A3.
+ To register using an alternative name, go to Section A2.

- Filling in this form
Please complete in typescript {10pt
or above), or in beld black capitals

All fields are mandatory unless
specified or indicated by *

O This must be the corporate name in
the home state or country in which
the company is incorporated.

Alternative name of overseas company *

Please show the alternative name that the company will use to do business
in the UK.

Alternative name
(if applicable) @

@ A company may register an
alternative name undey which it
proposes to carry on business in the
United Kingdom under Section 1048
of the Companies Act 2006, Once
registered it is treated as being its
corporate name for the purposes of
law in the UK.

Overseas company name restrictions®

This section does not apply to a European Economic Area (EEA} company
registering its corporate name.

Please tick the box only if the proposed company name contains sensitive or
restricted words or expressions that require you to seek comments of a
government department or other specified body.

{3 | confirm that the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted
words or expressions and that approval, where appropriate, has been
sought of a government department or other specified body and | attach a
copy of their response.

© Overseas company name
restrictions

or expressions that require consent
can be found in guidance available
on our website:
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

A list of sensitive or restricted words

|

10/15 Version 6.0



0S INOT

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 2 Overseas company details

m Particulars previously delivered

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK establishment. @

4+ No Goto Section B2.

+ Yes Please enter the registration number below and then go to Part 5
of the form. Please note the original UK establishment particulars
must be filed up to date.

UK establishment B ITr‘ | I—_| | |

registration number

@ The particulars are: legal form,
identity of register, number in
registration, director and secretaries
details, whether the company is
a eredit or financial institution,
law, governing law, accounting
requirements, ubjects, share capital,
censtitution, and accounts.

E Credit or financial institution
Is the company a credit or financial institution?@ @ Please tick one box.
[ Yes
No
Company details
If the company is registered in its country of incorporation, please enter the © Please state whether or not the
details below. company is limited. Please also
include whether the company is
Legal form ® PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES - 2 priate of public company if
applicable.
Country Of. . INDIA - @ This will be the registry where the
Incorporation company is registered in its parent
country.

Identity of register | INDIA
in which it is

registered @

|
Registration number in ’_D-FI_O-I?Fliolil_—lil_ P

that register

m EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

%+ Yes Complete Sections BS and B6.
4 No Go to Section B6.

E Governing law and accounting requirements

Please give the law under which the company is incorporated.

Governing law® INDIA 4

Is the company required to prepare, audit and disclose accounting documents
under parent law?

4Yes Complete the details below.
+No GotoPart 3.

O This means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
incorporation of companies in that
state.
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Please give the period for which the company is required to prepare accounts by
parent law.

From b 1 "0 |"4 -

To d 3 d 1 m0 m3 .
Please give the period allowed for the preparation and public disclosure of
accounts for the above accounting period.

Months ’T| 6 B

Latest disclosed accounts

Are copies of the |atest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please
note if accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if
applicable, with a certified translation.®

Yes.
Please indicate what documents have been disclosed.
Please tick this box if you have enclosed a copy of the accounts.

[ Please tick this box if you have enclosed a certified translation of the
accounts.

1 Please tick this box if no accounts have been disclosed.

O Please tick the appropriate box(es).
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Part 3

Constitution

Constitution of company

The following documents must be delivered with this application.
- Certified copy of the company’s constitution and, if applicable, a certified
translation,

Please tick the appropriate box(es) below.
I have enclosed a certified copy of the company's constitution. @
[J !enclose a certified translation, if applicable. ®

O A certified copy is defined as
a copy certified as correct and
authenticated by - the secretary or 2
director of the company, permanent
representative, administrator,
administrative receiver, receiver
manager, receiver and fiquidator,

O A certified translation into English
must be authenticated by the
secretary or a director of the
company, permanent representative,
administrator, administrative
receiver, receiver manager, receiver
and liquidator.

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

+ Yes Goto Section C3.
<+ No Go to Part 4 'Officers of the company'.

Constitutional documents

Avre all of the following details in the copy of the constitutional documents of the

company?

- Address of principal place of business or registered office in home country
of incorporation

- Objects of the Company

- Amount of issued share capital

+ Yes  Go to Part 4 ‘Officers of the company’
¥ No  If any of the above details are not included in the constitutional
documents, please enter them in Section C4.
The information is not required if it is contained within the constitutional
documents accompanying this registration.

Information not included in the constitutional documents

Please give the address of principal place of business or registered office in the
country of incorporation.®

Building namefnumber

Office # L4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133

Street |Gachibowli Miyapur Road, Gachibowli
Post town Hyderabad
County/Region r
Postcode 5 ’T’TITI?I?F_I_
Country India
Please give the objects of the company and the amount of issued share capital.
Objects of the |
company ©

Amount of issued
share capital®

[

© This address will appear on tha
public record.

O Please give a brief description of the
company's business.

@ Please specify the amount of shares
tssued and the value,
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Part 4

Officers of the company

Have particulars about this company been previously defivered in respect of
another UK establishment?

4 Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section B1
and then go to Part 5 of this form.
% No Complete the officer details.

For a secretary who is an individual, go to Section D1; for a corporate secretary,
go to Section E1; for a director who is an individual, go to Section F1; or for a

Secretary

corporate director, go to Section G1.

Continuation pages

Please use a continuation page
if you need to enter more officer
details.

Secretary details®

Use this section to list all the secretaries of the company.
Please complete Sections D1-D3. For a corporate secretary, complete
Sections E1-E5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s)

RUNA c

Surname

KARAN

2

Former name(s)@

O Corporate details
Please use Sections E1-E5 to enter
comporate secretary details.

Former name(s)

Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names}
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

02|

Secretary’s service address®

Building lr‘a”“”‘“”""'b“-'fJOf‘ﬁce #L4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133 .

O Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street I Gachibowli Miyapur Road, Gachibowli / on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
r address.
Post town | Hyderabad If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
County/Region | public record.
Postcode |500|0|3 2| ‘
Country |India
Secretary's authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as secretary. Please tick one box. @ 1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority . provide a brief description of the
[0 Limited ©® limited autherity in the box below.
Unlimited @If you have indicated that you are

Description of limited

authority, if applicable

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
[0 Jointly® ¢

If applicable, hamel(s) |

of person(s) with
whom you are [

acting jointly

not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person{s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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ary

Corporate secretary details©

Use this section to list all the corporate secretaries of the company.
Please complete Sections E1-E5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.

Name of corporate

body or firm |

Building name/number

Street |

Post town

County/Region

Postcode |

HEEEEEEN

Country |

O Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents. It cannot be
a PO box number {unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number.

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section E3 only
+ No Complete Section E4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept {including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register.

Where the company/
firm is registered ©

Registration number

O EEA
A full list of countries of the EEA can
be found in our guidance:
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

@ This is the register mentioned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC).

Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by
which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
it is entered {including the state) and its registration number in that register.

Legal form of the

corporate body
or firm

Governing law

If applicable, where

registered @

If applicable, the
registration number

|

|

I
the company/firm is

|

O Non-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register {including state} where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register
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Corporate secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate secretary. O If you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box. of your authority is limited, please
. provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority O Limited ® limited authority in the box below.
. @ if you have indicated that you are
O Unlimited not authorised to act atone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of limited the person(s) with whom you are
authority‘ |f applicable authorised to act below.

| Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box,

O Alone
O Jointly @

If applicable, name(s) |
of person(s) with
whom you are |
acting jointly
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Director

Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s} Ranga Raju .

Surname Kanumuri -

Former name(s} @

Country/State of India .

residence ©

Nationality l Indian

Month/year of birth @ Wﬁ— WEEW (

Business occupation |

(if any) @ ’—

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
coperate director details.

@ Former name(s)

Please provide any previous names
{including maiden or married names}
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years,

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F5.

©Month and year of birth
Please provide menth and year only.
Provide full date of birth in
section F4.

© Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here, If you do not,
please leave blank.

Director’s service address @

Building namefnumber | e 4 1 4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133

Street I

lGachibowIi Miyapur Road, Gachibowli

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
address,

Post town , If you provide your residential
Hyderabad address here it will appear on the
County/Region | public record.
Postcode rs 0 | 0 | 0 | 3|2 |
Country India
Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director, Please tick one box. © f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority e provide a brief description of the
O Limited limited authority in the box below.
Unlimited g O If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
Description of limited jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person{s) with whom you are

authority, if applicable l

| Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone ;
O lointly@

If applicable, name(s)

of person(s) with
whom you are |

acting jointly |

authorised to act below.
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Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009.

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

Director details ©

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s) Krishnam Raju

Surname rKanumuri ¢
Former name(s) &

Country/State of India

residence ©

Nationality | Indian

Month/year of birth @ WE WWFW ,

Business occupation |

(if any) © I

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details.

& Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
{including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usuat
residential address as stated in
Section F5.

© Month and year of birth
Please provide month and year only.
Provide full date of birth in
section F4.

© Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here. If you do not,
please leave blank,

Director’s service address @

Building name/number | Office # L4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133

O Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street Bachlbowll Miyapur Road, Gachibowli on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
I address.
Post town ‘ If you provide your residential
Hyderabad address here it will appear on the
County/Region ’ public record,
Postcode |5 |0|0|0 3|2
Country India
Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box. @1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority e provide a brief description of the
O Limited limited authority in the box below.
Unlimited @ If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
Description of limited jointly, please enter the name{s} of
authority, if applicable the per_son(s} with whom you are
authorised to act below.

Are you authorised to act alene or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
O Jointly @
If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are [
acting jointly r
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Qverseas Companies
Regulations 2009.
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Director

Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

—

Full forename(s) Puneet

Surname

lamtia

Former name(s)®

CountryfState of
residence ©

India

Nationality

Month/year of birth @

gﬁmhﬁ paao

Business occupation

{if any) ©

-

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details.

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
{including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section 5.

© Month and year of hirth

Please provide month and year only.
Provide full date of birth in

section F4.

©Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here. If you do not,
please |eave blank.

Director’s service address @

Building name/number rOffice # L4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133

Street |Gach'rbow|i Miyapur Road, Gachibowli

=

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

Post town ’7 If you provide your residential
Hyderabad address here it will appear on the
County/Region r public record.
Postcode 5 | 0 1 olo I 3|2 |
Country india
Director's authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box. @ |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority e provide a brief description of the
O Limited < limited authority in the box below.
Unlimited @ If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only

Description of limited

authority, if applicable I—

lﬁe you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone s
O  Jointly ®

If applicable, name(s

of person(s}) with
whom you are

acting jointly

)|
-

jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person(s} with whom you are
authorised to act below,
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009.

Director

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s) Raju

Surname Penmasta

Former name(s) @

Country/State of USA

residence ®

Nationality | Inclian

Month/year of birth @ FO—W WEE’?

Business occupation
(if any) @

|

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details.

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
(inciuding maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F5.

© Month and year of birth
Please provide month and year only.
Provide full date of birth in
section F4.

© Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here, If you do not,
please leave blank.

Director’s service address©

Building name/number [Office #L4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133

B Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street | Gachibowli Miyapur Road, Gachibowli on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
{ address.
Post town | If you provide your residential
Hyderabad address here it will appear on the
County/Region | public record.
Postcode 5 010 Ol3|2 I
Country lIndia
E Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box. @ If you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority R provide a brief description of the
O Limited limited authority in the box below,
Unlimited

Description of limited

authority, if applicable r

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
O Jointly®

If applicable, name(s)
of person{s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

-

-

O If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below,

10/15 Version 6.0




In accordance with
Secticn 1046 of the
Campanies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009,

Director

0S INO1 - continuation page
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Director details @

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s)

Rajagopal Srirama

Surname | Tatta
Former name(s) @ r
Country/State of USA
residence @

Nationality Indian

Month/year of birth @ W I? I‘VTW |75—|71—

Business occupation
(if any) ©

© Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details.

& Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names}
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years,

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F5.

© Month and year of birth
Please provide month and year only.
Provide full date of birth in
section F4,

© Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here, If you do not,
please leave blank.

Director’s service address @

Building name/number ‘ Office # L4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133

O Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street | Gachibowli Miyapur Road, Gachibowli on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
| address.
Post town I i you provide your residential
Hyderabad address here it will appear on the
County/Region 1 pubslic record.
Postcode |50 0|0|3|2’
Country | India
E Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box. @ If you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority L provide a brief description of the
O Limited @ limited authority in the box below.
Unlimited

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

]

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
O Jointly®

If applicable, name(s)

of person(s} with
whom you are
acting jointly

©f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act atone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the person{s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Reguiations 2009,
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Director

m Director details @
Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete O Corporate details
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please | Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
use a continuation page if necessary. corporate director details

i @ Former name(s)
Full forename(s) | Nandita Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names)
Surname FGurjar which have been used for business

Former name(s)®

Country/State of India
residence ©
Nationality Indian

Month/year of birth @ WIT WEWF—

Business occupation I

purpases in the last 20 years.

© Country/State of residence
This is in respect of your usual
residenttal address as stated in
Section F5.

© Month and year of birth
Please provide month and year only.
Provide full date of birth in
section F4.

© Business occupation

(if any) © If you have a business occupation,
| please enter here. If you do not,
please leave blank.
Director’s service address®
Building name/number | Office # L4-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133 0O Service address
This is the address that will appear
Street ,EachibOW” Mivapur Road, Gachibowli on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
| address.
Post town if you provide your residential
| Hyderabad address here it will appear on the
County/Region | public record.
Postcode slololol3]2 |
Country |India
Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your autharity as director. Please tick one box. @ |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
Extent of authority e provide a brief description of the
O Limited limited authority in the box below,
Unlimited ©1f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alene but only

Description of limited 1

authority, if applicable l

I Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
O Jointly @

If applicable, name(s) |

of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly |

jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person{s} with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1} of the
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Regulations 2009,
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Director

Director details ©@

Use this section to list all the directors of the company. Please complete
Sections F1-F5. For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5. Please
use a continuation page if necessary.

Full forename(s) | Mitesh
Surname | Daga
Former name(s) @

Country/State of India
residence ©

Nationality Indian

Monthfyear of birth @ W,"’_s_ WEFE

Business occupation

{if any) ©

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details.

® Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
(including maiden or married names)
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years.

© Country/State of residence
This Is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F5.

©® Month and year of birth
Please provide month and year only.
Provide full date of birth in
section F4.

© Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here. If you do not,
please leave blank.

Director’s service address©

Building namefumber | office # 14-01 & 02, SLN Terminus, Survey #133

O Service address
This is the address that will appear

Street rGachibowli Miyapur Road, Gachibowli on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
| address.
Post town If you provide your residential
Hyderabad address here it will appear on the
County/Region public record.
Postcode 5|0|0|0‘3 2|
Country mdia
Director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as director. Please tick one box. @ [f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is Fmited, please
Extent of authority . provide a brief description of the
O Limited @ limited authority in the box below,
Unlimited

Description of fimited

authority, if applicable

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

Alone
O lointly ®

If applicable, name(s)

of person(s) with r
whom you are r

acting jointly I

@If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person{s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Corporate director

o1

Corporate director details @

Use this section to list all the corporate directors of the company.
Please complete G1-G5. Please use a continuation page if necessary.

Name of corporate
bady or firm

Building name/number

|
|
|

Street

Post town

County/Region

Postcode

LT TrT

Country

® Registered or principal address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This address
must be a physical focation for the
delivery of documents. It cannot be
a PO box number {unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP (Legal Post in Scotland) number,

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEA}?

+ Yes Complete Section G3 only
+ No Complete Section G4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file is kept {including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register.

Where the company/
firm is registered @

Registration number

O EEA
A full Yist of countries of the EEA can
be found in our guidance:
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

©This is the register menticned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC).

54

Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the faw by
which it is governed. If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
itis entered (including the state) and its registration number in that register.

Legal form of the
corporate body
or firm

Governing law

it applicable, where
the company/firm is
registered ©®

If applicable, the
registration number

O Non-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register {including state) where
the company or firm is registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate director’s authority

Piease enter the extent of your authority as corporate director.
Please tick one box.

Extent of authority

O Limited @
O Unlimited

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
O Jointly ®

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

@ |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below.

@ If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s} with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Part 5 UK establishment details

m Documents previously delivered - constitution

Has the company previously registered a certified copy of the company’s
constitution with material delivered in respect of another UK establishment?
+ No Goto Section H3.

+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H2.

UK establishment B |T!_|_\’—|—-"——|—|—

registration number

Documents previously delivered — accounting documents

Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company’s accounting
documents with rnaterial delivered in respect of another UK establishment?

+ No Go to Section H3.
+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H3.

UK establishment |B |R |_| I l | | l_

registration number

Delivery of accounts and reports

This section must be completed. Please state if the company intends to comply
with accounting requirements with respect to this establishment or in respect of
another UK establishment. @

In respect of this establishment, Please go to Section H4.

O In respect of another UK establishment. Please give the registration number
below, then go to Section H4.

UK establishment B | R ’7|_\| | l_l ’_—

registration number

© Please tick the appropriate box.

m Particulars of UK establishment @

You must enter the name and address of the UK establishment.

Name of establishment| SA( LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

Building namelnumber|

Street |3rd Floor, 5 Lloyds Avenue

Post town | London

County/Region |

Postcode £ | C I?I_N\I | 3 Fl E
Country | United Kingdom

Please give the date the establishment was opened and the business of the
establishment.

Date establishment  [*3 ﬁ ITIT“: P?ITW'?

opened

Business carried on at |Research and development activity in the pharma industry
the UK establishment

O Address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record.
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Part 6

Permanent representative

Please enter the name and address of every person authorised to represent the
company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK
establishment.

Permanent representative’s details

Please complete Sections J1-J4.

Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company.

Full forenamef(s)

Andrzej

Surname

Radomski

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details.

B

Permanent representative’s service address @

Building name/number ]

Street 3rd Floor, 5 Lloyds Avenue
|
Post town London
County/Region r
Postcode [_E(?IT(_N-[—_F[T[_E—
Country United Kingdom

@ Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
address.

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record.

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative.
Please tick one box,

Extent of authority

Limited @
O Unlimited

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

|authority fimited to complete the necessary filings with Companies

‘House and HM Revenue & Customs

IKrE you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box,

O Alone
Jointly ©

If applicable, name(s}
of person(s} with
whom you are

acting jointly

Simon Harris

@ |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below.

© If you have indicated that you are
not authorised te act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.

10/15 Version 6.0




In accordance with
Secticn 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulaticn 4(1} of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2008,

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Permanent representative

1 |

Permanent representative’s details

Please use this section to list all the permanent representatives of the company.
Please complete Sections J1-)4.

Full forename(s)

Simon

Surname

Harris

Permanent representative’s service address @

Building name/number r

Street | 3rd Floor, 5 Lloyds Avenue
|
Post town ‘ London
County/Region
e e[c[s[n] [s[AlE
Country United Kingdom

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record. This does not
have te be your usual residential
address,

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record.

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative.
Please tick one box.

Extent of authority

Limited @
O Unlimited

Description of limited
authority, if applicable

authority timited to filings with Companies House and HMRC

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box.

O Alone
Jointly ©

if applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly

Andrzej Radomski

@ 1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below.

© If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are
authorised to act below.
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Part 7 Person authorised to accept service

Does the company have any person(s) in the UK authorised to accept service of
documents on behalf of the company in respect of its UK establishment?

3 Yes Please enter the name and service address of every person(s)
authorised below.
4+ No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 ‘Signature’.

If there is no such person, please tick this box.

m Details of person authorised to accept service of documents
in the UK
Please use this section to list all the persons” authorised to accept service below. | Continuation pages
Please complete Sections K1-K2. Please use a continuation page if you
need to enter more details,
Full forename(s)
Surname
Service address of person authorised to accept service @
Building name/number | @ Service address
This is the address that will appear
Street [_ on the public record. This does not
have to be your usual residential
r address. Please note, a DX address
would not be acceptable.
Post town r
County/Region
Postcode | | I I ’ I |
Country
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Part 8 Signature

This must be completed by all companies.

| am signing this form on behalf of the company.
Signature

This form may be signed bﬁ
Birector-Sacratacy, Permanent representative.
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B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if
you do it will help Companies House if there is a query
on the form. The contact information you give will be
visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact name

Company name

Address

|

Post town

County/Region

Postcode I ‘

HEEEN

Country

DX

Telephone

W4 checkiist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the

following:

[1 The overseas corporate name on the form matches
the constitutional documents exactly.

O You have included a copy of the appropriate
correspondence in regard to sensitive words, if
appropriate.

O You have included certified copies and certified
translations of the constitutional documents, if
appropriate.

1 You have included a copy of the latest disclosed
accounts and certified translations, if appropriate.

O You have completed all of the company details in
Section B3 if the company has not registered an
existing establishment.

O You have complete details for all company
secretaries and directors in Part 4 if the company
has not registered an existing establishment,

1] Any addresses given must be a physical location.
They cannot be a PO Box number (unless part
of a full service address), DX or LP (Legal Post in
Scotland} number,

O You have completed details for all permanent
representatives in Part 6 and persons authorised to
accept service in Part 7.

O You have signed the form.

O You have enclosed the correct fee.

Please note that all information on this form
will appear on the public record, apart from
information relating to usual residential
addresses and day of birth.

E How to pay

A fee of £20 is payable to Companies House in
respect of a registration of an overseas company.
Make cheques or postal orders payable to

‘Companies House.

@ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return it to the appropriate address below:

England and Wales:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ.

DX 33050 Cardiff.

Scotland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF.
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 {Legal Post).

Northern Ireland:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8BG.

DX 481 N.R. Belfast 1.

Higher protection

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher
protection, please post this whole form to the
different postal address below:

The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082,

Cardiff, CF14 3WE.

n Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse
or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.gov.uk/companieshouse

This farm has been provided free of charge by Companies House.
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INCORPORATED UNIDER THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF
SAl LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

The name of the Companyis SAILIFE SCIENCES LIMITED.

Il.  TheRegistered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Telangana,
I A. THE OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ONITS INCORPORATION ARE:-:

1. To carry on the business of manufaciurers of and dealers in Chemicals, Fine Chemicals Synthetics,
Finished Drugs and Pharmaceuticals, Fine Pharmaceuticals, Bulk Brugs and Cosmetics and 1o
establish laboratory facilities for the Company's own or others' use.

2. To carry on the husiness as chemical engineers, analytical chemists, importers, exporters,
manulacturers of and dealers in heavy chemicals, acids, alkalis, chemical compounds and chemicals
of all kinds {solid, liquid and gareous), drugs, medicines, pharmaceuticals, antibiatics and
pharmaceutical, medical, sizing, bleading, photographical and other preparations and ariicles,

3. To carry on and te acguire or invent any socret formula, know-how manufactunng process and or
design of plant, eguipment for the manufacture of Chemicals, Drugs, Pharmaccuticals, Food
Products and install, erect the plant and run the plant far the Company’s use,

B. MATTERS WHICH ARE NECESSARY FOR FURTHERANCE OF THE OBJECTS SPECIFIED iN CLAUSE
1H{A) ARE:—

1. Tonegotiate, enter in agreements and contracts with Companies, Firms and individuals for technical
assistance, knowhow, secret formula, design and technical and financial assistance in the
manufacturing, marketing importing and exporting of any or ali of the aforesaid lines.

2. To apply for and assistance cither technical or financial from Government and other organizations.
Companies, Firms or Individuals, National or International for developing all or any of the business of
the Company, upon such terms and onditions as are provided in the Articles of Assodation of ihe
Company.

3. To apply for, purchase of otherwise acquire or develop, any patents, brevetted, invention, licences,
concessions and the like, conferring and exclusive or limited rights to use or any secret or other
information to any invention which may scem capable of being used for any of the purposes of the
Company, the acquisition of which may scem calculated directly orindirectly to benefit the Company,
and 1o use, exercise, develop or grant licences in respect of or otherwise turn to account the property,
rights or infermation so acquired and to spend money in experimenting upon festing or improving
any such patents, inventions or rights.

4. To manufacture, formulate, process, import, export, purchase, market, sell, barter in, carry cn
business and otherwise deal in, all kinds of pesticides, insecticides, acaricides, weedicides, herbicides,
tungiades, nemalocides, rodenticidns, biclogical insecticides, bactericides, molluscicides, insect
hermones, plant growth chemicals and nutrients, anit-feed-ants, anti-bactirial, repelicnt, attractants,
chemaosteril-nts,

5. To manufacture, fermulate, process import, export, market sell barter in, carry on business as whole
salers and retailers and otherwise deal in all kinds of fertilizers, micronutrients, inhibitors and
initiators, hormones, antibiotics, vaccines, animal health chemicals and medicines, feed products and
supplements, petroleum products and by-products including but not restricted to phenols and
phenolic derivatives alcohol phosphorous and phosphorous compounds, naphthols, benzene,
xylene, toluene and derivatives, gases such as carbon monoxide, phosgene, oxygoen, nitrogen,
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10.

11.

T2

13.

14.

hydrogen and ammonia and products used in the manufacture and / or formulfations of pesticides,
insecticides, acaricides, weedicides, herbicides, fungicides, nematocides, bactericides etc. as
described ahove,

To manufacture, formulate process, import, export, market, sell, barter in, carry on business or
otherwise deal in aif kinds of aromatic chemicals, flavours and flavouring substances, essentials oils,
whether natural or synthetic, perfumes, perfumery intermediates and perfumery raw meterials,
essences, lemongrass oils, lonones, in particular aipha, beta and pseudo fonones, coumarin and its
derivatives.

To carry on the business as manufacturers, formulators, pracessors, producers, gorwers, fermenters,
distillers, refiners, makers, importers, exparters, buyers, sellers, suppliers, stockists, agenis,
merchants, distributors and concessioners of an dealers in basic and generic drugs. Anti-Tubercuiosis
and Anti-infectious Agents, Timans, Agrochemicals, Biological chemicals and all inorganic and
Organic chemicals and compounds of any kind, character and property which has been developed or
known, or which may be invented or develeped in future as a result of any research or studies made in
any part of the World.

To carry on the business or chemists druggists, importers exporters, manufacturers and deafers in
carbide, calcium and other pharmaceutical medicinal, industrial and other preparations and articles
and compounds, proprietary articles of all kinds, chemical, photographical, surgical and scientific
apparatus and materials

To draw, make accept, endorse, discount, execute and issue promissory notes, cheques, bills of
exchange, bills of lading warrants, debentures and other negotiable or transferable instruments but
not to do any banking business as defined in the Banking Regulations Act, 1949.

To amalgamate, enter into partnership, orinto any arrangement for sharing profits, union of interest,
co-operation, joint ventures or reciprocal concession or for limiting competition with any person oy
Company carrying on or engaged in (about to carry on engage in) any business of transactions which
the Company is authorized to carry on or engage in or which can be carried on in conjunction
therewith or which is capable of being conducted so as Lo directly orindirectly benefit the Company.

To purchase or otherwise acquire, sell dispose off or let on hire, and deal in movable and immovable
property of all kinds, and in particular {ands, buildings, machinery, plant, warehouse, workshops,
heredetaments, business concerns and undertakings, mortgages, charges, annuities, patents
copyrights, licences, shares, stocks, debentures, securities concessions, options, produce policies and
book debts and claims and any interest in immovable or movabkle property and claims against such
property or any person or Company and to carry on any business concern or undertaking so acquired.

To acquire, buy, sell, hire, let on hire or otherwise deal in any movable or immovable property which
the Company may think fit favourable by way of investment with a view or resell or otherwise

To enter into any arrangements with any Governments or Authoribes {supreme, rmunicipal, local
panchayat or otherwisc) or any Covporations, Companies or persons thal may seem conductive to the
attainment of the Company’s objecis or any of them or persons any charters, contracts, decrees,
rights, privileges and concessions which the Company may think desirable and to carryout exercises,
and comply with such charters, contracts, decrees, rights privileges and concessions any imposition
or alleration or cancellation of any taxes or duties or tariff which may seem or be calculated directly or
indirectly to prejudice the Company’s interest,

To promote any Company or Companies for the purpose of acquiring all or any of the property, rights
and liabilities of the Company or for any other purposc which may seem directly or indirectly
cafculated to benefit this Company.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

22.

To facilitate and encourage and assist in the creation, issues or convarsien of debentures, honds,
obligated shares, stock and securities and to act as trustees in connection with any securities and take
part in the conversion of business concerns and undertaking into Companies to carry on all kinds of
promotion of business concerns and undertaking inte Companies, to carry on all kinds of prometion
of business and in particular to form, constitution, fipat, assist and control any Companies,
Associations or Undertakings whatsoever.

To undertake and execute any trusts the undertaking whereof may seem desirable and also undertake
the office of the executor, administrator, receiver, treasurer, registrar, and 1o keep for any Company.,
Government Authority or Body any register relating to any stocks, funds or share cr securities o1 to
undertake and duties any relation to the register of transfers the issue of certificates otherwise.

To amalgamate with any other Company whose objects include objects similar to those of this
Company whether by sale or purchase (for full or partly paid up shares or otherwise) off the
undertaking subject to the liabilities or this or any such other Company as aforesaid, with or without
winding up by sale or purchase {for full or partly paid up shares or otherwise) of all or a centrolling
interest in the shares or stock of this or any such other Company as aforesaid or by partnership or any
arrangement of the nature of the partnership or in any other manner.

To sell, exchange, mortgage, charge, develop, let on hire, or dispose of the undertaking property and
assets of the Company or any part thereofin such manner and for such consideration as the Directors
think fit, and in particular for shares (whether fully or partly paid-up) debentures or securities ot any
other Company having objects altogether or in part simifar to those of this Company.

To pay atl the costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the promotion formation, registration
and establishment of the Company and the issue of its capitals including undertaking or other
commissions Broker's fees and charges in connection therewith and to remunerate or make
donations by cash or other asscts or by the allotment of fully or partly paid up shares or by a call or
option on shares, debentures, debenture stocks or security of this or any other Company or in any
other manner out of Company’s capitals or profits or otherwise to any person or persons or services
rendered or 1o be rendered in introducing any property or business to the Company or in placing or
assisting to place or Guaranteeing the subscription of any shares, debentures, debenture stock or
olher securities of any other Company or for any other reason which the Company may think proper.

Subject to the provisions of Act, to borrow or raise money or receive money on deposit merely for the
purpose of financing the business of the Company either without security or secured by hquid or fixed
assets perpetual or terminable and payable or otherwise and issue a1 par or at a premium or discount
or by mortgage, hypothecation, pledge or other security charges on the undertaking or on all or any
of the assets present or future of the Company including uncalled capitat.

To provide for the welfare of the Directors, ex-Diractors and employees or ex-employees of the
Company or is predecessors in business and wives, widow and families or the dependents or
relations of such persons by building or contributing for the building of house, dwellings, or by grants
of money pensions, allowances, bonus, payments towards insurance or other payment or by creating
and from time to time contributing or subscribing or aiding or conveniences and by providing or
subsiding towards places or instructian, recreation, hospitals and dispensaries, medical and cther
attendance and other assistance as the Company shall think fit and subscribe or contribute or
otherwise assist or to guarantee money to charitable benevolent, religious scientific, national or other
institution or objects or objects or for any public, general or useful objects.

To obtain in India or frorn foretgn countries, any plant and machineries and other fixed or circulation
assets and land and building for the Company on payment in cash and partly on credit or on cash and
to enter into an agreement for acquiring the same on such terms of credit as or considered suitable
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25.

26.

27.

28,

29.

underlaking thercin to pay in differed ltompsums or installments. The cost together interest; if
necessary and to arrange for requisite security or guarantee thereof for the supplies of sich plants
and machineries and fixed and airculating assets.

23. Subject to provisions of the Act, to indemnify members, officers, managers, secretaries, auditors,

servants and menials of the Company against proceedings, costs, damages claims and demands in
respect of any thing done or ordered to be done by them for and in the interest of the Company, or for
any loss or misfortune whatever which shall all happen in the evacuation of the duties are thair
officersin the relation thereto,

To mortgage and charge the undertaking and all or any of the raal and personal properly and assets
present or future and all or any of the uncalled capital for the time being of the Company and to issun
at par or at a premium or discount and for such consideration and with such rights powers and
privileges as may be thought fit, debentures or mortgage debentures and either permanent or
redeemable or repayable and coliateraily or further to secure any securities of the Company by a trust
deed or other assurance.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 remunerate any persans including Directors or
any firm or corporation or any employee of the Company whether by cash payment or by giving 1o
him or them a commission on the profits of any particular transaction of a share in general protits of
the Company or by allotment to him or them of shares or securities of the Company credited as paid
upin fullor part of otherwise for any service rendered to the Company.

To receive money on deposit at interest or otherwise and to lend money with or without security to
such persons, firm or Company on such terms as may seen expedient and in particular to customars
and others having dealings with the Company and to guarantee the performance of contracts by any
such persons, firm or Company but the Company shall not do any banking business, as defined in the
Banking Regutation Act, 1949,

To distribute in species any properties of the Company among the members as may be permissible in
law upon winding up.
To carry on business of consultancy {or establishing in the field of management, finance, marketing

and sales.

To establish training centres for scientific, technical and management courses to develop skill and
efficiency in the industry,

The liabiiity of the members of the Company is limited and this liability is limited to the amount unpaid, if
any, on the shares held by them,

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 21,40,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty ohe crores forty lakhs
only) divided tnto 2,14,00,000 {Two Crore fourteen lakhs enly) equity shares of Rs. 10/- {Rupees Ten only)
each with powers to increase or to reduce the same from time to time, subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2012, Upon any increase of capital other than the autherized capital, the Company is at
fiberty to issue any new shares with any preferential, qualify or special rights privileges conditions
attached thereto.

We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed hereto are desirous of being formed
into a company in pursuance ot this Memorandum of Association and we respectively agree to take the
number of shares in the capital of the Company set opposite our respective names.

/A

04) e

NS



Names, addresses,

Names, addresses, deseriptions Number of Equity tescriptions,
5. No. and occupations and Signature Shares taken by each occupations
of the Subscribers subscribers and Signature of the

above witness

1. G ala Ravindra Varma 100
(One Hundred oniy)

2. Prathima Kanumuri 100
{One Hundred only)

ﬂ
3. Kanumuri Ranga Raju 100
{One Hundred only)
4, K Mytreyi
kel 100
(One Hundred only) Sar-
ne Hundred enly D V Sastry
5, Dr, R S Raju
100
{One Hundred only)
6. N Anita
100
{One Hundred only)
o
7. R Ajay

100
{One Hundred only)

!

Total 700

Place : Hyderahad
Date :11th January, 1999
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
SAI LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

Definitions

"Act" shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent enacted and enforced and the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 to the extent still in force or any other statutory amendment or re-enactment thereof;

"Acceptance Notice” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 58;

“Adjusted Shareholding Percentage” shall mean the percentage of Share Capital held by a Person calculated by
excluding any Shares issuable pursuant to unvested options granted under the Management ESQP Schome 2018
following from Share Capital;

v

“Atfiliate” shall mean:

(i) with rospect to any Person {(other than a natural person), any other Person who, directly or indirectly, through
one or more intermediate Persons, Controls, is Controlled by, or is under commaon Control, such first Person,
but excludes any Person who is a Competitor; '

(i} without prejudic2to the generality of sub-clause (i} above, in respect of the Investor and HBM only, any Person:

a.  managing, or acting as investrment adviser to, the investment funds that, directly or indirectly, Control the
Investor and/ or HBM as applicable; or

b. a fund, collective investment scheme, trust, partnership (including without limitation, a co-investment
partnership), any co-investment vehicle, special purpose vehicle or other vehicle or any subsidiary or
affiliate of the foregoing, which is managed by any other Affiliate of the Investor and/ or HBM, whether on
the Effective Date or in the future and in which any other Affiliate of the Investor and/ or HBM as applicable
is a general partneror a Iimitea*partner.

provided, however, that, the following Person(s) shall not be considered as *Affiliates’ of the Investor and/or
HBM (as applicable): (A} a Competitor; and (B) a portfolio company of the Investor or HBM (as applicable);

{iil) with respect to the Promoter Group only, the Promoters and the Promoter Family Members.
“Adjourned Board Meeting” shall have the meaning set forthin Article 101(b);
“Adjourned Shareholders Meeting* shall have the meaning set forth in Article 106(b};
“Affirmative Vote Matters” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 101;
"Approved Strategic Sale” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 141;
“Articles” means the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time;

“Binding Offer” shall mean an offer by a Proposed Buyer, which is not conditional on any further due diligence of the
Company by such Proposed Buyer, containing the price and all ather terms and cenditions on which such Person is
willing to purchase all (but not less than all) of the Investor Shares;

“Board” means the board of directors of the Company;
“Board Meeting” means a meeting of the Board;

"Business” shall mean the B2B business of development and manufacturing of pharmaceuticals {except biologics) and
drug substances, Drug Discovery Services and Formulation Services.;

“Business Day"” means a day on which banks are narmally open for business in Mumbai, Singapore and Hyderabad,;

“Business Plan” means the annual business plan of the Company, which shall include, among other details, the
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financing requirements, capital expenditure, means of finance, cash flows, and budget of the Company for the relevant
Thancial Year including a budgeted income statement and balance sheet, approved and adopted by the Board aflor the
Floctive Date from time to time;

“thairman” shall mean Charrman of the Board of the Company who shall at ali times be nominated hy the Promoter
Hrom among the Promoter Directors;

“Tompetitor” means any Person defined as a Pharmacewtical Rusiness Person and mutually agreed between the
Company, Promoter and Investor; (i) any Person who Controls a Pharmaceutical Business Porsen (a “Controlling
Entity"), provided, however, that a financial investor whose primary business is to carry out investment activities shall
rot he deemed to be a Controlling Entity of any Pharmaceutical Business Persen; and/or (i) any Person resident in India
vho is Controlled by a Pharmaceutical Business Person (a “Controfied Entity”);

“Control” with respect to any Person, shall mean (a) ownership ar control {(whether directly or indirectly) of mere than
50% (Fifty per cent) of the total equity share capital or voting capital or the like of the controlled entity, whether by
shareholding or contract or otherwise; or {b) cantrol of, or the power to control, the composition of 2 majority of the
koard of directors or equivalent of the controlled entity; or (¢} control of, or the power to control, the management
andfor policy decisions of the centrolled entity, and the terms “controlling” and “controlled” shall be correspondingly
construed.;

Lol OFf Penod” shall have the meaning as set forihin Article 6T,

"Dead” means Deed of Adherence in the form agreed between the Company, Promoter and Investor,
“Brag Along Notice” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 148;

*Drag Along Sale Notice™ shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 157;

“Drag Along Sale” shall have the meaning as set forthin Article 148;

“Drag Along Shares” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 148;

“Prug Discovery Services” means services that relate to activities performed for the purpose of identifying a new
chemical or a new hiologicat candidate or its intermediates as a part of a new drug discovery program and includes
synthetic and medicinal chemistry, pharmacelogy, biclogy and pharmacokinetics. ;

“Eftective Date" shall mean 25 July 2018;

“Encumbrance” means any mortgage, pledge, equitable interest, assignment by way of security, hypothecation, right
of other Persons, claim, encumbrance, defect in title, interest, option, lien, charge (fixed or floating), commitment,
right of set-off, any security interest, beneficial interest, any restriction (including restrictions on voting, use, transfer,
non-disposal undertakings, pre-emption rights and the like) or any agreement to create any of the above,

"Equity Securities” or "Equity Security” means the Share(s) and all classes of share(s), debenture(s), warrant(s),
option(s) and other security/securities of the Company which is/are convertible or exchangeable into Shares of the
Company or any other security or contractual right which gives to its holder the right to acquire or subscribe to Shares
or Equity Securities of the Company;

"ESOP Scheme” means the Sai ESOP Schome 2008 and Management ESOP Scheme 2018 as approved by the Company;
“ExitPeriod” means the period commencing an July 25, 2022 and ending on July 24, 2024;

“Fair Market Value” means the fair market value ot cach Share, determined on the basis of a valuation of the Company
{taken as awhole) by an independent merchant banker jointly appointed by the Investor and the Promoter:;

“Financiat Year" means the peried of 12 {Twelve) months commencing on Aprl 1 of & ealendar year and ending on
March 31 of the following calendar year or any other period adopted by the Company as its accounting year;
“Formulation Services” means services involving dasign, research, development, manufacture, analytical and testing in
retation to formulation of a diug product;

“Fuily Dituted”, shall in the context of calcufations invalving share capital or number of shares, mean a calculation made

assuming that all cutstanding Equity Securities, including stock options, warrants, right to buy or acguire equity Shares
(whether or not, by their term, then currently convertible, exercisable or exchangeable) have been o converted,

exercised or exchanged;




SAAPT means the generally accepted accounting principles as applicablein India;
“eneral Meeting” means a meeting of the Shareholders;

“Jovernment Authority” means any government authority, statutory aulhority, government department, agency,
Gmmission, board, tribunal or court or other law, rule or regulation making entily having or purporting to have

Jirsdiction on the subject matter, including the Republic of India or any country or any slate or other subdivision
thereaf or any municipality, district or other subdivision thereof;

“overnment Official” means any: (a) employee or offical of a national or local Governmental Authority,
hstrumentality of any Governmental Authority (c.g., state-owned or state-controlled anterprise, government agency,
gyvernment advisor, public hospital) or public inlernational organization (e.g., the World Bank); (b} political party or
Party official; or {¢) candidate for political office;

"HEM" shall mean HBM Private Equity India and its successors and permitiad assigrs;
"HBM Shares" means the Equity Securities held by HBM and its Affillates from time to time;

“dentified Merchant Banker” means any of the merchant banker agreed betwoen the Company, Prometer and
Irvestor;

“ndependent Directors” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 88;
“Information” shail have the meaning as set forth in Article 118;
“hitial Public Offering” or “IPO" shall mean the completion of an initial public offering of the Company resulting in the
listing of Shares, or Equity Securities, on any Recognized Stock Exchange;
“lnsolvency Event” means:
(a) where aresolutionis passed by the board of a company for voluntarily winding up the company; or
(b} where a Person is subjected to the appointment of a receiver, official liquidator, or similar officer over its entire
undertaking or a material part of its assets or undertaking; or

{c) enters into an arrangement or compromise with its creditors in terms of Section 230 to 235 of the Act, as
applicable or any corresponding Law overseas applicable to the relevant Person.

“Insclvent Sharcholder” shall have the meaning as set forthin Article 66;

"fnvestor” shall TPG Asla VI SF Ple Ltd and its successors and permitted assigns;

“Investor Director(s)” shall have the meaning as sei forth in Article 88;

“Investor Shares” means the Equity Securities held by the Investor and it's Affitiates;

“IPO Lead Advisor” shall have the meaning as set forth in Articie 129;

“law” means any statute, law, regulation, ordinance, rule, judgment, order, decree, bye-aw, approval from the
concerned authority, government resolution, order, directive, guideline, policy, requirement, or other governmental
restriction or any simifar form of decision of, or determination by, or any interpretation or adiudication having the force
of law of any of 1he foregoing, by any concerned authority;

"Management ESOP Scheme 2018 means an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) approved by the Company ason the
[ifective Date;

“Memorandum of Association” means the memorandum ot association of the Company, as amended {rom time to
time;

"Money-Laundering Laws” means with respect 1o the Company and its Subsidiaries, all jaws, reguiations and sanctions
of all jurisdictions (including sanctions or measures promulgated, imposed, administered or enforced by the Glfice of
Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Department of Treasury, Her Majesty’s Treasury, the European Union, the United
Nations or any other relevant sanctions authority) that: (a) limit the use of and / or seek 1he forfeiture of proceeds from
illegal transactions; {b) fimit commoercial transactions with designated countries or individuals elieved te be terrorisis,
narcotics dealers, supporters of weapons proliferation or otherwise engaged in activities contrary to the interests of
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hdia, Singapore, the United Kingdom, the United States or ather applicable countries; (€) may require the investor to
chinin information on the identity of, and source of funds for investment by, the Company or the Promoters Group; or
{0 are desigred to disrunt the How of funds to terrorist organization’s, in cach case, to such extent as applicable to the
Company and its Subsidiaries;

"Optien Exercise Notice” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 57;
"Dption Period” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 56;
"Option Price” shalt have the meaning as set forth in Article 57;

“Ordinary Course” means an action taken by or on behatf of a Person that satisfies all of the foliowing conditions: {a)
stch action is recurring in nature and is taken in the ordinary course of the Person’s normal day-to-day operations; and
(b} such action is taken in accordance with sound and prudent business practices and is consistent with pasl practice;

“Gther Continuing Shareholders” shall mean Mrs S Bharathi, Dr Raju A Penmasta, Mrs Aruna Penmasta, Mr Ravindra
Varma Nandyata, Mrs Anita Rudraraju Nandyala, Ms Anjelica Nandyalo, Ms Anisha Nandyala, Mr K v Satyanarayana
Raju, Mrs K Anuradha, Mr G Ramakrishna Raju and Kanuri Family Trust so long as such individual shareholders hoid
Ecuity Securities of the Company;

“COther Shareholders” shall mean shareholders other than Investors, Promoter Group and HBM;
“Parent Shareholder” shall have the meaning as sei forth in Article 53(H;

“Person” means any individual, joint venture, company, corporation, partnership, proprietorship, trust or other
enterprise (whether incorparated or not), Hindu undivided family”, unien, association, or any other entity that may be
treated as a person under applicable Law;

“Permitted Transfer” shall have the meaning as set torth in Article 53;

“Pre-Emptive Offer” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 14;

"Pre-Emptive Offer Notice” shall have the meaning as set forthin Article 16;
“Pre-Emptive Offer Period® shalt have the meaning as set forth in Article 158;
“Premoter” shall mean and inclode D K Ranga Raju and M. Krishnarm Raju Kanurauri;
“Promater Director(s)” shall have the meaning as set forthin Articie 88;

“Premoter Family Members” means sharcholders from amangst: (1) Mr. Krishnam Raju Kanumurd; (i) Dr. K Ranga Raju;
(i) mother, wife, sister, brother, son, daughter, father in law, mother in law and sister in law of Mr. Krishnam Raju
Kanumur; (iv) any partnership firm where any of the Persens listed in sub-clauses (i), (i) and {if) above are the only
parters; (v} a Hindu undivided family where Mr. Krishnam Raju Kanumuri or Dr. K Ranga Raju or Mr. Krishnam Raju
Kanumuri's father in law is a Karta; and/or {vi) companies which are entirely owned by as the Persons enumerated in
sub-clauses (i), (iiy and {ii)} above, so long as they continue 16 be shareholders of the Company;

"Promoter Group” means colfectively: (1) the Promoter; G Dr. K Ranga Raju; (i) promoter existing sharchoelders and {iv)
the Promoter Family Members who are presently Shareholders or become Sharcholders at any time in the future;

"Proposed issuance” shall have the meaning as sev lorth in Article 14;
"Quiorurm” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 100;
“Quorum for General Meeting” shall have the meaning as setforth in Articic 106;

“Recognized Stock Exchange” means the National Stock Exchange of India Limfled, the BSE Limited or any
internationally recognized securities exchange opproved inwriting by the investor;

“Related Party” shall have the meaning ascribed to the term in the Act;
“Relative” shall have the tmeaning ascribod to the toronin the Act;

“Representatives” means, in relation to a Parly, its Affiliates, direclors, officers and employees as well as agents,
advisers, representatives, accountants and consullants of that Party authorized by such Pariy to act on their behalf and/

or of its respective Affiliates;




"Right of Mirst Offer” shall have the meaning as set iorth in Article 56:

"ROFO TiansTeree” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 60;

“Sai ESOP Scheme 2008 means the ESCP Scheme approved by the Company on 25 July 2018 and amended by the
Company;

“Shares” means equity shares of the Company having a face value as defined in the Memorandum of Association of the
Company;

“Share Capital” means the share capital of the Company determined on a Fully Diluted Basis;

“Sharcholder{s}” means Persons who are registered in the register of members of the Company as holders of Shares or
Persons holding any Equity Securities in the Company;

“Shareholding” or “Shareholding Percentage” means the percentage of the Share Capital held by a Sharcholder;
“Strategic Sale Acceptance Notice” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 144;

“Strategic Sale Notice” shall have the meaning as setforth in Article 141;

"Subsidiaries" means Sai Life Sclences Inc. and any entity which qualifies as subsidiary of the Company under the Act;
“Tag Along Notice” shall have the meaning asset forth in Apttele 63;

“Tag Along Period” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 63;

“Tag Along Price” shalt have the meaning as set forth in Article 63;

“Tag Along Response” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 63;

“Tag Along Shares” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 63;

“Tag Offerees” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 63;

“TAShare” shall have the meaning as set forth in Ariicle 63;

“Ta Selling shareholder(s)” shall have the meaning as set forth in Artide 63;

“Tag Transferee” shalt have the meaning as setiorthin Article 63;

“Third Party” means any Persen other than Investor andfor its Affiliates, Promoter and/or its Affiliates, HBM and/or its
Affiliates, Other Continuing Shareholders, Gther Shareholders and shall net include any Person who has acquired any
Equily Security by executing a Deed of Adherance, after the Effective Date;

“Transfer” means to directly or indirectly sell, gift, assign, transfer, transfer any interest in, place in trust, or create any
Encumbrance on, any Equity Securities or any right, title or interest therein, or otherwise dispose of in any mannor
whatsoever voluntarily or involuntary;

“Transier Period” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 81; and

“Unsubscribed Securities” shall have the meaning as set forth in Article 23.
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g.

interpretation

Unless the context otherwise requires words used but not defined herain shall have the meanimg assigned to them
under the Act.

References to any gender shall include all genders and references to the singular number shall include the plural
number and vice-versa.

Headings used herein are only for case of refercnce and shali not affect the interpretation of this Agrecment.

The terms “directly or indirectly” mean directly or indirectly through one or more intermediary Persons or through
contractual or other legal arrangements, and the terms “direct or indirect” shall be correspondingly construed.

Reference to the word “include” shalt be construed as being without any limitaticn, except under the Act.

When any number of days is prescribed herein, the same shall be reckoned exclusively of the first and inclusively of
the dast day unless the last day does not toll on a Business Day, in which case the last day shall be the next
succeeding day which is a Business Day,

Unless the context otherwise requires, words or exprossions contained in these regulations shali bear the same
meaning as in the Act or any statutory modification thereel inforce at the date at which these requlations become
hinding on the company.;

Share capitai and variation of rights

General

1

5)

6}

Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of membars shall be entitled to receive within two
months after incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandum or after allotment or within ohe monih
after the application for the registration of transfer or transmission or within such other peried as the conditions of
issue shall be, provided,

iy onecertificate for all his Shares witheut payment of any charges; or

i) soverat certificates, cach for one or more of his shares, upon payment of three hundred rupees for cach
certificate aftarthe first.

Every certificate shall be under the seal of the Company and shall specify the Shares to which Tt reates and the
amount paid-up thereon.

Inrespect of any Share or Shares held jointly by several persons, the company shall not be bound to issue more than
one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share Lo one of several joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all

such holders,

if any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutifated or torn or if there be no further space on the back for
endorsement of transfer, then upen production and surrendor thereof to the company, a new certificate may be
fssued in licu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon proof thercof te the satisfaction of the
company and on execution of such indemnity as the compony deem adequate, anew certificate in licu theroof <hall
he given. Every certificate under this Article shall be issued on payment of three hundred rupecs for cach certificate.

The Company shall be entitled to dematerialise ail or any of #s existing Shares, rematerialize all or any of its Shares
held in the Depositories and/ or to offerits fresh Shares or buyback it's Shares in a dematerialized form pursuant to
the Depositones Act, 1996 and the Relevant Rides, if any.

The provisions ol Articles 1 1o 4 shall mutatis mutandis apply ro debentures of the Company.

Except as required by low, no person shall bu recognised by the company as holding any share upor any trust, and
the company shall not be bound by, or be compelied in any way to recognise {even when having notice thereof) any
equitable, contingent, future or partial intercst in any share, or any interest in any fractional part of a share, or
{except only as by these regulations or by law otherwise provided) any othoer rights in respect of any share except
an abseolute right to the entirely thereof in the registered holder,




K

The company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by sub-scction (6) of seclion 40, provided
that the rate per cent or the amount of the commission paid or agreed to be paid shall be disdosed in the maner
required by that section and rule made thereunder. The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate
or amount prescribed in rules made under sub-seciion (6) of section 40, The commission may be satisfied by the
payment of cash orthe allotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in the one way and partly in the other.

9 If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class (unless
otherwise provided by the terms of fssue of the shares of that class) may, subject to the provisions of section 48,
and whether or not the company is being wound up, be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of three-
fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting
of the holders of the shares of that class. To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these regulations
relating general meetings shail mutatis mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum shall be at {east two
persons holding atleast one-third of the issued shares of the dass in question.,

10} The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not,
unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied hy the
creation of issue of further share ranking par passu therewith,

11} Subject to the provisions of section 55, any preference shares may, with the sanction of an ordinary resolution, be
issued on the terms that thay are te be redecimed on such terms and in such manner as the company hefare the
issue of the shares may, by special resolution, determine.

12

—

Subject to the provisions of the Act and Article 13 to Article 23, the shares in the capital of the company shall be
uinder the contrel of the Directors who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of them to such
persons, in such proportion and on such terms and conditions and eithar ata premium or at par and at such time as
they may from time to time think fit.

Issue of further Equity Securities
13) Issuance of Equity Securities by Investor and HBM
a) Additional Subscription Shares;

i) Subject to Article 13{a) (iii}, the Company shail have the right, exercisable at any time prior o the Tst (first)
anniversary of the Effective Date by issuing a notice in writing to the investor and HBM {the “Company Call
Notice”), to require the fnvestor to invest the aggregate Additional Subscription Amount in such
proportion as agreed to between Company, Investor and HEM.

i} The Additional Subscription Amount shall be invested by the Investor and HBM (and/or, at the election of
the Investor or HBM, as the case may be, by their respective Affiliates) by subscribing to the Additional
Subscription Shares at a per Share price equal to the purchase price paid by the Investor as of the Effective
Date ("Additienal Subscription Price”).

iii) The Company shall have the right 10 issue a Company Call Notice in accordance with this Article if the
Company achieves certain financial paramelers as agreed between the Company, Investor and HBM.

iv) Further, the Company Call Notice shall be issued only after obtaining an approval of the Board for: (a) the
issuance of such Company Cali Notice; and (b} the detailed statement on the manner in which the
Additional Subscription Amount is proposed to boe utilized by the Company which is 1o be included in the
Company Call Notice,

v} The detailed statement on the manner in which the Additional Subscription Amount is proposed to be
utfized must be approved inwriting by the Investor prior to the issuance of the Company Call Notice.

vi) The Additional Subscription Shares shall he offered and allotted 1o the Investor, H8M and/or their Affiliatos
on a private placemant basis.

The Company shall initiate the private nlacement pracess {for offering the Additional Subscription Shares at
the Additional Subscription Price to the Investor, HBM and/or their Affiliates at least 15 (fifteen) days after
the issue of the Company Call Notice 1o the Investor and HEM and, subject to applicable Law, the Investor
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and HBM shall be obliged to accept such offer and subscribe to the Additional Subscription Shares offered
o them respectively, at the Additional Subscription Price.

R} The Company shail not raise any capital by way of issuance of Lguity Securities in any manner other than as set
outin this Article until the 1st (first) anniversary of the Effective Date,
£) Forthe purpose of this Article, the following capitalized terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them belows:

i} "Additional Subscription Amount” shafl mean the amount specified in the Company Call Notice, as agreed
between the Company, Promoter, Investor, HBM and Other Sharcholders at the Effective Date; and

i) “Additional Subscription Shares” shall mean the number of Shares represented by Additional Subscription
Amount divided by the Additional Subscription Price;

Pre-Emptive Offer

14) Subject to Article 15, if the Company preposes to issue any Equity Securities to any Persen which would dilute the
Shareholding of the Investor, HBM or the Promoter Group {each such Person, an “Affected Sharcholder” and any
such proposed issuance a "Proposed Issuance”), the Company shall provide each Affected Sharsholder with the
right to acquire such propartionate number of Equity Securities (“Pre-Emptive Offer”) so as to enable the affected
Shareholder to maintain a Shareholding Percontage in the Company equal to the Sharehaolding Percentage of such
Affected Shareholder immediately prior to the Proposed lssuance, computed on 2 Fully Diluted Basis
(“Proportionate Sharcholding ).

15) Therights of each Affected Shareholder as set forth in Article 14 shall not apply to:

a) issuance of Shares to employees of the Company in accordance with employee stock options approved by
the Board under the ESOP Scheme;

b) theissuance of any Shares pursuant to the conversion of any Equity Securities issued by the Company prior
to the Proposed [ssuance; and/or

¢} issuance of the Addilional Subseription Shares to the investor and HBM in accordance with Article 13.
d) Sharesissued pursuant to any acquisition/merger of business or an entity
16) The Company shall notify a Pre-Emptive Offer to each Affected Shareholder, in writing, within 3 (three) Business
Days of recoipt of alt necessary corporate approvals forany Proposed fssuance {"Pre-Emptive Offer Nolice™).
17y The Pre-Emptive Offer Notice shall state:

a) the number of Equity Securities that such Affected Shareholder is entitled to subscribe to in the Proposed
Issuance;

b} thenature of Equity Securities proposed to be issued;

¢} the price per Equity Security (it being clarified that all Person(s), including the Affected Sharcholders, 1o
whom Equitly Securities are proposed to be issued pursuant to the Proposed lssuance shall be required to
pay the same price per Equily Sccurity}); and

d) thetotal size of the Proposed Issuance and other terms and conditions.

18} Each Affected Shareholder may notify the Company of its willingness to subscribe to all, or any portion, of the
Fruity Securities offered to them in the Pre-Tmptive Offer Notice within 30 (Thirty) days of receipt of the Pre-
Emptive Offer Notice ("Pre-Emptive Cffer Period”), failing which such Affected Shareholder shall e deemed to
have declined the offer to participate in the Proposed Issuance,

19} Any Cguily Securities not subscribed to by the Affected Shareholders pursuant to this Article shall be treated, and
allotted, in accordance with Article 20 to Article 23 below.




Renunciation

20y Each Affected Shareholder shall hove the right to rencunce its right to acguire the Eguily Securities (including any
Cauity Securities declined by an Affected Shareholder) which such Affected Shareholder is entitled to acquire
pursuant to any Pre-Emptive Offer, or etherwise pursuant to Article 18, in favour of any Affiliate of such Affected
Shareholder, provided that:

a) such Affiliate is not subject to any receivership, bankruptcy, insolvency, dissolution, liguidalion or any
similar procecdings; and

k) ihe renouncing Affected Sharcholder and the Affiliate shall be jointly and severally respansible for Lhe
obligations of the renouncing Affected Parly under the Articles, to the extent applicable.

21} The refevant Affiliate and the renouncing Affected Sharcholder shall be bound to execute a Deed as a condition
precedent to such renunciation in favour of, and subscription by, the Affiliate Lo such rencunced Equity Securities.

22) The renouncing Affecied Shareholder undertakes 1o acguire such Eouity Securities prior to the relevant Affiliate
ceasing to he an Affiliate.

Disposal of Unsubscribed Righits

23) Al unsubscribed Equity Securities ("Unsubscribed Secnrities”} pursuant 1o a Proposed Issuance after the Pre-
Emptive Offer Period, may be allotled to any Third Party with the prior written consent of the Promoter and the
Investor and such Third Party shall be required to execute 2 Deed prior to its subscription te any Equity Securifies.

Lien
24) The company shall have a first and paramount fien
a) on every share {not being a fully paid share), for all monies (whether presently payable or not) called, or
payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and

by onallshares {not being Tully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single person, for all monics
presently payable by him or his estate 1o the company.

Provided that the Board of directors may at any time declare any share wholly or in part exempt from the
provisicns of this clause,
?5) The company's lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividend bonuses declared from time to time in respect of
such shares.

26} The company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks {it, any shares an which the company has a lien, providec
that no sale shali be made

a)  unless asum inrespect of which the lien exists s presently payable; or

by wuntil the expiration of fourteen days aiter a notice in writing stating and demanding payment of such part
of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has heen given 1o the registered
holder for the time being of the share or the person entitled thereto by reason of his death of insolvency.

27y To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to transfer the shiares sofd 1o the purchaser
thereot, The putchaser shall be registered as the halder of the shares comprised in any such transfer, The purchasor
shall net be bound 1o see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to the shares be affected by
any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale.

28) The proceeds of the sale shall be roceived by the company and applied in payment of such part of the amount in
respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable. The residue, if any, shall, subject 1o alike lien for sums not
presently payable as existed upon the shares before the sale, be paid to the person eatitled Lo the shares at the date
ofthesale.




Calls on shares

49y The Board may, froim time to lime, make calls upon the members in respect of any monies unpaid on their shares
(whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way of premium) and not by the conditions of
allotment thereof made payahle at fixed times.

Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value ol the share or be payable at less than one month
from the date fixed for the payment ofthe last preceding call.

30 Each member shall, subject 1o receiving at least fourleen days’ notice specifying the time or times and place of
payment, pay to the campany, at the time ar times and place so specified, the amount called on his shares.

31 Acaltmay be ravoked or postponed at the discretion of the Board.

33 A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Board authorising the call was
passed and may be required to be paid by instalments,

33) Thejoint holders of a share shall he jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect thereof.
34) If asum called inrespect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for payment thereof, the person frem

whom the sum is due shall pay interest thevenn from the dav appointed for payment thereot to the time of actual
payment at ten per cent per annum or at suchiowaor rate, if any, as the Board may detorinine.

35) The Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of any such interest wholly orin part.

38) Any sum which by the terms of 1ssue of a share becores payable on allotment or at any tixed date, whether on
account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, shail, for the purposes of these regulations, be
deerned 1o be a cail duly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of issue such sum becomes payable.
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In case of non-payment of such sum, ali the relevant provisions of these regulations as to payment of interest and
expenses, forfelture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had hecome payable by virtue of a call duty made and
notifiecl.

38] The Board may,

a) ifit lhinks fit, receive from any member willing to advance the same, all or any part of the menies uncalled
and unpaid upon any shares heid by him; and

b} upon afl or any of the monies so advonced, may {until the same would, but for such advance, become
presently payable} pay interest at such rate not exceeding, uniess the company in general meeting shal!
otherwise direct, twelve per cent. Per annum, as may ke agreed upon between the Board and the member
paying the sum in advance.

Transfer of shares

Transfer Procedures and Principles
39} Theinstrument of transfer of any Equity Security in the Company shall be executed by or on behalf of both the seller
and purchaser. The seller shall be deemed to romain a holder of the share unti! the name of the purchaser is entered
in the register of membaers in respect thercol. The Company shall not register, acknowledge or take on record any
Transfer of Eguity Sccurities in violation of the provisions of the Articles and all such purported Transiers shail he
void ab initio,
40) The Company shall co-operate fully with the investor in order o consummate any Transler of Couity Securilies
proposed to be undertaken by the Investor in accordance with the Articles and such co-operation shafl include the
use of reasonable efforts to obtain any approvals of Government Authoritics or other Persons that may be required
for the completion of such Transfer, allowing Lhe proposed transferee(s) access 1o the Company, its records and
personnel to conduct due diligence and cngaging and in such other manner as the Investor may reasonably
recuest.
Transfer of Lquity Securities under Article 54 to Article 65, shall be subject to the applicable provisions mentioned
therein and occur ntsuch time(s) and on such date(s) as the transfereq, specilies,
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4) Subject to Article 54 to Article 65, Transfer of Fruity Securities shall occur on at the registered office of the
Company on such date and time as may be netified Lo the Company by the selling Shareholder provided that such
‘fransferis in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, the Articles and applicable Law, The Tollowing actions
shall be completed on the date of such Transfer,

a}

o)

e)

o}

the Company shall convene 2 meeting of its Board or Committee te record the Transfer of the Equity
Securities proposed 1o be Transferred and to register the name of the purchaser of such Equity Securities in
the register of members of the Company:

the proposed purchaser of the Equily Securities to be transferred shalf pay the relevant sale consideration
to the Shareholders selling such Equity Securities, which, in the case of sale under Article 54 to Article 65,
shall be determined in accordance with the provisions therect;

deliver duly executed and stamped share transfer forms in respect of such Transfer of Equity Securities in
the form as prescribed in rufes made under sub-section (1) of section 56;

deliver share certificates evidencing the Equily Securities being transferred to the relevant purchaser is
presented to the Company by the purchaser;

for Transfer made in demat form, the Shareholders transferring the relevant Equity Securities shall defiver
or ensure that instructions are delivered to their depesitary participant to transfer the relevant Equity
Securities of such Seller ta the relevant purchaser's depository account;

file all such forms as may be required under applicable Law in relation to such Transfer, including Form Fe-
TRS with the refevant authorised deaicr, and present a duly acknowledged copy thereof to the Caompany, if
the Transfer of Equily Securities involves a transfer of Equily Securitics to or from a Person who is not
resident in India from or to a Person who is resident in India; and

for Transfer of Equity Securities under Article 54 to Article 65, the ROFO Transferee, Tag Transferee (as the
case may be) shall deliver the duly executed Deed of Adherence for Transfers to the Company.

43) In the event of the Inveslor and/or its Affiliates Transferring ail or any of the Investor Shares of the Company to a
third party and the Promoters providing representations and warrantics to such third party with respect to the
business and operations of the Company, the Promoters may procure a buyer's or seller's representations and
warranties insurance policy from a reputed insurance company 10 cover any losses that may arise on account of a
breach of the business related representation and warranties being provided by the Promoters and/or the
Company and require alf selling Sharehelders (induding the Investor) to share the costs of such representation and
warranties insurance policy amongst themselves in proportion to their inter se shareholding in the Company on a
Fully Diluted Basis.

Restrictions on Transfer

44} Subject to Article 53, no member of the Promoter Group shall Transfer any Equity Securities held by such Person,
without the prior written approval of the Investor until the expiry of 7 {seven} years (“Lock-in Period™) lrom Lhe
Fffective Date,

45) Transfer of Equity Securities hetd by any member of the Promoter Group under Article 44, shall be in accordance
with Article 54 1o Article 65,

46) The Investor and its Affiliates shall not Transfer any Investor Shares to any Third Party il the 1st (Tirst) anniversary of
the Effective Date.

Provided that, any Transfer of the Investor Shares

a)
i}

b}

to a Third Party by the Investor or its Afiiliates shall be in accordance with Article 54 to 62,
to a Competitor shail require the prior written consent of the Promoter, except as set forth in Article 48; and

Provided further that the Investor and its Affiliates shall be entitled to Transfer any or all of the Investor
Shares to any Third Party, including a Competitor, without any restrictions, in one or more tranches, al any
time after expiry of the Exit Period if:

an PO has not been completed prior to the expiry of the Exit Poriod inaccordance with Article 122 to Articie
140: and

the Investor and its Affiliates that hold Equity Securities have otherwise not been able to sell all of the

)
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Investor Shares prior to the expiry of the Exit Period through an exit option offered by the Company m
accordance with Article 141 to Article 147,

A1y tintentionally left blank]
“8) [Intentionally left blank]

) The Other Contiruing Shareholders may Transier all or some of their Equity Securitios to any Person, subject to the
following conditions;

a) the Promoters shall have a right of first refusal to acquire alt of the Equity Securities sought to be
Transferred by the relevant Other Conlinuing Shareholder{s) at a price per Fguity Security equal to or
greater than the price per Equity Security offered by the propesed Third Party transferee;

k) il the Promoters do not exercise their right or fail to acquire the Equity Secunties under Article 49 {a), then
any Transfer of Equity Securities by such Other Continuing Shareholder(s) to a Third Party shail require the
prior written approval of the Investor, provided, however, that, if the Investor fails to notify the refevant
Other Continuing Shareholder(s) of its approval or rejection of such proposed Transfer of Equity Securities
to a Third Party within a perfod of 60 (sixty) days from the date of receipt of & written application seeking
such consent, the [nvestor shall he deemed to have approved such Transfer;

¢)  the approval under Article 49(b) shall o valid for the specific Transfor in relation to which the consent is
sought; and
d} notwihstanding anything to the contrary in this Arocle
i} the Other Continuing Shareholders shall not Transfer their Equity Securities to the investor and/ or its
Aftiliates;
i) Investor shall not directly or indirectly solicit, offer to buy or buy the Equity Securities held by the
Other Continuing Shareholders;
without the prior written consent of the Promoter.
50) HBM rmay Transfor all, or some, of its Lauity Securilies Lo o Third Party, subject to the lollewing conditions:

a) the Promoters shall have a right of first refusal to acquire all of the Equitly Sccurities sought to be
Transferred by HBM within a period of 90 (nincty) days from the date of issue of notice by HBM to the
Promoters at a price per Equity Secunty egual to or greater than the price per Equity Security offered by the
proposed Third Party transferee;

b) if the Promoters do not exercise thelr right as provided in Article 55(a) above and/or fail to acquire the
Equity Securities sought to be Transferred by HBM for any other reason, then HBM shall be entitled
toTransfer the Equity Securities to any Third Party; and

¢} notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Article,
i} HBM shall not, at any time, be permitted to Transfer its Equily Securities to the thvestor and/ or its
Adfiliates;
) Investor shall not directly or indirectly solicit, offer to buy or buy the Equily Securities held by HBM;
without the pricr writlen consanl of the Promoter.

51} The Shareholders and/or any of tharr Atfiliates holding any Equity Securities or voting interests in the Company,
shall not Transfer any of their Equity Securities or voting interests in the Company to any Person, except as
permitted under the Articles.

52) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Articles,

ay the Transfer restrictions in the Articlos shail not he capable of being avoided by the holding of Equity
Securities indirectly through a company or cther entily that canitself or any interesttherein be seld in order
to dispose of the Equity Securities or an interest therein free of such restrictions;

b} Any such Transfer, issuance of ather disposal of any Equity Securities (or other interest) resulling in any
change in the Contrel ar ownership, directly or indirectly, of the Shareholders, or of any Affiliate of any
Shareholder which hoids, directly or indireclly, any Equity Securities of the Company at the time of the




Transfer, shall be treated as heing a Transter of the Equity Securities held by such Person, and the prowvisions
of the Articles that apply in respect of the Trans{er of Equity Sceurities shall thereupon apply in respect of
theshares soheld,

Permitted Transfers

33) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Articles the fellowing Transfers of Equity Securities are permitted
under the Articles and are not subject to any restrictions (“Permitted Transfer”), provided transferring Party shall

give o
Equity
transte

aj

b)

d}

e}

fi

the other Sharcholders at least 7 (seven) calendar days prior written notice of its intention to Transfer its
Securities and also provide details of the relationship between the transferring Parly and the intended
rees:

Transfer by the Investor, HBM or any member of the Promoter Group to its Affiliate or any inter se Transfors
between such Affifiates, provided that

i) the Affiliate(s) involved in such Transfer are not subject to receivership, bankruptey, insolvency,
dissclution, liquidation cr any similar proccedings.

i the Affiliate and such fransferring Shareholder shall be bound 1o execute a Deed simulianeous 1o
such Transfer.

i) the transterring Shareholder and the Affiliate shall continue to he jointly and severally responsible Tor
all the obligations of the transferring Sharchaolder,

Transfer by way of a pledge of Equity Securities by the Promoter and/or any member of the Promoter Group
to a scheduled commoercial bank registered under the (Indian) Banking Regulation Act and regulated by the
Reserve Bank of India in arder 1o raise any capital solely for the purpese of the Promoter and/or such
member of the Promoter Greup subscribing to further Equity Securities;

Transfer by way of a sale by the Promaoter and/ or the Promoter Group and such sale does not result in the
sale of more than 5% (five per cent) of the aggregate shareholding of the Promoter Group as on the
Effective Date;

Transfer made by the Promoter or the Promoler Group as part of an IPO and in compliance with the
provisions of Article 140; and

Transfer made by the Promaoter to

i} any Person {other than an individual) provided that such Person is wholly-owned, and Contrelled, by
1he Promoter and/ or the Promoier Family Members; or

1y a trust which has been created exclusively for estate planning purpeses and if the trustees of such
trust are the Promoter and/ or the Promoter Family Members and the beneficiaries of such trust are
Promoter Family Members,

if a Person ceases to he an Affifiate of a Party or becomes a Controfling Entity, or a Controlled Entity, and
such Person is holding Equity Securitics in accordance with the Articles by virtue of being on Affilate of a
Sharehalder (hercinafter called the “Parent Shareholder”) then, farthwith thereafior, the Affiliate and the
Parent Shareholder shall inform the Company of such cessation ar event of becoming a Controlled Entity or
Controlling Entily and the Parent Sharehelder shall, wilhin 10 {ten) days of such cessation, or becoming
Controdted Entity or Controlling Entity acquire or cause any of its other Affiliates to acguire, full and
unconditional title in and to all of the Equity Securities then held by such Person,

It is clarified that, upon exercise of the right by the Promoter, HBM or Investor under Article 53(a), the
refevant Affitiate(s) who acquire such Equity Securities, shall be deemed to be part of the Promoter Group,
HBM or the Investor, as applicable.




Right of First Offer

51} Subject fo the provisions of Article 44 1o Articke 53, if any moember of the Promotar Group or the Investor and/or any
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of its Affiliates who are Shareholder(s) desire(s) 1o Transfer all, or part, of the Equity Securities {"Sale Shares”) held
by such Person (the "Transferring Sharcholder”) to any Third Party, the Transferring Sharehelder shall give written
notice to the ROFO Holder offering such Sale Shares to the ROFQ Holder,

Forthe purpose of Article 54 (o Article 62, "ROFO Holder” shall mean:
a) thelnvestos, if the Transferring Shareholder is a member of the Promoter Group; and
b) the Promoters, if the Transferring Shareholder is the Investor and/or its Affiliate.

The ROFO Holder shall have, for a period of 30 (thirty) calendar days after receipt of any such notice ("Optien
Period”), an option to purchase either directly or through any of its / their Affifiates, ail the Sale Shares offered by
the Transferring Shareholder (“Right of First Offer).

If the ROFO Holder desires to exercise its Right of First Offer, the ROFO Holder shall, during the Option Period, notify
the Transterring Shareholder the price per Eguity Security at which such ROFO Holder is willing to purchase the
refevant proportion of the Sale Share ("Option Price”) by delivering & written notice ("Option Exercise Notice) io
the Transferring Sharcholder.

It the Transferring Sharehotdoer agrees to Transter the Sale Shares held by it at the Optien Price, it shall notify the
ROFO Holder inwriting of such acceptance ("Acceptance Notice"} within 15 {fifteen) Business Days of receipt of the
Option Exercise Notice.

The ROFO Holbder and the Transferring Shareholder shall consummate the sale and transfer of the Sale Shares from
the Transferring Shareholder to the ROFO Holder within a period of 90 (ninety) days from the date of the
Acceptance Notice.

If:
a) 1he ROFO Holder fails to exercise the Right of First Offer during the Option Period;

b) 1ihe ROFO Holder notifies the TransTerring Shareholder in writing that it has decided nol to exercise the
Right of First Offer;

¢} theTransferring Sharcholder is not wiiling to Transfer the Sale Shares at the Option Price; or

d} theTransferring Sharcholder was willing to Transfer the Sale Shares at tha Cption Price but the ROFO Holder
fails to purchase the Sale Shares by payment of the Option Price in immediately available funds, within 80
(Ninety) days of the date of receipt of the Acceptance Notice,then, the Translerring Shareholder shail he
free to sell the Sale Shares, to any Third Party (the “ROFQ Transferee”) on such terms and conditions as it
may, in its sele discretion, deem fit, provided, however, that, il the ROFO Holder had issued an Option
Exercise Notice, the Transfer of tha Sale Shares to the ROFO Transleree shall be at a price which is al least 2%
mgher than the Option Price.

In the event that the Transferring Shareholder does not entar into binding agreements for the Transfer of the Sale
Shares 1o the ROFO Transferee within 6 {six) months from the date of receipt of the Option Exercise Nolice or from
the expiration of the Option Period, whichever is earlier ("Execution Period”) or, If after executing such binding
agreements the Transferring Shareholder does not complete the Transfer of the Sale Shares to the ROFO Transferee
within 6 (six) months from the datc of entering into such hinding agreements {("Transfer Periad”), then the
Transferring Shareholder shall not initinte any process {including negotiations with a Third Party) in refation tc a
proposed sale of any Equity Securitics held by it to any Third Party for a period of 180 {one hundred and eighty)
days from the expiry of the Execution Period {if no binding agreements were executed with the ROFO Transferce
wilhin the Execution Periad) or the Transfer Period (if after exccution of hinding agreements, the Transfer of Safe
Shares io the ROFC Transferee was not completed within the Transfer Period) (“Coel Off Period ™).

Any Transfer of Equity Securities by the Transferring Shareholder post the expiry of the Cool Off Period will he
subject to the provisions of Article 44 to Article 52 and Arlicle 54 1o Article 62 including the tendering of the notice
under on the ROFO Holder.
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Tag Along Right

63y Subject 1o Article 44, 45, 54, 55 and 56, if any memberds) of the Promoter Groun (74 Selling Sharcholder(s)”)
elect{s} to seil any of the Equity Securities held by such Person in the Company to a Third Party other than as
permitied interms of Article 53:

a) theTA Sclling Shareholder(s} shall issue written notices (each, “fag Along Notice™) to the Investor and HBIM,
through the Promoter, which shall state

i) the identity of the proposed Third Party purchaser {"Tag Transforee”);
i the price per Equity Security that the Tag Transferee has offered to pay {“Tag Along Price”): and

i) the number of Equity Securitics and the Shareholding Perceniage propesed to be sold o the Tag
Transferce by such TA Selling Shareholde) (s) (“TA Shares™);

b} upon receipt of a Tag Along Notice, cach of the invesior and HBM ("Tag Offerees”) may issue a notice, in
writing, to the Promoter ("Tag Along Response”) within 30 (Thirty) days of receipt of the Tag Along Notice
(the "Tag Along Period ™) stating that erither;

i) such Tag Offeree and/or its Afliliates (who hold Equity Securities) has elected o sell all or any part of
the Tag Along Entitlement held by them (the “Tag Along Shares”) to the Tag Transferce on the same
terms and conditions as specified s the Tag Along Notice, and the number of Tag Along Shares it
(together with its Affiliates, if applicable) proposes Lo sell; or

i) such Tag Offeree is not desirous of selling any Eguity Securities held by it to the Tag Transferee
pursuant to the Tag Along Notico;

¢) the “Tag Along Entitlement” of Investor and HBM shall be determined based on the pro-rata portion of
Investor and HBM Shares (based on the inter-se Shareholding of such Investor or HBM and its Affiliates vis-
a-vis the Shareholding of the Promoter Group, at such time), i.e. such number of Equity Securitics as
determined by multiplying the numboer of investor or HBM Shares respectively, by a fraction, {A) the
numerator of which shall be TA Shares, and (B} the denominator shall be the total number of Equity
Securities held by the Pramotoer Group; and

d) if a Tag Along Response is issued under Article 63 (b) by any Tag Offerce for sale of Tag Along Shares, the TA
Seiting Sharehoider(s) shall cause the Tag Transferee to purchase from such Tag Offeree the relevant Tag
Along Shares tendered Tor sale by such Tag Offeree, simultanecusly or belore the purchase of the TA Shares
by the TA Selling Shareholders, on the same terms as offered to the Ta Solling Shareholder {provided,
however, that, notwithstanding any terms agreed between the TA Selling Shareholder and the Tag
Transferee, in any sale of Tag Along Shares under the Articles, the nvestor, HBM and their respective
Affiliates shali not be required to provide any representations and warranties to the Tag Transleree in
relation to the Company and/or its business or operations).

64) In the evenl the Tag Transferee is unwilling or unable to acquire all the TA Shares and the Tag Alang Shares, upon
the terms and conditions menticned in the Tag Along Netice, the number of Equity Securities to be transferred by
the Tag Otferee and TA Selling Sharcholder shall be reduced in proportion to their respective Shareholding, to the
number of Eguity Securities which the Tag Transferee is willing to acquirg, i.c. the number of Eguily Securities
which the Proposed Transferee is willing 1o acquire, multiplied by a fraction

a)  where, for the TA Selling Sharcholder, the numerator shall he TA Shares and the denominator shall be the
sum of the TA Shares and the Tag Along Shares, and

b} where, for the Tag Offeree, the nurerator shall be Tag Along Shares and the denominator shall e sum of
the TA Shares and the Tag Along Shares.

a}  aTag Along Response has been issued under Article £3(h) and the sale of the Tag Along Shares to the Tag
Trans{eree is not completed within 90 (ninety) days of the date of receipt of the Tag Along Response by the TA
Selling Shareholder(s); or
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b} no Tag Along Response has been issued within the Tag Along Pericd and sale of the TA Shares to the Tay
Transieree is not completed within 90 (ninety) days of the date of expiry of the Tag Along Peried, then, unless
otherwise agreed inwriting by {i) all such Tag Offeress who had issued a Tag Along Response clecting to sell any
Tag Along Shares (if a Tag Along Response was issued); and (i) the Investor and HBM {if no Tag along response
was issued), the TA Selling Sharcholders’ right to sell the TA Shares and the right of the relevant Tag Offerees to
sell the Tag Along Shares to the Tag Transferee in accordance with the provisions of the Tag Along Notice, shali
lapse and the provisions of Article 63 to Artidle 65 shal) once again apply to a proposed Transfer of the Equity
Securitios ownoed by the TA Selling Sharehelder(s).

Involuntary Transfer

B6) If anInsclvency Event has occurred with respect to any Shareholder {"Insolvent Shareholder”}, and such Insohvency
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Fvent is not stayed by a compelent court on appeal within @ period of 90 (ninety) calendar days from the
occurrence of the Insolvency Event, one or more Affiliates and/or a Parent Party of such Ihsolvent Sharcholder shall
acguire alf Equity Securities held by such insolvent Shareholder.

I{ the Insolvent Shareholderis a Sharcholder from the Other Continuing Sharehelders or the Promoter Group:

a) then such insolvent Sharehoider shall first serve a notice Lo Transfer all of the Equity Securities held by it in the
Company o the Promoter at the Falr MarkeT Value of the Equity Sceurities.

bY If the Promoter or any member of the Premoter Group nominated by the Promoter is not willing to purchagse
any or all the Equity Sccurities of the Insolvent Shareholder, then the Insolvent Shareholder shall serve a notice
on the lnvestor, offering to sell all of the Equity Securities held by it in the Company to the lnvestor at the Fair
Market Value,

¢) If theinvestor is not willing to purchase any or all the Equity Securities of the Insolvent Shareholder, the Investor
and the Promoler {by mutual written agreement) may cause the unpurchased Equity Securities of the Insolvent
Shareholder to be sold at Fair Market Value to a Third Party, provided that such Third Party shall not be a
Competitor, and provided further that the Third Party purchaser shall execute a Deed.

Transmission of shares

G8)

©9)

70)

71

72)

On the death of a Shareholder, the survivor or survivors where the Shareholder was a joint holder, and his nominee
or nominees or legal representatives where he was a Shareholder, shall be the only persons recognized by the
Company as having any title to his interest in the Eguity Sccurities.

Nothing in Arlicle 68 shali release the estate of a deceased joint holder from any liability in respect of any share
which had been joinily held by him with other persons.

Subject to Article 66 and Article 67 (Involuntary Transfers), any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence
of the death or insolvency of a Shareholder may, upon such evidence as may be required by the Company frem time
tao time and subject as hereinafter provided, elect, either to be registered himself as holder of the share or to make
such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent member could have made.

Provided, the Company shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend ragistration as it would have
had under the Articles, if the deccased or lnsolvent Sharehoider had wransferred the share before his death or
insolvency.

if the person so beceming entitled shall elect:

a) to be registered as holder of the share himself, he shall deliver or send o the Company a notice in wiiting
signed by him stating that he so elects.

b)Y transfer the share, he shall Lestify his elaction by executing a Iransfer of the share.

All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations relating to the right to Transfer and the
registration of trapsters of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer as aforesaid as if the death or
insolvency of the Shareholder had not cccurred and Lhe notice or transler were a transfer signed by that
Shareholder.




73y A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder shall be entitled to the
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some dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the share,
except that he shall not, before boing registered as a Shareholderin respect of the share, be entitled in respect of it
to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the Company:

Forfeiture of shares

if a Shareholder fails 1o pay any call, or installment of a call, on the day appointed for payment thereof, the
Company may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of the call or installment remains unpaid, serve a
notice on him reguiring payment of so much of the call or installment as is unpaid, tegether with any interestwhich
may have accrued.

The notice aforesaid shaf)

a) name a further day {not being earlier than the expiry of fourtean days from the date of service of the notice)
on or hefore which the payment required by the notice is to be made; and

b) state that, in the event of non-payment on or before the day so named, the shares in respect of which the
callwas made shall be liable 1o be forfeited.

it the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in respect of wiich the notice
has been given may, at any time thereafter, before the payment required by the notice has been made, be forfefted
by a resclution of the Board to that effect

A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner as the Board thinks fit. At
any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board may cancel the forfeiture on such terms as it thinks fit.

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited shares, but shall,
notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain liable to pay to the company all monies which, at the date of forfeiture,
were presently payable by him to the company in respect of the shares. The liability of such person shall cease if and
when the company shall have received payment in full of all such monies in respect of the shares.

Where the Company chogses to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose the forfeited shares, then

a) a duly verified declaration in writing that the dedarant is a director, the manager or the secretary, of the
company, and that a sharein the Company has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the declaration, shall
be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated as against all persons claiming 1o be entitled to the share;

b} the Company may receive the consideration, if any, given for the share on any sale or disposal thercof and
may execule a transfer of the share in {avour of the person to whom the share is sold or disposed of;

c) thetransfereeshall thereupon beregistered as the holder of the share; and

d} the transferee shall not be bound io see to the application of the purchase money, if any, nor shall his title to
the share be affoerted by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, sale or
disposal of the share.

The provisions of these requlations as to forfeiture shall apply in the case of nonpayment of any sum which, by the
terms of issue of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on account of the nominal value of the share or
by way of premium, as if the same had been payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Alteration of capital

Subject to the restrictions under the Articles, Lhe Company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase
the share capital by such sum, te be divided inta shares of such amount, as may be specified in theresolulion.

81} Subjecitothe provisions of section 61 and the Articles, the company may, by ordinary resolution,—

a} consclidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares;

b) convert alt or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into Tully paid-up shares of
any denomination;
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¢) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them inte shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the
maomarandm;

d) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have net been taken or agrecd Lo be
taken hy any person.

£2) Subject tothe restrictions underthe Articles, where shares are converted into stock,

a} the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part theteot in the same manner as, and subjectto same
regulations under which, the shares from which the stock arose might before lhe conversion have been
transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so that such
minimum shall not exceed the nominal amount of the shares from which the stock arose.

b) the holders of stock shall, according 1o the amount of stock held by them, have the sama rights, privileges
and advantages as regards dividends, voting at meetings of the Company, and other matters, as if they
heldihe shares from which the stock arose; but no such privilege or advantage {except participation in the
dividends and profits of the company and in the assets on winding up) shall be conferred by an amount of
stock which would not, Hf existing in shaies, have conferred that privilege or advantage.

¢y such of the vegulations of the company as are applicable w patd-up shares shall apply 1o stock and the
words “share” and “shareholder” in those requlations shall indude “stock” and “steck-holder”
respectively.

83} Subject to the restrictions under the Articles, the Company may, by spacial resolution, reduce in any manner its
share capital, any capital redemption reserve account or any share premium account.

Capitalisation of profits
84) Subject to the restrictions under the Articles, the Company in general mecting may, upon the recomimendation of
the Board, resolve

a) thatitis desirable o capitalise any part of the amount for the time being standing to the credit of any of the
Company's reserve accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise available for
distribution;and

b) thatsuchsum be accordingly set free for distribution amongst the Shareholders .

¢} The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall he applied, subject to the provision contained in the
Articles, either in or towards

i) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such Shareholders
respectively;

i} paying up in full, unissued shares of the Company to be ailotted and distributed, credited as fufly
paid-up, to and amongstsuch Sharehoiders in the proportions aforesaid;

iy partlyin the way specified in Articte Ba{A)(i) and partly inthat specified in Article 84{c){i);

ivi A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account may, for the purposes of this
Article, be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be ssuad to Sharcholders of the company as
{ully paid bonus shares;

85} Where, pursuant to Article 84 above a resoiution has been passed, the Board shal

A make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised thereby, and all
allotments and issues of fully paid sharesif any; and

b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.
86) Subject to therestrictions in the Articles, the Board shall have power

a)  tomake such provisions, by theissue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or otherwise as it thinks
fit, for the case of shares becoming distributable in fractions; and




b} toauthorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the Shareholders entitded therato, into an agreementwith

the company providing for the allotinent to them respeclively, credited as fully paid-up, of any further
shares to which they may be entitied upon such capitalisation, or as the case may cequire, for the paymoent
by the company on their behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions of profits
resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their existing
shares;

81 Subject to the Articles, any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and birding on such
Sharcholders,

Management

8t Composition of the Board:

a}

k)

)

e}

K

The First Direclors of the Company are Dr. I Ranga Raju, Mr. N. Ravindra Varma and Mr, G. 5. Raju

The Board shall consist of 7 (Seven) Directors and shall be constituted by Persons nominated/ appointed by

the Investors, Promotoers and the Independent Directors,

i) Subject to Article 161, the Investor shall have the right to nominate 2 {two) Director(s) on the Board
{"tnvestor Director{s)").

i) The Promoter shall have the nght to nominate 3 fthree) Director(s) on the Board ("Promoier
Director{s}”).

i) The Board shall consist of 2 (two) independent directors {as defined under the Act) (“Independent
Directors”).

The total number of Investor Directors cannot exceed the total number of Promoler Direclors at any time

whatsoever.

The chairman of the Board {"Chairman™) shalt at all times be nominated by the Promoter from among the

Promoter Directors. The Chairman shall preside over every meeting of the Board and Shareholders. The

Chairman shafl not have a casting vote.

If any Investor Director or Promoter Director is reguired 1o retire by retation in accordance with the Act, the

respective Investor or Promoter who nominates such Director shall also have the right to nominate the

retiring Director again or a new nominoe in place of the retiring Director.

The Invesior or the Promoter entitled to nominate Directors, shail be entitled to remove any or alt of such

Pirectors and nominate another nominee or nominees in place of such Director.

In the event of any vacancy being caused in the office of a Director nominated by the [nvestor or Promoter,

such vacancy shall be filled by a nominee of the Investor or Promoter respectively.

Subject to the Articles, including Article 88(b)(i), Article 88(b)(ii), Article 88(c) and Article 88(e) no investor

Director shall e removed from office other than:

i) in accordance with Article 88(f) anct Article 88({g); or

i) by rotation, subject to the rights of the Investor in Article 88(b){i), Article 88(b){ii), Article 88(c) and
Article 88(c} or

iy with the prior written consent ot the Investor.

All Directors of the Company shall be entitied by notice in writing addressed to the Board to nominate

alternate directors to actin their place during the absence of such Directors and the Board shall, on recaipt

of such notice, appoint such nominees as alternate divectors to those Directers.

Any nomination for appointment or removal of an Investar or Promoter Director, shall be effected by notice

in writing to the Board by the authonzed representative of the Inveslor or Promoler. Such appointmaent

of removal shall take effect immiedialely upon delivery of consent for appointment or resignation by the

respective Investor or Promoter Director to the Board.

Subject to the provisions of section 149 and Article 88, the Board shall have power at any time, and from

time to lime, to appoint a person as an additional director, provided the number of the directors and

additional directors tegether shall not at any time exceed the maximum strength fixed Tor the Board by the

articles, Such person shall hold office only up to the date of the next annual general meeting of the

company but shall be eligible far appointment by the company as a director at that meeting subject to the

provisions of tha Act.
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m}

The Promoter shali at all tirmes retain the right to appoint the chief exccutive officer of the Company and the
Subsidiary. The Parties agree and undertake that the removal of Mr. Krishnam Raju Kanumuri as the chief
executive officer of the Company and the Subsidiary will require the consent of the Investor and the
Chairman.

Any Financial Institution / Bank granting loans to the Company shall be entitled to nominate and from tirme
substitute in place of such nominated director one or more individuals as Directors on the Board of the
Company, if the Company fails to meet its obligaticn i paying interesl and/or instaliment or instailinents
and/or other muneys payable to Finandial Institution /Bank, and while holding such office, such nominated
director shal! not be liable to retirement by rotation.

89) Board of Directors:

&)
b}

i)

2)

The Directors shali not pe required 1o hold any qualification shares.

The remuneration of the Directors shail, in so far as it consists of a monthly payment, be deemed to accrue

on a day-to-day basis. In addition tc the remuneration payable to them in pursuance of the Act, the

Directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by thom:

i} in attending and returning from meoetings of ihe Board of Directors or any committee thereof or
general meetings of the company; or

i) inconnection with the business of the company

A Director other than a Wholetime Director and the Managing Director, may receive a sitting fee for

attending meetings of the Board or committees thereof, such sum as may be decided by the Board of

directors thereof which shall not exceed one lakl rupees per meeting of the Board or comniittee thereof.

All cheques, promissory hotes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments, and all

receipts for monies paid fo the company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or otherwise

execuled, as the case may be, by such person and in such manner as the Board shall fram time to time by

resolution determine.

Every director present al any meeting of the Board or of a committee therecf shalt sign his name in a book

to be kept for that purpose. Where a Director attends any meoting of the Board o of a committee thereof

through a video conferencing or other audio visual means, the Company Secretary shall make note of the

attendance of the Directorin the book keptfor that purpose.

90} Without prejudice to the general powers under the Act and the Articles:

aj

Ia}

the Directors may from time to time and at any time, subject to the restrictions contained in the Act,
defegate to managers, secretanes, officers, assistants and other employees or other persons (including any
firm of body corporate) any of the powers authorized and discretions for the time being vested in the
Direclors; and

The Directors may authorize any such delegate as aforesaid to sub delegate all or any of the powers,
auwthorities and discretions for the time being vested in them.

91} The Directors shall keep alt Information and ather material piovided to them in relation to the Company and its
business confidential and shall use such Information only for carrying out the purposes of this Agreement or
discharging their duties as Directors of the Company provided, however, that, the Directors shall be entitled to
disclose such information to their appointing Shaieholdeors,

82) Constitution of Committees

a) Gencral
I} The Board shall constituic 1 {One) or more committees with such power as the Board may delegate 1o such
commitiees including but notlimited 1o Audit Committec, Nomination and Remuneration Committes, and
CS5R Committee, in accordance with applicabie Law,
i} Each committee (except for the Audit Committee} shall comprise of at teast 1 {One) Investor ireczer and 1
(One) Promoter Director.
i) The minutes of the meetings of the commitlec along with actions taken pursuant theroto shall be placed

v}

for noting before the immediately succeeding Board Meeting,
Subject to the provisions of this Articie, the provisions with respect {o the constitution and proceedings of
the Board under the Articles, shall, mutatis mutandis, apply with respect to meetings of a committee oy any
sub-commitlees thereof.
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by Audit Commiitee
i} The Audit Committee shall comprise of 2 (lwo) Independent Directors and 1 (one) Promoter Director or
{one) Investor Director, oh a rotational basis, to be rotated every year from the date of constitution of the
audit committee.
ii} The Audit Comrnittee shall comprise of 2 {two) independent Directors and 1 (one} Investor Director during
the first year of constitution of the audit commitiee.
iy Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated in this Article:
(1Y whenever the audit commilice comprises ane Promater Director, one representative of the investlor
wouid be designated as an invitee to the audit committee ("Invitee™);
{2)  whenever the audit committec comprises one Investor Director, one representative of the Promoter
would be designated as an Invitee; and
{3} Invitee shall be provided with all information provided otherwise to members of the Audit
Commiltee and shall be entitled io participate in meetings of the Audit Committee,
{4)  Invitee shall net have any right to vote at meetings of the Audit Committee.
¢ Neminabion and Remuneration Commities
1 The Nomination and Remuncration Committee shalf cemprise of 1 (One) hhwestor Director and 1 {one}
Promoter Divector and 2 {Two) Independent Directors.
i) Investar and the Promoter will jointly appoint T {one) of the Independent Directors as the chairman of
Remuneration Committee.
d) CSRCommitiee
iy The CSR Committee shall comprise of T {One) Investor Director and 1 {One) Promoter Director and 2 {Twao)
Independent Directors.

Proceedings of the Board

The Board of Direclors may, subject to the Articles, meet Tor the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise
regulateits mecetings, as it thinks fit.

A Director may or secretary on the requisition of a dircctor shall, subject 1o the Articles, summon a mesting of the
Board.
Save as otherwise oxpressly provided in the Act and Article 101 (Affirmative Vote Matters), questions arising al any

meeting of the Board shall be decided by vote of the majority Directors present and voting at which a Quorum is
present.

The cenlinuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the Beard; but, if and so fong as their number is
reduced helow the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the continuing Directors or Director may act
for the purpose of increasing the number of Divectors to that fixed for the guorum, or of summoning a generai
meeting of the Company, but for no other purpese.

All acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a Committee thereof or by any person acting as a Director, shall,
notwithstanding that it may be alterwards discovered that there was some defectin the appointment ef any one or
more of such Directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as
valid as if every such Director or such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

Number of Meetings

a) Atleast 4 (Four) Board Meelings will be held in every calendar year, and at least 1 {One) Board Mecting shall be
held in every calendar guarler, such that not more than 120 {One Hundred Twenty) days lapse between any 2
{Two) Roard Mectings.

b} Not more that 45 {Farty Five) calendar days shall elapse between the end of o calendar guarter and the next
Board Meeting.

Notice and Place of Meetings

a) Notice of each Board Mecting together with a written agenda for such meeting, shall be sent to all Directors,




b}

and shall be given notless than 7 (Seven) Business Days prior 1o the date on which the meeting is proposed to
he hicld,

A Board Meeting may be conwvened with shorter notice provided that consent of at least 1 {one} Investor
Director and 1 (one) Promoter Director is obtained in writing and the agenda for such meeting has been sent to
each Director,

Provided that a meeting of the Board may be called at shorler notice to transact urgent business subject to the
condition that at least one Independent Director, if any, shall be present at the meeting.

Provided further that in case of absence of Independent Directors from such a meeting of the Board, decisions
taken al such a meeting shall be circulated to all the Directers and shall he final only on ratification thereof by at
jeast one Independent Director, if any.

)

2

f)
700)
a)

)

107)

No business ¢an be conducted at the relevant Board Meeting unless the same has been specified in the written
agenda circulated to the Directors together with the notice, unless discussion of such husiness has heen
approved by at least 1 {One) Investor Director and 1 (One) Promoter Director present at the relevant Board
Meeting,

No business can be conducted if ne Investor Director er no Promoter Director is present at any Board Meeting,
unless the same was speciied in the written agenda circudated together with the notice for such Board Meeting
ar if such business was approved by the investor or Promoter in writing prior to the relevani Board Meeting,

Board Meetings will be held at the registered office of the Company unless otherwise mutually agreed upon by
the Direciors.

Board Meelings may ke attended by telephonic conference orvideo conference, as appiicable under the Law.

Quorum

Quorum for a Board Meeting shall be onc-third of its total strength {any fraction contained in that cne third
being reunded off to the next higher number} or 2 {Two) Directors, whichever is higher, provided, however,
subject to Article 100{b), no quorum shati be deemed to be present unless atleast 1{One) investor Director and
1 {One} Promoter Director are present at the meeting ("Quorum™}.

If at a Board Meeting, no Quorum is present, the meeting shall stand adjourned to the samce day, at the same
time of the following week {“Adjourned Board Meeling”). If any such postponed day is a holiday, then the
Adjourned Board Meeting will be held on the next Business Day following such holiday.

If, at such Adjourned Board Meeting, an [hvestor Director and a Promoter Director are not present within one-
half of an hour of the time appointed for the meeting, then the Directors prosent at such meeting shall
constitute the Quorum and the meeting may proceed with respect to all business stated in the agenda other
than any item relating to an Affirmative Vote Matter not otherwise approved in writing by the investor prior to
such the Adjourned Board Meeting as if a Guorum was duly present at such Adjourned Board Meeting,

Affirmative Voie Matters

Subject to Article 161, the Company will not, and the Company shall procure that its Subsidiaries will not
applicable), undertake any of the following actions ("Affirmative Vote Matters”), unless, subject to Article
101(h}, such action has heen agreed at a Board Meceting with the affirmalive vote of at least 1 (once) Investor
Director or in a General Meeting with the affirmative vote of the authorised representative of the Investor at
such General Meetings nominated by the lnvestor or has been otherwise agreed to in writing by an authorised
representative of the Invasior:

i) Any amendment to the Articles of the Company or its Subsidiares other than an increase in aulhornsed
share capital of the Company not requiring an affirmative vote in teyms of Article 100{a){iv};

) Any merges, de-merger, acquisition, restructuring, consolidation, voluntary winding up or dissolution of
the Company or its Subsidiary;

iii} Creation of any Encumbrance over, o1 Transfer of, any of the assets of the Company and/or its Subsidiaries
or grant to any third party, any rights, privileges or licenses over any their respective assets or rights or
property other than: (i) in the Ordinary Course for an amount not exceeding Rs. 50,000,000 (Rupees Fifty
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vi)

wvii

Million); or (i} to secure any borrowing which has been authorised under the annual business plan or
budget approved by the Board;

Any capital raise including by way of issuance of debt or debl instrument for an amount exceeding Rs.
200,000,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Million) ar any issuance of Eguity Securities of granting any right to
acquire Equity Securities in the Company (whether by contract or otherwise, but excluding isstance of any
Shares to an employee of the Company pursuant to an empicyee stock option scheme which is in existence
on the Effective Date or which has been subsequently approved and adopied by the Board in accordance
wilh the Articles;

Any buy backs, reduction / re-classification of the Share Capital, redemption of any securities of the
Company, splits (excluding any split of share certificates), debt restructuring involving conversion into
Shares, ineach case, whether as a public offering or private sale;

Any decision relating to creation of any new emplayee stock aption scheme (ahich was notin existence an
the Effective Date), including the terms and conditions thereof and any issuance of Shares pursuant to such
new employee stock option scheme and any material alleration of the terms of the existing employee
option scheme;

{a) The minimum floor price of the Shares {or Equity Securities) ot which the Company can procead with the
proposed (PO, and (b the size of the proposed (PO, i in the proposed 0 all of the Investor Shares cantiot
be offered as part of tha offer for sale component of such IPO;

vii)) The Business Plan and annual budget of the Company and, to the extent that any of its Subsidiaries have an

xi)

xii)

annual business plan and/or budget, the annual business plan andfor budget of such Subsidiary and, any
modification or amendment of the above and, any action by the Company or any Subsidiary (as applicable)
which deviates or at the date of initiation of such action is reasonably likely to result in a deviation from any
of the parameters stated in the approved Business Plan and/or annual budget by more than 10%, but
excluding any actien undertaken in terms of an existing contract executed by the Company with its
custoemers and the incurrence of capital expenditure not requiring an affirmative vote under Article 1010a);

Disposition or acquisition of any asset (including, but not {imited 1o, intellectual property rights) or any
business undertaking for a consideration in excess of Rs, 50,000,000 (Rupees Fifly Million) in a single
transaction or in excess of an aggregate value of Rs. 200,000,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Million) in a given
financial year,

Any investments (or acquiring, trading or selling), including, but not limited to, long torm and strategic
investments, in securities including shares, debentures, bonds or other securities in any other company,
any activity in relation to derivative transactions (other than (i} short term liquid investments for treasury
operations in the Ordinary Course (i) derivative transactions entered into as part of overall bank sanction
limits in the Ordinary Course);

Any capital expenditure of in excess of Rs. 150,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred and Fifty Millien) in a given
financial year, unless such capital expenditure has been approved and has been or is proposed to be made
in accordance with the Business Plan;

Payments of any dividends or any otherdistribution in relation to the Shares;

i} Any new transaction or contract with a Related Party incluiding investmentsAoans/advances to Related

Parties, outsourcing arrangements with Related Parties etc. after the Effective Date or any amendment fo
atransaction or contract with a Related Party which is existing as on the £ffective Date;

®iv) Entering into, amending or voluntarily terminating any contract, agreement, undertaking, commitment or

arrangement for operating expenses which contributes {or at the date of entering inte, amending or
terminating, is likely to contribute within the next 3 {three) yoars) 29 or move of the annual expenses of the
Company based on management estimates of the Company; or butexcluding any contrarct entered intain
the Ordinary Course of business for

{1} procurement of raw materials;
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pay roll expenses for employees of the Company;

payments o any contractors supplying contract labour to the Company as per the terms and
conditions of the contract(s) executed by the Company with such contractors;

statutory payments underapplicable Law;

rental agreements other than agreements requiring consent in terms of Article 101 {xiii};

{a) Voluntarily terminating any contract, agreement, undertaking, commitment or arrangement which

gencrates (or at the date of entering into, amending or terminating, is likely to generate within the next 3
(three) years) 5% or more of the annual revenues of the Company; or

(b) entering into, amending or voluntarily terminating any contract, agreement, undertaking, commitment
or arrangement wiich imposes any non-compelition obligations on the Company (other than product
related non-compate obligations undertaken pursuant to revenue contracts entered into with customers
for such products) or restricis the Company's ability to compete in the businesses in which it is engaged or
restricts the Company’s abifity to undertake any other form of husiness or stherwise expand the Business,

xvi} Settiement of any litigation or claim against the Company for an amount in excess of Rs. 50,000,000
(Rupees Fifty Mitlion);

xwiAny amendment to the employment contract of the Chief Executive Officer, as existing on the Ffective
Date other than terms relating to the compensation payable to the Chief Executive Officer;

xviil)Any change in nature of Business carried out by the Company including surrender of any approval or
consent obtained by the Company from a Government Authority that materially impedes the Business or

eniert

ng into any new line of business by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries other than as approved in

the Business Plan;

xix) Any change in the size of the Board, the creation or dissolution of any committees of the Board, the terms of

refere

nce and the delegation of authonty / powers to any committees of the Board (including any

amendments thereto); and

xx) Enteri

ng into any agreement or arrangement to give effect to any of the foregoing matters.

b} The Investor Directors may at any time require that any of the matters set out in Article 101{a) above be referred to

the Sharchold
included in th

ers fortheir approval at a General Meeting and upon receipt of such request, such matier shall not be
e agenda of a Board Meeting and shall not be discussed or, resolved upon, at a Board Meeting or by

circulation in accordance with Article 104, provided, however, that, if it is mandatory under applicable Law to take
up such matter in a Board Meeting, such matter may alse he included in the agenda of a Board Meeting {in addition

to the agenda

of aGeneral Meeting) and discussed in a Board Meeting bul the Company shall not take any action in

relation to such matter without the prior approval of the Shareholders in a General Meeting (which approval must

inclide the af

firmative vote of the authorised representative of the Investor, as appointed by the investor, at such

General Meeting).

c} M any matter
require the ap

is approved by the Board in accordance with Article 101(a}, the said matter shall not once agan
proval of the Investor in a General Meeling of the Company, subject to:

i} compliance with applicable Law; and

i) the provisions of Article 101(b) above

Borrowing
102)  The Board

Powers
s may, from time to time, atits discretion, subject to the provision of section 179 and 180 of the Act

and the Arficles, raise or borrow, and secure the payment of any sum or sums of money for the purposes of the

Company.

103) The Board may raise or secure the repayment of such sum or sums in such manner and upon such terms and
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conditions in all respects as it thinks fit, and in particular by the issue of bonds, perpetuat or other security or
tedecmable debenture or debenture stock, or any mortaage, or other security on the underiaking of the whole
or any part of the property of the Company (both present and fuiure) including its uncalled capital for the tine
being, provided that dehentures with the rights to allotment of or conversion into Shares shall not be issuad
except with the sanction of the Company in General Meeting and subject to the provision of the Act and the
Articles.

Circular Resolution

194)

106)

107)

108)

Subject to the provisions of the Act and ihe provisions of Article 101(h), any matter to be decided by the Board
may be decided by way of a circular resclution, where the draft resolution along with an explanatory note has
been circulated fo all Directors and each Director is provided at feast 7 {seven) days to approve or reject the
proposed resolution unless a shorter period is approved in writing by the Invester Directors and the Promoter
Directors. Subject to the aforesaid, the resolution shall be deemed to have been passed if consented to by a
majority of the Directors, provided that for any of the matters referred to in Article 101{a), the consent of at
least 1 (one) Investor Direclor will also be required.

Shareholders Meetings

General
a) All Shareholders Meetings other than annual gencral meeting shall be called extraordinary general
meeting.

b} The Board may, whenover it thinks fit, call an extracrdinary general meeting.

¢) I at any time directors capahle of acting who are sufficient in number to form a quorum are not within
India, any director or any two members of the company may call an extraordinary general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as posstble, as that inwhich such a meeting may be called by the Board,

Quorum and Adjournment

a) Subjectto the provisions of the Act, no gquoriim at a General Meeting shall be deemed to be present uniess
the auvlhorised representative or proxy of the Investor as nominated by the Investor and the authorised
representative or proxy of the Promoter are present at such meeting ("Quorum for General Meeting”)
unless such requiremoent is waived, m writing, by the Promoter and/ or the Investor (as applicable) in
advance of the relevant General Meeting,

by If at & General Meeting, the Quorum for General Meeting is not present within hall an hour of the time
appointed {for the meeting, then the meeting shall stand adjourned to the same day, atthe same time of the
following week or some other laler date as agreed to hy the tnvestor and the Promoter {"Adjourned
Shareholders Mecting ™).

¢} If any such posiponed day is a holiday, then the Adjourned Shareholders Meeting will be held on the next
Business Day foliowing such heliday.

d) M atsuch Adjourned Shareholders Meeting, Querum tor General Meeting is not present within hall an hour
of the time appoinied for the megting, then the Shareholders present at such meeting shall constitute the
quorum and the meeting may proceed with respecl to all business stated in the agenda tor the meeting
other than any item relating to an Affirmative Vote Matter unless such affirmative vote matter has been
approved in writing by the Investor prior to such Adjourned Shareholders Meeting, asif a guorum was duly
present at such Adjourned Sharcholders Meeting.

Proxy

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-atternay or ether authority, it any, under which itis signed
or a nelarised copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office of the company not
less than 48 hours hefore the time {or helding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in
the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for
the taking of the poll; and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

Aninstrument appainting a proxy shalt be in the form as prescribed in the rutes made under section 105.
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o)

110)

1:2)

113}

114}

115)

116)

117}

A wote given in accordance with the torms of an instrument. of proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the
previous death or insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the
proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given:

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer shall have beon received by
the company atits office before the commencement of the meating or adjourned meeting at which the proxyis
used.

Voting rights at Shareholder Meetings

For the exercise of rights under the Articles, the rights of a Security holder shall he determined with reference to
the aggregate Security Holding Percentage of such Party and its Affiliates and where such Party is an Investor,
with reference to the aggregate Security Molding Percentage of such Investor, the other Investors and each of
theirrespective Affiliates.

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the vime being attachod to any class or classes of shares
a} on ashow of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote; and

b} onapell, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share capital
ofthe company,

Subject to the provisions of the Articies, the Other Shareholders (excluding the Other Continuing Shareholders)
will exercise their voting rights in respect of the Securities at all times in the manner direcied by the Promaoter. In
the event of a failure on the part of Other Shareholders {excluding the Other Continuing Shareholders) to
comply with the directions of the Promoter in relation to the exercise of their voting rights, the Company shal!
not register/recognise the vote of the Other Sharehelders {excluding the Other Continuing Shareholders). The
Other Shareholders {(excluding the Other Continuing Shareholders) agree and undertake that in such a
scenario, the Promoter shall be deemed to have the authority te vote on behalf of the Qther Sharehclders
{excluding the Other Continuing Shareholders).

I the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be
acceptad to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, For this purpose, seniority shall be determined
by the order inwhich the names stand in the register of membors,

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with, pending the
taking of the poll.

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently payable by
him in respect of shares in the company have been paid.

No objection shall be raised on the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at
which the vale objected to is given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for
all purposes. Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chairperson of the meeting, whose
decision shall be final and conclusive

Information and Access Rights
Subject to Article 161, the Investor shal be entitled:

a) to visil, al all reasonable times, the Company Units or the Company’s offices by providing a 7 (seven) day
prior writlen notice to the Company;
b} to examine any books, papers or records of or relating to the Company and its Subsidiaries and to make

copies, extracts and memoranda of any such books, papers or records, al any time and from ttme to time
duringnormal business hours and upon written notice of at feast 3 (three) Business Days to the Company and

) to consult with the officers, members of the management team, attorneys, auditors and employees of the
Company and subsidiaries to enabfe the investor 1o evaluate the Company’s Business and performance, by
providing a written natice of atfeast 3 (lhree) Business Days te the Company.

At all times, the Company shall supply 1o each of the Investor {by email) and the Promoter, in English, with
respect o the Company: N
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120}

1213

IPO
122}
123}

124}
125)

126}

127}

a)  Annual audited consolidaled financial statements, in comphance with GAAP within 90 {ninety) days Trom
the end of a Financial Year (including management reports and all other related documents which were
placed before the Board atthe time of approval of the audited financial statements);

b)  Unaudited consclidated quarterly (and year-to-date) financial statemaents within 30 (thirly) days from the
end of a quarter;

c) Uraudited consolidated monthly financial statements within 30 {thirty) days from the end of a calendar
month;

g} The Business Plan and annual budget {mduding capital expenditure), and other related documents if any
within 7 (seven) days prior to relevant Board Meeting in which a particular plan is to be presented to the
Board;

e} Certified true copies of minutes of alt Board Meetings and General Meetings no later than the time limit
prescribed by applicable Law; and

f) A written notification setting out sufficient details of any material ltigation which may be made or
threatened by or against the Company or any crcumstances which may give rise t¢ the same. Such
notification shati be provided forthwith to the Investor but in no event fater than 7 (scven) Bushiess Days
from the earlicr of the date onwhich the Company or Promaiers become aware of the same.

The above provided for from Article 118(a) to 118(f} above are collactively referred to as “Information”.

The Company shall provide HBM with copies of all notices of mectings and all other documents and materials
circulated to the Board and/or committees thereof at the same time as circulated/provided to the Directors
{(and/or committee members).

On the Effective Date, the Company shall form an Executive Cornmittee (“ExCo”} which shall include
participation from the Promaoter Group, key management team members and the Investor. The ExCe shall meet
on a monthily basis to review business updates and make strategic recommendations.

Exit Commitment

The Company shall use reasonable efforts to provide an exit opportunity to the Investor and HBM allowing the
Investor and HBM o sell the Invesior Shares and the HBM Shares respectively by inittating and completing:

Ay aniPOin accordance with Article 122 to Article 140; or

b)Y aSirategic Sale in accordance with Article 141 1o Article 147.

AnIPO of the Company shall be conducted in accordance with Article 122 to Article 140,

1f, inorder to meet its obligations under Article 121, the Company is desircls of providing the investor and HEM
with an exit by way of an IPO and the Board determites an PO is in the best interests of the sharcholders of the
Company, the Company shall initiate the process fo complete an {PC.

The Promoters and the Investor shall jointly select and appoint a merchant banker for the IPO.

It the Company has not initiated an {PO on or before commencement of the Exit Period, the Investor shall have
the right, exercisable in its sole discretion, at any time (whethes during or after the Exit Period), to cause ihe
Company to initiate the process to complete an IPO, The Investor shall exercise its right under this Article by
issuing a written notice 10 the Company (the “Investor IPO Notice”}.

il an Investor IPO Notice is 1ssued by the Investor, the Company shall take all necessary steps, and any other
actions reasonably requested by theinvesior, to complete an 120 as soon as reasonahbly pracilicable after receipt
of the Investor IPO Netice by the Company.

An IPO under this Article shall be effected for a size and ai a price range per Equity Share as determined in
accordance with Artcdle 133 to Article 136.
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lag}

130)

121

130

133)

134)

135)

136)

137)

138)

139)

Any proposed PO by the Company shall be completed in a manner that would ensure that the Shares are isted
on a Recognized Stock Exchange on or prioy 1o the expiiy of the Bxit Period.

The Promoter and the Investor shall mutually agree and identify a lead advisorio conduct the PO and actas the
bock running lead manager, or one of the book running lead managers to the [PO ("[PO Lead Advisor”). The
Company shall appoint the IPO Lead Advisor selected by the Promoter and the Investor.

I the case of an IPO inlliated pursuant to an Investor IPO Notice, it the Investor and the Promoter are unable to
agree and identify the (PO Lead Advisor within a period of 30 (thirty) days {rom the date of receipt of the
Investor IPO Nolice by the Company, then 2 {two) ldentified Merchant Bankers (1 {one) domestic merchant
banker and 1 {one) international Merchant Banker, selecied by a draw of lots to be presided over by the
campany secretary of the Company and to be conducted at the registered office of the Company In the
presence of a representative appointed by the investar, shall be appointed by the Company, One of the 2 {two)
ldentified Merchant Bankers 1hus appointed shall be jointly selected by the Investor and the Promaoters to be
the IPO Lead Advisor.

The Board shall, in consuitation with the [PO Lead Advisor, appoint intermediaries including undenwariters and
bankersfor consummating the 1PO.

The Company shall not be entitled to appoint any Person as the 1PO Lead Advisor other than in accordance with
this Article.

Subject to Article 127, the terms and conditions of such PO including the size of the issue, the pricing of the
Shares in such 1IPO and related matters shail be determined by the Board {in compliance with the provisions of
Article 101) in consultation with the IPO Lead Advisor(s).

in the case of an IPO initiated pursuant to an Investor iPO Notice, the recommendations of the IPO Lead
Advisor(s} in respect of the terms and conditions of such IFO (including the size of the issue, the pricing of the
Shares in such IPQ and othey related matters) shall be approved in writing by the tnvestor,

The Company, subject to Article 133 and 134 execute an IPO on the ferms and conditions recommended hy the
IPO Lead Advisor(s).

The IPO will be struciured in a manner that permits the Investor, HEM and the Promoler 1o offer for sale the
maximunm number of Equity Securities thaotthey would like to offer in the {PO; provided, however, thal,

a) theinvestorand its Affiliates shall at all times have a preferential right over all other Shareholders (including
the Promoter Group and HBM) to offer up to all of thelr respective Fouity Sccurities in any offer for sale
component of a proposed PO and;

D) HBM and its Affiliales shall at all times have a preferentiat right over all Shareholders (other than the Investor}
to offer up to all of their respective Equity Securities in any offer for sale component ol a propesed iPO.

The Company shall take alf steps (including coordination with the regulators, making necessary filings with
regulators, obtaining consents and Governmental Approvals) required to complete the IPO.

The Company shall undertake all acts and deeds as may be required to effectuate the 1PO, comply with all the
procedures and provide all assistance, including, but not fimited to, preparing and signing the refevant offer
documents, conducting road shows, entering inte such documents, providing all necessary information and
documents necessary for proparing the offer document, and doing such further acis or deeds as may be
necessary or required to complete the IPO in accordance with the Articles and in accordance with applicable
lLaw.

Subjecl to applicable Law, neither the Investor nor any of its Alflliates: (1)) shali be classified as 'promoters’ of the
Company for any purpose, including in the context of the 1PO; and (iiy wili be required to make any disclosure or
representation as a promoter of the Company, in any document to be filed with the relevant regulator in
context of the PO, The relevant members of the Promoter Group shall be named as ‘promoters’ of the
Company in the context of the PO and the Company shail undertake best efforts to give effect to the provisions
of this Article.
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110)

Suhject to applicable Law, all Tees and exzenses required 1o be paid in respect of the IPO including statutory
filings, approvals and registration fees, and fees payable to merchant hanker, underwriters, book-runners,
issle regisirars or other intermediaries involved in any manner in relation to the IPO shall be paid by the
Company.

Strategic sale

i11)

142)

143)

144}

146)

1473

148)

Subject to Article 123 to Article 126, if the Company and the Promoters are desirous of providing the Investor
and HBM with an alternative exit option by arranging a sale of all the Investor Shares and the HBM Shares to any
Person (including the Promoter or any member of the Promoter Group hominated by the Promoter) or a Third
Party at any time during the Exit Period, than the Promaters and the Investor shall jointly select and appointan
Identificd Merchant Banker (being one of the international merchant bankers) to identify potential buyers and
upen cempletion of such a process, the Company shall deliver a notice to the investor and HBM ("Strategic Sale
Notice”}, setting out:

a) the identity of the proposed Third Party acquirer for the acquisition of the Investor Shares and the HBM
Shares (the “Proposed Buyer”),

b the price and other matertal terms ard conditions upen which the Investor Shares and HBM Shares are to
se transterred to the Proposed Buyer;

¢} thetime for completion of the sale as best estimated by the Campany; and
d} anyother material terms and conditions of the proposed sale.

The Company shall deliver the Strategic Sale Notice to the Investor and HBM, respectively, no later than 5 {five)
days from the date of receipt by the Company of the aforementioned details.

Upon receiving the Strategic Sale Notice, the Investor and HBM may request the Company to provide such other
information as may be required by the Investor,

Each of the Investor and HBM shall have a right, exercisable severally at its scle discretion, within 30 (thirty)
Business Days from receiving the Strategic Sale Notice, by a notice in writing to the Company and the Promoter,
10 accept the sale identified in the Stralegic Sale Notice (" Strategic Sale Acceptance Motice™). If a Strategic Sale
Acceptance Notice is issued by HBM, the investor shall not be obliged to offer any Investor Shares for sale in
such Approverd Strategic Sale and vice ver<a,

If the Investor and/or HBM accepts the sale identified in the Strategic Sale Notice ("Approved Strategic Sale”),
the Investor / HBM {as the case may be) shall indicate the number of Investor Shares / HBM Shares that are
proposed to be offered in such sale to the Proposed Buyer. If the Investor and/ or HBM issues a Strategic Sale
Acceptance Notice, the Company and the Promoter shall use their reasenable efforts te procure comnpletion of
the Approved Stralegic Sale on the terms, and wilhin the lime period, set out in the Strategic Sale Notice or
such extended time period as may he required to obtain any Government Approvais.

Subject to the Articles, in the event of an Approved Strategic Sale, if the Proposed Buyer is agreeable, the
Promaoter shall have the right, but not the obligation, to causc the sale of any or all of the Equity Securities held
by the other Sharehoiders as part of the Approved Stralegic Sale ata price per Equity Security equal to the price
heing paid for the Investor Shares and/or HBM Shares (as applicable).

All costs and expenses relating to the Approved Stralegic Sale, to the extent it relates to the sale of Equity
Securities by a Shareholder, shall be borne by the relevant Sharcholder,

Drag aiong right
Subject to Article 149, the Investor may, at any time after the txit Period, initiate a process for the sale of up to
100% of the cutstanding Lauity Securities or 160% of 1he Business or assets of the Company to a third party
purchaser (“Drag Along Sale”) by issuing a notice in writing to Lhe Company and the Promoters ("Drag Along
Netice'), provided, however, that, while definitive documents for such Drag Along Sale can be executed atany
time after the expiry of the Exit Period, the Drag Along Sale shadl only be completed on or after the expiry of 6
{six}years and 6 {six) months from the Effective Date.
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150}

151)

155)

156}

The Investor shall not be entitled to issue & Drag Along Notice if:

a}  the Company has provided the Invesior an exit option in accordance with Article 127 1o Articie 140 or
Article 141 to 147 after the 3rd (third) anniversary of the Fffective Dale;

b) betoreissuing a Drag Along Notice, the Investor has not complied with the provisions of Article 54 to Article
63, provided, however, that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Articles, the provisions of
Article €1 and Article 62 will not be applicable after the expiry of the Exit Period and no Transfer Period’
shall be applicable for any proposed sale of Investor Shares after the expiry of the Fxit Period.

The Company shall be deemed to have provided an exil option in accordance with Article 122 to Article 140 or
Article 141 to 147, if:

a) aniPOwas proposcd by the Company but such PO was not approved pursuani to Article 101 or Article 122
to Article 140; or

b} a Strategic Sale Notice was issued by the Company to the Investor, enclosing one or more Binding Offers
addressed to the Investor and a Strategic Sale Acceptance Notice was notissued by the Investor.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set out in Article 148 to Article 150, the Investor shall be enlitled to
issue a Drag Along Notice if:

a} an IPO was proposed by the Company, approved purstant to Articke 101 {a){wii} but such IPO was not
completed prior to the expiry of the Exit Period; or

b} a Strategic Sale Notice was issued by the Company to the Investor, foliowing which a Strategic Sale
Acceptance Notice was issued by the investor but the Approved Strategic Sale was net completed prior to
the expiry of the Exit Pericd.

If a Drag Along Notice is issued by the Investor, the Promoters and the Investor shall jointly select and appoint
an Identified Merchant Banker {being cnc of the international merchant bankers) to identify potential buyers
and to undertake all preparatory work for such Drag Along Sale within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the
date of issuance of the Drag Alony Notice.

If the Promoters and the Investor are unable to jointly select and appeint a merchant hanker for the Drag Along
Sale within the aforementionad period, then the merchant banker shall be determined by a draw of lots of the
ldentified Merchant Bankers to be presided over by the company secretary of the Company and 1o ba
conducted at the registered office of the Company in the presence of a representative appointed by the
Investor.

The lnvestor shalt shortlist and select the Person with whom the Drag Aleng Sale is to be completed (the
“Selected Acquirer”), provided, that, in the event more than ene Person is interested in the Drag Along Sale, the
Promoters shall be entitled to select the Sclected Acquirer as long as: (i} the price per share offered by the
Selecled Acquirer is not more than 2% {two per cent) lower than the price offercd by the highest bidder,
compared on eguivalent terms; and (i) the identity of the Selected Acquirer and the terms and conditions
offered by the Selected Acqguirer for such Drag Along Sale are acceptable to the Investor.

The terms and conditions for the transachion with the Selected Acquirer shall be finalized by the Investor in
consullation with the merchant banker appointed pursuant to Article 153.

The Investor may, at its sole discretion, require thatl, pursuant to the terms agreed with the Selected Acquirer,
the Promoter Group and/or other shareholders of the Company (including HBM and/or its Affiliates and the
Other Continuing Shareholders) sell Al {but not less than all} of the Equity Securities held by them ("Drag Along
Shares”) to the Selected Acquirer.

The Investor shall, after finalizing the lerms of the Drag Along Sale with the Sclected Acquirer, deliver a written
notice to the Promoter Greup (“Drag Along Sale Notice™), stating:

a) theidentity of the Sclected Acquirer;

P} whether the Promoter Group and/or any other shareholder of the Company are required to sell the Drag
Along Shares to the Selected Acquirer;
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¢l the price per Equity Security at which the Drag Along Shares are to be sold to the Selected Acquirer {which
shall be equal to the price por kguily Securdy at which the Investor Sharey held by the Investor and 1S
Aftiliates (if any) 1o the Selected Acquirer as part of the Drag Along Sale);

d} the relevant terms and conditicns on which such Drag Along Shares are to be sold to the Selected Acquirer
{which shall be identical to the terms and conditions applicable to the sale of the Cquity Securities held by
the Investor to the Selected Acquirer, except that the Investor may not provide any representations,
warranties, indemnities or non-compete/ non solicit covenants to the Selected Acquirer otber than in
relation to the title of the Investor Shares being scld by the investor to the Selected Acquirer and the
authorily of the Investor te enter into such transaction, while the Promoter Group may subjoct to Article 43
be required to preovide additional representations and warranties te the Selected Acquirer, including in
relation to the businass and operations of the Company; and

¢} the transaction documents which are required to be executed by the Promoter Group and/or other
shareholders in relation to the sale of the Drag Along Shares to the Selected Acquirer, if any.

158)  If the Investor issues a Drag Along Notice, the Promoter Group and/or other shareholders {as applicable) shall
be cbligated to seli the Drag Along Shares to the Selected Acquirer free and clear of all Encuimbrances as per the
tarms and conditions stated in the Drag Along Sale Notice and undertake aff such steps as may be necessary or
expedient to ensure the sale of the Drag Along Shares Lo Lthe Setected Acguirer 22 par such terms and condilions
{including but not limited to executing the transaction documenis with the Selected Acguirer as set out in the
Drag Along Notice, it applicable, and ablaining all regulatory approvals as may be necessary to complete such
sale of the Drag Along Shares, if applicable).

159} All costs and expenses in relation to the Drag Along Sale shall be borne by the Persons selling Equity Securitics
pursuant to such Drag Aleng Sale, in proportion to the number of Equity Securitics sold by such Persons
pursuant to the Drag Along Sale.

Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief

Financial Officer
160} Subjectio the provisions of the Act and the Articles,

a) A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief ftinancial
officer;

b} Achiel executive officer may be appeinted by the Board for such term, at such remuneration and upon such
conditions as it may think fit; and any chief exccutive officer so appointed may be removed by means of a
resolution of the Board.

Provided the Promoter shall at all times retain the right to appoint the chiel executive officer of the Company
and the Subsidiary. The removal of Mr. Krishnam Raju Kanurmuri as the chief execulive officer of the Company
and the Subsidiary will require the consent of the Investor Nominee and the Chairman,

a)  The chief financial officer may be appointed by the Board for such term, at such remuneration and upon
such conditions as it may think fit; and the chief financial cificer so appointed may be removed by means
of aresolution of the Board;

b} A company sccretary may be appoinied by the Board for such term, at such remuneralion and upon such
conditions as it may think fit; and any manager or company secretary so appointed may be removed by
means of a resolution of the Board.

Exercise of Rights
Investors

161)  The rights of the investor under Article 88 to Article 92, Article 93 to Article 101, Article 104, and Article 106
with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries shall fali away in the event the Adjusted Sharcholding
Percentage of the investor and its Affiliates in the Company, collectively ceases to be equal to or greater than
10% {ten por cent)
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168}

169)

170)

171}

172)

173)
174)

177)

The Seal

The Board shall provide for the safe cuslody of the seal.

The seal of the company shall be affixed te any instrument, pursuant to the provisions of the Act

Dividends and Reserve

Subsjectio the Articles, the company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by the Board.

Subject to the provisions of section 123 and the Ariicles, the Board may from time to time pay te the members
such interim dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the company.

The Board may, subject to the Articles, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the
company such sums as it thinks fit ac a reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be
applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the company may be preperly applied, including provision
for meeting contingencies or for egualizing dividends; and pending such application, may, at the iike
discretion, either be employed in the business of the company or be imvested in such investments (other than
shares of the company} as the Board imay, from time to time, thinks fit.

The Board may alse carry forward any profits which it may consider necessary not to divide, without setting
them aside as a reserve.

Subject to the rights of persons, if any, eniitled te shares with special rights as to dividends, all dividends shall
be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereef the
dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing is paid upen any of the shares in the company, dividends may be
declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares.

No amount paid or credited as paid on = share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this
regulation as paid on the share.

All dividends shall be apportioned and paid preportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the
shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid; hut if any share is
issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a particudar date such share shall rank for
dividend accordingly.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, if any, presently payable by
him to the company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the company.

Any dividend, interest or other motiies pavable in cash in respect of shares maybe paid by cheque or warrant
sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint holders, to the
registered address of that one of the jomi helders who is first named on the register of members, or 1o such
person and to such address as the holder or joint holders may in writing direct.

Every such cheque or warrant shall be made pavable to the order of the person towhom itis sent.

Any one of twe or more joint helders of & share may give cffective receipts for any dividends, bonuses or other
monies payal:le in respect of such share.

Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the persons entitled to share thorein in the
manner mentioned inthe Act.

Mo dividend shall bearinterest against the company.

Winding up
Subject to the provisions of Chapter XX of ihe Act, the rules and the Articles

ay I the company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resclution ol the

company and any other sanction reguired by the Act, divide amongst the members, in specie of kind, the

whole or any part of the assets of the company, whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or
not.
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b) For the purpose aforesaid, the liguidolor may set such value as he deems Tair upon any property to be
divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall se carried out as betwooen the meimnbers or
ifferent dasses of members,

c}  The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upen such
trusts for the benefit of the contributories if he considers necessary, but so that no member shall be
compelled to accept any shares or othar securities whereon thereis any liability,

Termination of certain Articies

Any provision in the Articles inserted pursuant to an agreement between the Company and certain
Shareholders shall cease to have effect if the agreement or any pari of such agreemaent pursuant to which such
Articles were inserted stands terminated in part or entirety.
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31
March, 2018,

Financial Highlights
(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended 31 | Year ended 3§*
March 2018 March 2017

Income 53,333 46,420
Profit from operations before Interest & Depreciation 10,454 9,356
Finance costs 1,490 971
Depreciation 2,745 2,082
Profit before Tax 6,220 6,303
Income tax expense 2,051 1,598
Profit after Tax 4,168 4,705
Profit brought forward from previous year 19,574 14,869
Balance carried to balance sheet 23,742 16,573

Financial Overview

During the current financial year, your Company has registered a total income of Rs. 53,333 lakhs, a growth of 15%
as compared o the previous year. The profit after tax was Rs. 4,168 lacs as against the Profit of Rs. 4,705 lacs as
reported in the previous year.

Business Qutlook

The Global CDMO market is expected to outpace the underlying pharmaceutical market growth at a CAGR of 6.4%
from 2014 to 2020, Globally, ~ 2/3 of all drugs under development in pharmaceutical companies relates to small
molecules, and is expected to translate into strong R&D spend and significant outsourcing demand. Increased
complexity of chemistry and more manufacturing stages per NCE increases the overall CDMO market. Further,
internal Pharma mandates to accelerate development time has forced pharmaceutical companies to realign their
supply base toward CDMOs as opposed to pure play Contract Manufacturing Organizations (“CMOs”). Complexity
of pipeline drugs together with the increasing regulatory requirements is forcing the pharmaceutical industry to
rehash legacy outsourcing models and align with outsourcing partners with significant development capability. In
addition, the need for smaller volume APIs creates demand for newer multipurpose capacity as older plants are
designed for large volume dedicated manufacturing.
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The Company has emerged as a leading India based Contract Development and Manufacturing Organization
(“CDMOQ™) offering integrated services across the pharmaceutical life cycle from discovery to development &
manufacturing of New Chemical Entities ("NCEs”), to global innovator pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies. It has a strong track record of working on 100+ molecules across different phases of the molecular
lifecycle. The depth and breadth of the Company’s service offerings and scientific capabilities give customers
multiple “entry points™ in the NCE life cycle which enables Sage to attract and retain customers. The Company has
an attractive and diversified customer base and provides its services to 7 out of the top 15 global pharmaceutical
companies as well as several biotechnology companies.

The Company offers its services through a combination of scientific talent, state of the art R&DD and manufacturing
infrastructure, high level commitment to safety & environment and compliant CGMP quality systems accredited
by global regulatory agencies such as USFDA and PMDA. The large and growing addressabie market for the small
molecules together with the Company’s proven capability in this space is expected to fuel the Company’s growth
in the near future. The strategy of the Company to focus on small molecule development and manufacture has
helped the Company to show a 26% EBITA CAGR over the last three years and provide a successful exit to the
Private Equity Funds managed by Tata Capital.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required

to be disclosed under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars
in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988, are provided in the Annexure ‘A’ forming part of this Report.

Employees’ Stock Option Plan

Information regarding the Employees’ Stock Option Plan is enclosed in Annexure ‘B’ forming part of the Annual
Report.

Dividend

The Company continues to invest in growing the business and hence the Board of Directors do not recommend any
dividend for the financial year 2018, to enhance availability of growth capital.

Reserves

During the year the company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves Account as the company has not
declared any dividend.

Insurance
The properties and assets of your company are adequately insured.
Fixed Deposits

The Company had not accepted or invited any Deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made and consequently no Deposit has matured/ become due for re-payment as on 31% March,
2018.
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Change in Capital Structure

During the financial year 2017-18, 195,600 equity shares were issued and allotted under ESOP-2008 Plan, hence
paid up share capital of company as on 31* March, 2018 was Rs. 141,753,100,

Health, Safety & Environment (HSE)

At SAl, we consider Health, Safety and Environment as our integral parts of our business and it is part of our
decision making process. SAI established Health, safety and Environment management systems which are enablers
of constant improvement in the area of EHS performance. SAI openly communicates organization’s HSE goals and
targets through HSE policy which would help in emerging roadmap for continual improvement.

SAI considers employee training as most important element in evolving safe work place for the employees and
workers. We facilitate employee and worker training through internal and external resources at periodic intervals
through employee induction and refresher training programs.

SAl established state-of-the art facilities for waste water treatment and recycle. We consider statutory compliance
as an important obligation and took all necessary steps to accomplish with legal requirements. SAI puts conscious
efforts in betterment of environmental protection through latest eco-friendly technologies. SAI takes ail necessary
measures from time to time for reduction of carbon foot print in order to minimize environmental impacts arising
out of water use, energy use, emissions and waste generation.

Directors

As on 31% March, 2018 your Company had total eight Board of Directors, out of them two members were
Independent Directors. As on the date of this report, your Company has seven Board of Directors.

In terms of Section 149 read with Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Rajagopal S Tatta and
Mr. Satvamurti Ramasundar continue as an Independent Directors on the Board of the Company. Both the
Independent directors have confirmed their independence in terms of the requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Sanjay Chaudhary, Mr. Akhil Awathi and Mrs. Visalakshi Chandramouli have resigned as Directors wef 25"
July, 2018. The Board appointed Mr. Puneet Bhatia as the Additional Director with effect from 25" July, 2018 and
regularized as Director at the EGM held on 25® July, 2018. Mr. Mitesh Daga was appointed as Additional Director
with effect from 30" July, 2018 and he holds office up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible
for re-appointment as a Director.

In order to comply with Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, Dr. K Ranga Raju (DIN: 00043186} Whole-time
Director of the Company and Mr, K Krishnam Raju (DIN: 00064614), Managing Directors of the Company will
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers themselves for re-appointment
and your Directors recommend for their re-appointment.

It is also proposed to re-appoint Dr K Ranga Raju as Wholetime Director and Chairman in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. Accordingly the resolution seeking member’s approval for re-appointment of Dr K Ranga Raju
as Wholetime Director and Chairman of the Company is placed in the ensuing AGM.
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Auditors

The term of appointment of M/s BSR & Associates LLP, who were appointed as statutory Auditors of the company
The term of appointment of BSR & Associates LLP, who were appointed as statutory Auditors of the company for
the period 2014 to 2018 have been completed, There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made
by the outgoing Auditors in their report for year ended 31.03.2018.

Board and the Audit committee of the Board has reviewed and recommended the appointment of M/s Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years i.e from the conclusion of this
19™ AGM till the conclusion of 24th AGM of the Company. The Company also received the letter from the proposed
Statutory Auditors stating that they are within the limits of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 if they are
appointed as Statutory Auditors in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Accordingly the resolution seeking
member’s approval for appointment of M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP as Statutory Auditors of the Company is
placed in the ensuing AGM.

Particulars of Employees

Under the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended, the names and particulars of employees are set out in the annexure to the
Director’s Report. However, in terms of the provisions the Director’s Report is being sent to all the shareholders of
the Company excluding the aforesaid annexure. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the said annexure
may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered office of the Company.

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies (WOS)
Sai Life Sciences Inc

Sai Life Sciences Inc., USA recorded a turnover of US § 1,418,794 for the year ended 31% March 2018 as against
US $ 1,828,069 for the year ended 3 1% March 2017,

The Company registered a net profit of US § 55,299 for the year ended 31% March 2018 as compared to a net profit
of US § 82,099 in the previous year.

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 report
on performance and financial position of subsidiaries is attached as per Annexure ‘C’ which forms part of this
report.

Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 1st March 2018 of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as notified under Section [33 of the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act™) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’). The Auditors” Report on the consolidated financial statement is also
attached.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement as required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, your directors hereby confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March, 2018, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures,
wherever applicable;

b} The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under review;

¢) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March, 2018 has been
prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis.

e} The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Loans, Guarantees and Investments under Section 186

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the notes
to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company has engaged the services
of M/s DVM & ASSOCIATES LLP, Company Secretaries in Practice, Hyderabad to conduct the secretarial audit
of the Company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2018. The Report of the Secretarial Audit in MR-3 is
annexed as Annexure ‘D’.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in their report for year
ended 31.03.2018.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on
Board Meetings and General Meetings.

Extract of Annual Return

As required pursuant to Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of Annual Return in the
prescribed Form MGT-9 is given as Annexure ‘E’ to this Report.
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Particulars of Contracts or arrangements made with Related Parties

Particulars of Contracts or arrangements made with Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AQC-2, is appended in Annexure ‘F’ to this report.

Number of Meetings of the Board
The Board of Directors duly met Five times during the Financial year under review and there was 1 (One) Audit

Committee, 1 (One) Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 1 (One) CSR committee meetings held during
the year under review. The dates on which the meetings were held are as follows:

Board Meetings : 3" May, 2017, 21% July, 2017, 15™ November, 2017, 7%
February, 2018, 9" March, 2018.

Audit Committee 1 20 July, 2017,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee : 21 July, 2017.

Corporate social Responsibility Committee ;21 July, 2017.

Attendance of Directors in the Board and Committee meetings are as follows:

Number of Number of Committees meetings attended
. Board Audit Nomination & Corporate Social
8.No. | Name of Director meetings | Committee Remuneration Responsibility (CSR)
attended Committee Committee
1 Dt. K Ranga Raju 5 - - -
2 K Krishnam Raju 5 - 1 l
3 Dr. Raju A Penmasta 2 - - 1
4 Rajagopal S Tatta 5 1 1 1
5 Satyamurti Ramasundar 4 | 1 1
6 Sanjay Chaudhary 5 | 1 -
7 Akhil Awasthi 2 - - -
8 Visalakshi Chandramouli 2 - - -

Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors

The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee and for determining the qualification,
positive attributes and Independence Criteria of Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
recommended to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration.

The following are the roles and responsibility of nomination and remuneration committee:

¢ Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

s  Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance

o Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees

8
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Risk Management Policy

The Company has devised and implemented a mechanism for risk management and has developed Risk
Management Policy. The Policy provides for constitution of a Risk Committee, which will work towards creating
a Risk Register, identifying internal and external risks and implementing risk mitigation steps.

Policy on Sexual Harassment

The Company has constituted a Sexual Harassment Policy to prohibit, prevent or deter the commission of acts of
sexual harassment at workplace and to provide the procedure for the redressal of complaints pertaining to sexual
harassment.

The Company has also complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There
were no incidences of sexual harassment reported during the year under review, in terms of the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has re-constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee {CSR) w.e.f 25.07.2018 costituted
under Section 135 comprising of the following Directors:

1. Rajagopal S Tatta — Chairman
2. K Krishnam Raju — Member
3. Puneet Bhatia — Member
4, Satyamurti Ramasundar -~ Member

The CSR Committee has formulated the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to accept the various activities to
be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and the related activities
thereto in and around areas across the states where Company’s operating units were situated.

Your Company has always been a responsible corporate citizen with many projects being undertaken on a regular
basis. Your Company has taken the respensibility to make the Comnmunity that it operates a better place to live and
work. A report on the CSR activities undertaken by the Company is given in Annexure *G’

Vigil Mechanism

In pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the companies Act, 2013, a Vigil mechanism for directors and
employees to report genuine concerns is in place. The Vigil Mechanism Poticy has been uploaded on the website
of the Company.

Beoard Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation
of their own, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination &
Remuneration and other Committees. The manner in which the evaluation has been carried out has been explained
hereunder.
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A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering
various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees,
Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. A separate exercise was
carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board, who were
evaluated on parameters such as level of attendance, engagement and contribution, independence of judgment,
safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of the
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the director being evaluated. The performance
evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The
Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Cost Audit

Central Government has notified rules for Cost Audit and as per new Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Your Company is not falling under the Industries which will be
subject to Cost Audit. Therefore filing of cost audit report for the FY 2017-18 is not applicable to the Company

Green Initiative

As part of the “Green Initiative for Corporate Governance”, the Government has allowed companies to send notices
and documents to their shareholders electronically to facilitate paperless communication. This will ensure prompt
communication and avoid loss of documents in transit.

Audit committee

Your Company has properly constituted the Audit Committee u/s 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Committee
members was re-constituted w.e.f. 25.07.2018 as follows:

1. Rajagopal S Tatta — Chairman
2. Satyamurti Ramasundar — Member
3. Mitesh Daga — Member

Internal control systems

Your Company has established and maintained a framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems.
Based on the same and the work performed by the internal auditors, statutory auditors and the reviews performed
by Top Management team and the Audit Committee, your Directors are of the opinion that your Company’s Internal
Financial Controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2017-18.

Further, the Statutory Auditors of your Company have also issued an attestation report on internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in section 143 of Companies Act, 2013) for the financial year ended March 31, 2018,
which forms part to the Statutory Auditors Report.

Details of material changes and commitment occurred during period affecting financial position of company

During the financial year 201718, there were no material changes and commitment affecting the financial position
of company.

Details of changes in nature of Business of the Company

During the financial year 2017-18, there were no change in the nature of Business of the company.
10
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Details of significant material orders passed by courts/tribunal impacting the going concern status of the
Company

During the financial year 2017-18, there were no orders passed by the courts/tribunal impacting the going concern
status of the company.

Human Resource Development

In line with your company’s philosophy of investing in the development of its most precious asset of human capital,
the company ensures that the right person is selected for the right job at the right time. The company is well aware
of the significance of quality and competence of its workforce in driving the growth of its business.

Your company’s strength of employees measures to 1624 as on 31% March, 2018.

Cautionary Note

Certain statements in the reports of the Board of Directors may be forward looking statements within the meaning
of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied since
company’s operations are influenced by many external and internal factors beyond the control of the company. The
company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any of these statements on the basis of any
subsequent developments, information or events.

Quality Assurance (QA)

In order to meet the ever-demanding compliance to the customers and global regulatory requirements, QA
department has been setup. Corporate quality operations have prioritized & the company has implemented ¢cGmp
and GMP standards across the Company’s manufacturing facilities and GLP standards implemented.

Employee Relations
Y our Company continues to have cordial and harmonious relationship with the employees.
Gratitude and Acknowledgement

The directors would like to place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by the employees to the
significant growth of the Company. The trust reposed in your company by its esteemed customers helped stabilized
growth during the year under review.
Your Company alse acknowledges the support and wise counsel received from State Bank of India and other banks
& governmental Agencies during the year under review and it looks forward for such continuing support to enhance
its goal.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. K Ranga Raju
Place: Hyderabad Chairman
Date: 14 August, 2018 DIN: 00043186

11
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ANNEXURE -A
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Information required under the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules,

A. Conservation of Energy

1988.

Y our Company continued periodical auditing of all the installations internally to find new opportunities for reducing
the wastage of electrical energy

FORM -A

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy
A. Power and Fuel Consumption:

Year ended Year ended
Sno Particulars
31st March 2018 31st March 2017
1 Electricity
a) Purchased
Units (KWH) 21,697,048 17,456,967
Total amount (Rs) 170,622,887 133,246,899
Rate per unit - (Rs) 7.86 7.63
(b) Own generation
Through diesel generator 883,214 783,484
Units (No’s) 3.25 3.25
Units per Ltr.of oil 13.76 12.61
Cost/Unit (Rs) [3.76 12.61
2 Coal
Quantity (tonnes) 3,624 2,770
Total Cost (Rs) 25,973,976 16,534,631
Average rate per tonne (Rs) 7,167.27 5,968.28
3 Furnace Oil
Quantity —~KL 181 162
Total cost (Rs) 4,482,577 3,749,819
Average rate per KL(Rs) 24,800 23,089

B. Consumption per Unit of Production

Products
Electricity(Units)
Coal
Others(Specify)

Since the company manufactures different types of active
pharmaceutical ingredients and intermediates, R&D Services
and Custom Synthesis it is not practicable to give consumption

per unit of production

12
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FORM- B
Form of disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption.
A. Research and Development Activities

Specific areas in Research & Development carried out by the Company

SAI has been one of the Asia’s leading inteprated service provider in the areas of drug discovery. SAl’s expertise
include Medicinal Chemistry, Pharmacokinetics - absorption, distribution, metabolism, elimination (PK-ADME),
Tox studies and Combi-chemn Library synthesis.

From being a consultancy service provider with maturing capabilities, SAI’s Research and Development (*'R&D’)
activities are now being realigned to carry out early discovery, process optimization, APl manufacture and
formulation development.

While SAD’s focal point would be the Process R&D and scale-up; pre-formulation and formulation development
for New Chemical Entity (‘NCE”) and generic compounds to Pharma and innovator companies around the world,
SAl is equally focusing on development of API (Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient), Drug Master Filings and
technology for innovative drug products for the Indian and emerging markets. In-line with its vision, SAl is heading
towards foreign collaboration for its R&D initiatives.

The Unit -1 facility at L. B Nagar, Unit-2 facilitate at ICIC]1 Knowledge Park, Shameerpet and Unit -4 facility at
Bidar were inspected by FDA and declared to be acceptable.

Presently, SAI has five R&D centers spread across Telangana, Karnataka and Maharashtra whose details are as
under:

1. 11-15-12/4, Doctors Colony, L.B.Nagar, Hyderabad.

2. DS-7, IKP, Phase-1, Turakapally Village, Shameerpet, Ranga Reddy District, Telangana

3. 8. N0.296/7/3 & 4, Indusirial Development Area, Bollaram, Jinnaram Mandal, Medak District, Telangana.
4, 798, 80A, 80 B, 82 & 81 A, Kolhar Industrial Area, Bidar, Karnataka.

5. #2, Chrysalis® Enclave, International Biotech Park, Phase-11, Hinjewadi, Pune

Benefits Derived as a result of the above R&D

+ Improved business opportunities

s  Creation of Intellectual Property

+ Continued customer acceptance and satisfaction

» Enhanced valuation of the organization

* Business opportunities for the Indian and emerging markets

» Focus on the long term vision and growth of the Company

e To help our partners develop innovative medicines quicker and at lower cost by providing reliable research and
manufacturing solutions

¢ Encourages innovation

e Low cost solutions for unmet medical needs for emerging economies

13
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Future Plan of Action
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s End-to-end customer support (for their business needs) would continue to be the focal point of R&D
s Continue to focus on business opportunities and implementing differentiated strategies to build customer base

and pipeline

s  Creation of innovative and efficient processes to enhance and sustain the business growth
o Transformation of R&D activities into a self~sustaining growth engine for the organization
s Aggressive strategy to enable global expansions in key emerging markets

Expenditure on Research & Development

(in Lakhs)
Financial Year Capital expenditure Revenue expenditure Total
2016-17 - 750.19 750.19
2017-18 - 725.54 725.54

During the vear no expenditure was incurred on scientific research and development.

B. Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

Efforts, in brief, made
towards technology absorption and
adoption

The Company has an R&D division engaged in research of new products
& Process development of existing products. The Company has developed
indigenous technology in respect of the products manufactured by it.

As soon as the technology is developed for a product, it is tested in pilot
plant and thereafter commercial production is taken up. It is the philosophy
of the Company to continuously upgrade the technology.

Benefits derived as a result of the

- Quality Improvement

abave - Cost reduction
- Better production process, better yields
Imported technology: There is no imported technology

FORM C

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

{Amount Rs. in lakhs)

Foreign Fxchange Earnings
Expuort of goods and services
Foreign Exchange Outgo
CIF Value of Imports

Foreign Travel and others

47,809.00

5,869.78

3,042.30

14
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ANNEXURE B
Employee Stock Option Schemes

The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS} in the year 2004 to enable the employces and
the directors of the company and its subsidiaries to participate in the future growth and financial success of the
Company.

Options granted in the year 2004 scheme will vest at the end of 3 years from the date of grant. The vested options
can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Options granted in the year 2005, 2006 and 2007 scheme will vest in a graded manner i.e 60% of the options will
vest at the end of 3 years from the date of grant and balance 40% of the options will vest at the end of 5 years from
the date of grant. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the
Company.

Options granted in the vear 2008 scheme will vest in a graded manner i.e 50% of the options will vest at the end of
2 years from the date of grant and balance 50% of the options will vest at the end of 4 years from the date of grant.
The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

The Company has established a plan “Stock option plan 2008 — SAB Members™ in the year 2008. The Stock options
granted shall vest every month from the date of grant for a period of 3 years. Upon vesting, the members have 5

years to exercise these shares. There are no outstanding options currently under this scheme.

The particulars of the options granted and outstanding upto 31% March, 2018 are as under:

Particulars # Options

29,69,000

 No. of Options Exercised 430,600

No. of Options Lapsed e 20.21,000
No, of Options inforce | . 51740
 No. of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 3517400
_No. of employees who are granted equal to /more than 1% of the issued capital | Nil

No. of employees who were granted equal to/more than 5% of the issued capital Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. K Ranga Raju

Chairman

Date: 14 August, 2018 DIN: 00043186
Place: Hyderabad
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ANNEXURE C
Form AOC -1
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(Pursuant to first proviso fo sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint

ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiary

# Particulars Details

1 | Name of Subsidiary Sai Life Sciences Inc.

2 | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different | NIL
from the holding company’s reporting period

3 | Date of Investment in Subsidiary 10 August 2004

4 | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of | USD = Rs. 63.175 (BS)
the relevant Financial year in the case of Foreign Subsidiary | 1 USD = Rs. 64.46 (P&L)

5 | Share Capital 2.25,000

6 | Reserves & Surplus 2.78.41,544

7 | Total Assets 4.27,13,795

8 | Total Liabilities 1,46,47,255

9 | Investments NIL

10 | Turnover 9,14,51,028

11 | Profit before Taxation 57.32,863

12 | Provision for Taxation 21.68,472

13 | Profit after Taxation 35,64,391

14 | Proposed Dividend NIL

15 | 9% of Shareholding 100

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. K Ranga Raju
Chairman

Part “B”; Associates & Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

NIL

Partner

16
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31% March, 2018

FORM NO MR 3
Pursuant fo Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
To
The Members,
M/s. Sai Life Sciences Limited
Hyderabad.

We have conducted Secretarial Audit pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013, on the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s, Sai Life Sciences Limited
(hereinafter called as “the Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minutes books, forms, returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and alse the information and according to the examinations carried out by us and explanations
furnished and representations made to us by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period
covering the Financial Year ended on 31% March 2018 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance - mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2018 (“Audit Period”) and we report that during the
period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the following Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines and Standards:

1.1. The Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable) and the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Rules made thereunder;

1.2, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
1.3. The Secretarial Standards on the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Committees and General Meetings

issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

2. We further report that during the period under review the Company has substantially complied with Secretarial
Standards on Board Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(]

The Company is engaged in the business of contract research and manufacturing services of drugs. Accordingly,
some of the following applicable Industry Specific Acts are covered under the purview of our audit, in
consultation with the Management and on the basis of the Guidance Note issued by the ICSI. Based on our
verification and also reliance on the Compliance Certificate, we are of the view that the company has generally
complied with following Industry Specific Laws in line with amendments from time to time:

(i) Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940 read with the Drugs and Cosmetics Rules, 1945;

(ii) Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985 read with the Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic
Substances Rules, 1985;

(iii) Petroleum act, 1934;
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(iv)
(v)

(v1)
(vii)

Inflammable substances act, 1952;

Explosives act, 1884 read with Explosives Rules, 1983;
Air and Water Pollution Acts;

Indian boilers act, 1923.

4. We further report that:

4.1

4.2

4.4

4.5

4.6

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director, The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review were carried out in
accordance with the provisions.
Adequate Notice along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda is given to all the Directors
electronically to schedule the Board Meetings.
There exists a system for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and meaningful participation at the meeting.
Decisions at the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of the Company
were taken unanimously.
The Company being an un-listed company, the following Acts, Regulations and other applicable
rules shall not apply:

i.  Equity Listing Agreements entered into with stock exchanges and other SEBI Regulations

ii. Regulations under Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
There exist adequate systems and processes in the Company that commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

5. We further report that during the audit period, there were no specific events / actions having a major bearing
on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc
except as stated above.

For DVM & Associates LLLP
Company Secretaries
L2017KR002100

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14.08.2018

DVM Gopal
Partner

M No: F 6280
CP No: 6798

Note: This letter is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed, and form an integral part of this report.
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To

ANNEXURE

The Members,
M/s. Sai Life Sciences Limited
Hyderabad.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1.

2.

(3]

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the random test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on the random
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DVM & Associates LLP
Company Secretaries

L2017KR002 100
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14.08.2018
DVM Gopal
Partner
M No: F 6280
CP No: 6798
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ANNEXURE E

FORM NO. MGT -9

Extract of Annual Return
As on the financial year ended 31" March, 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Sal¢

mcke | ot ogethe

. REGISTRATION & OTIIER DETAILS:
1 | CIN U24110TG1999PLC030970
2 | Registration Date 25.01.1999
3 | Name of the Company S8ai Life Sciences Limited
4 | Category/Sub-category of the Public Company / Limited by Shares
Company
5 | Address of the Registered office & Office # L4-01&02, SLN Terminus, Survey No.133,
contact details Gachibowli Miyapur Road, Gachibowti, Hyderabad,
Telangana-500032.
6 | Whether listed company No
7 | Name, Address & contact details of M/s Karvy Computer Share Pvt Limited
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

II. PRINCIPLE BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

S.M | Namc and Description of tuain products / services | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of
o product / service the company
| Contract Research and development 21001 100
111, PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
8 Naue and Address ol the CIN / GLN Holdmg/ Subsidiary % of Shares App%icable
No | Company / Associate Section
1 | Sai Life Sciences Inc - Subsidiary 100% 2(87)(ii)
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1v. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity share Capital breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise sharcholding

i T " TN P T ™ éx:%;_ = e g
., | Novof Shares held at the beginning of the | -0/, B o dt thee e

N - yeﬂ . ' ) “ wsﬂ By »% PR i & '\ﬁg
HE i : | e et

&

4

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 3,600,719 | 3.600.719 | 25.76 3,600,719 ] 3.600,719 | 25.40 (0.36)

b) Central Govt. or
¢) State Govt,

d) Bodies Corporates 1,070,715 | 1,070,715 | 7.66 1,070,715 | 1,070,715 | 7.55 (0.11)
e) Bank/FI - - - - - - -
f) Any other - - - - - - -
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 4,671,434 | 4,671,434 | 33.42 4,671,434 | 4,671,434 | 32.95 (0.46)

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals 969,000 969.000 6.93 969,000 969,000 6.84 {0.10)

b) Other Individuals - - - - - - _

c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - -

d) Banks/F1 - - - - - - _

€) Any other. ..

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 969,000 969,000 6.93 965,000 969.000 6.84 (0.10)

Total Shareholding
of Promoter 5,640,434 | 5,640,434 | 40.35 5,640,434 | 5,640,434 | 39.79 (0.56)

(A)= (A)H(A)2)

B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - -

b) Banks/FI1 - - - - - - -

C) Cenntral povt - - - - - - -

d) State Govt. - - - - - - -
e) Venture Capital
Fund

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIIS - - : - - 5 .

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i} Others (specify} - - - - - - -

SUB TOTAL (B)(1): - - - - - - -
(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporates
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No. of ginning of the
il et
i) Indian 2,591,496 1 2,591,496 2,541,496 2,541,496 17.93
ii) Overseas 3,973,416 | 3,973,416 3,973,416 3.973,416 28.03
b} Individuals -
i} Individual
shareholders holding 42,000 42,000 0.30 37,000 37,000 0.26 0.04
nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 lakhs
ii) Individuals
shareholders holding
nominal share capital 1,732,364 | 1,732,364 | 12.39 1,982,964 1,982,964 13.99 1.60
in excess of Rs. 1
lakhs
c) Others - - - - - - -
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 8,339,276 | 8339276 [ 59.65 8,534,876 8,534,876 60.21 0.56
Total Public
Shareholding 8,339,276 | 8,339,276 | 59.65 8.534,876 8,534,876 60.21 0.56
(BYy= (BY()+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custedian for - - - - - - -
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total
13,979,710 | 13,979,710 K y y y , . B
(A+B+C) 100.00 14,175,310 | 14,175,310 | 100.00 0.60
i) Shareholding of Promoters
Sharcholding at
Eéﬁ Sh company : .
G Subba Raju 938730 6.71% - 938730 6.62% - -(1.09%,
G.L. Tanuja 130121 0.93% - 130121 0.92% - -0.01%
Continental
Wines Private
Etd 1967 0.01% - 1967 0.01% - 0.00%
K Sudha 50000 0.36% - 50000 0.35% - -0.01%
K. Krishnam
Raju 419000 0.57% - 919000 6.48% - -0.09%
K.Mytreyi 1087633 7.78% - 1087633 7.67% - -0.11%
K.Ranga Raju -
Huf 302599 2.16% - 302599 2.13% - -0.03%
K.Ranga Raju 1136636 8.13% - 1136636 8.02% - -0.11%
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. yea

Sharehoigimg at theég{egiﬁn ng

ll\/‘Iytreyi'.K' (On

behalf of Sai

International) 5000 0.04% - 5000 (0.04% - 0.00%
Sai Quest Syn Pvt

Ltd. 1068748 7.64% - 1068748 7.54% - -0.11%
Total 5640434 4.35% 5640434 39.79% -0.56%

Change in Promoter s Shareholding (please spemfy lf there is no change)

iii)

% of total "% of total
No. of shares shares of Date No. of shares Nature No. of | - shares of
the shares the
company company
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRS)
%hamh“&tders Name " -SharehoMing'at thgﬁ" x

= Dat@m ‘increase /

% oftotal‘
; shaires of 1

?

Lo Al = Al " cﬁmpany - o C ﬁ%

1 Alpha FDI Holdings | 27,16,201 1943 | - - - 27,16,201 19.16
PTE Limited

2 Tata Capital 20,82.917 14.90 | - - - 20,82.917 14.69
Healthcare Fund 1

3 HBM Private 9.04.,462 6.47 | - - - 9.04,462 6.38
Equity India

4 Tata Capital 4,58,579 328 - - - 4,58,579 3.24
Growth Fund |
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~8No, | Shareholders Name -
w RS ' - ’ ‘ >

Sharehuld,mg at the .
ning of the year

.. Date wise increase /.
(decrzase) n sharehﬁidiag

g‘a‘é,

_*-Shareholding at the
f the year :

L A T H
S confpany

- ) ¢ - %:“”
4 kdecreasn (e.g. allotment / R SEUNRIN i
fransfe:_‘_l bonus 2 sweal: IR AR N ;
% of total

. %shar@ of. 3

H i%ht 'i: 3%
pany ..

5 Beta TC Holdings 3.52,753 2.52 2.49
PTE Limited
6 N Anita 2,16,442 1.55 2,16,442 1.53
7 Aruna Penmasta 2,16,364 1.55 2,16,364 1.53
8 N Ravindra Varma 2,03,558 1.46 2,03,558 1.44
9 Kanuri Family 1,66,600 1.19 1,66,600 .18
Trust
10 | S Bharathi 1,20,000 0.86 1,20,000 0.85
11 K V Satyanarana 1,00,000 0.72 1,00,000 0.71
Raju
v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

. S | Ahe Lo
] I S ;éﬁ‘corgp"%ny

Chittor

- 4 company
I | Dr K Ranga Raju | 1136636 8.13% 1136636 8.02%
2 | K Krishnam Raju S19000 6.57% 919000 6.48%
3 | Raju A Penmasta 286600 2.05% 286600 2.02%
4 Sivaramakrishnan i i 88.100 0.62%
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Y) INDEBTEDNESS

Sai¢

moko  oeter tonaether

indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 20,844.08 20,844.08
ii) Interest due but not paid 30.37 30.37
iii) Interest accrued but not due 10.89 10.89
Total (i+ii+iii) 20,885.34 20,885.34
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year
Additions 4,316.77 4,316.77
Reduction 1,744.18 1,744.18
Net Change 2,572.59 2,572.59
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 23,416.67 23,416.67
ii) Interest due but not paid 18.12 18.12
iii) Interest accrued but not due
13.67 13.67
Total (itiitiii) 23,448.46 23,448.46
¥I) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
S Particulars of Remuneration Dr. K Ranga K. Krishnam Raju Total
No. Raju— WTD ~ MD Amount
& Chairman
[ Gross salary (Total) 21,746,070 59,230,987 | 80,977,057
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 21,746,070 59,230,987 | 80,977,057
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites w/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
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- as % of profit — 2.5% of NP

- others, specify —Bonus

Others, please specify

Total (A)

21,746,070

59,230,987

80,977,057

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount
1 Independent Directors Rajagopal S Satyamuthi
Tatta Ramasundar
Fee for attending board committee meetings 96,825 98,000 194,825
Commission 2,841,094 3,000,000 | 5,841,094
Others, please specify
Total (1)
2 Other Non-Executive Directors - - -
Fee for attending board committee meetings - - -
Commission - - -
Others, please specify - - -
Total (2) - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) 6,035,919
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
Amount
Company CFO
Secretary
1 Gross salary (Total)
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 1,941,708 20,016,174 21,957,882
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites w's 17(2) Income-tax Act, 21,600 4,715,067 4,736,667
1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- -
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option -
3 Sweat Equity -
Comimission -
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- as % of profit

- others, specify — Bonus

Others, please specify

Total

1,963,308

24,731,241

26,694,549

VII.

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

I'ype

Section of the
Companies
Act

Dricf
Description

Details of penalty /
punishment/compo
unding fee imposed

Authority
[RD
NCI.TIC
ourt]

Appeal made,
if any (give
details)

Company

Penaity

Punishment

Compounding

None

Directors

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

None

Other officers in
Default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

None

Date: 14 August, 2018
Place: Hyderabad
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr.

K Ranga Raju
Chairman

DIN: 00043186
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ANNEXUREF

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Aet and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Sai

rrcke it hetiet wonethst

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Including certain arm’s

length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
24

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions are at arm’s length basis:

salient terms
of the
Name(s) of Nature of Duration of contracts or :l)atf-gs‘)] :;f Amount
' Nature of contracts/ the contracts / | arrangements pp paid as
the related . . by the
relationship | arrangements | arrangements/ | or Board. if advances,
party /transactions | transactions transactions an ? if any
including the y
value, if any:
Sai Life Subsidiar Consultancy
Science Inc, Compart Y services Ongotng 92,505,390 Yes Nil
USA pany received
. Mother in Payment of . .
G L Tanuja Law of MD Lease Rent Ongoing 7,477,752 Yes Nil

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14 August, 2018
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. K Ranga Raju
Chairman
DIN: 00043186




Sai¢

make i Doter topether

19* Annual Report 2017-18

ANNEXURE G
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

{Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility) Rules, 2014)

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programmes.
CSR Policy is stated herein below:
Weblink: http://intranet/Policies.aspx

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Rajagopal § Tatta — Chairman

K Krishnam Raju — Member

Puneet Bhatia — Member
Satyamurti Ramasundar - Member

=) —

3. Average net profit ¢f the Company for last three financial years:
Average net profit: Rs. 474,244,191
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):
The Company is required to spend Rs. 9,484,884,
5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year: 2017-18
a.  Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs.94,84.924

b.  Amount unspent, if any: NIL
€. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial yvear is detailed below:
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Projects or Amount spent on
programs (1) . . . Amount
the projects or Cumulative
i.ocal area or Amount programs sub expenditure spent:
her (2 ify It } Direct
. .. . Sector in which the other (2) Specify oty heads: (1) Direct upto the trector
SNo | CSR Activity or Project . the State and (budget) . . through
Project is covered o . Expenditure on reporting .
district where project or . , Implementi
ojects or program-wise projects or periad ng
rgrr-llms werc programs {2) (FY 2017-18) Agency*
prog Overheads BEney
undertaken
Towards sponsorship of Teach to Lead —
1 2 TFI Fellows overa 2 Education Hyderabad and 2,452.771 NA
year period 2017-19. Pune 2:452,771 2452771
Learning Curve Life . Learning Curve-
2 idues 4
$kills Foundation Fducation Hyderabad 252,100 252,100 2,704,871 NA
xpenses for Various .
3| Camps and School. Education Others 19,750 19750 2,724,621 NA
Donation of School Kolthur Govt
4 Educati 2,872.474 NA
Infrastructure peation Primary School- 147,853 147,853 dil
School Health F i Healing Fields
5 | Sehool Health Education Education caling Fields 1,068,100 1,068,100 3,940,574 NA
Program Foundation -
g | Towards teacher Salary Education Vidya Volunteer 4,105,574 NA
support. ’ - 195,600 165.000 o
. . Community Health Blue Cross of
7 Stray Animal Welfare Programine Hyderabad 500.000 500,000 4.603,574 NA
Amount paid as . .
8 | contribution for CARE | COmmumiY Health | b ndation | 507,405 507,405 5,112,979 NA
. Programme
healtheare services
, . » Community Health Cancer Cure
9 Cancre Cure Foundation Programme Foundation 500.000 500,000 5,612,979 NA
10 ']%nfold Proactive Health Community Health | Enfold Prro‘actwe 394,684 394,684 6.007.663 NA
[rust Programme Health Trust
Installation RO watcr Community Health Eurcka Forbes
11 6,984,763 NA
Plant at Bhimavaram Programme Limited 977.100 977,100 U
Spectacle dispensal tor . ]
12 | Bollaram, March Eye Community Health | - Hyderabad Eye 6,991.723 NA
. . Programme Institute 6.960 6,960
Secreening Camp
For Prosthetic Limb Commuriity Health Rotary Club
491,72 NA
I3 Support Programme Donation 500,000 500,000 7:491,723
Livelih
i4 Development programme velihood SAFA-Hyderabad 1,349,201 1,349,201 3,840,924 NA
Development
Upliftment of the
marginalized and under S~
. R Livelihood
15 privileged sections of the Leap for Word 644,000 644,000 9,484,924 NA
. . Development
society by providing
education
9,484,924

* (ive details of Implementing Agency.
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6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report.

NA

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitering of CSR
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

The same is mentioned in the policy which is available at the Website.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. K Ranga Raju

Place: Hyderabad Chairman
Date: 14 August, 2018 DIN: 00043186
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Sai Life Sciences Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Sai Life Sciences Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 201§, the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information (collectively referred to as “the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors® Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the Audit Report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, to the
extent applicable.

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements are free from material misstatement.
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Sai Life Sciences Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company se far as
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the Standalone Cash Flow

Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;
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Sai Life Sciences Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

d)

€)

g

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act ;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure-B’;
and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors® Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2018 on its standalone
financial position in its standalone financial statements. Refer Note 40(b) to the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements;

(i) The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

(iif) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018; and

{iv) The disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements regarding holdings as well as
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December
2016 have not been made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2018.
However amounts as appearing in the audited Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended
31 March 2017 have been disclosed.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/ W-100024

Arpan Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 125710

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14 August 2018
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Sai Life Sciences Limited

Annexure A — To the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

The Annexure-A referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Sai Life Sciences
Limited, (*the Company™) on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018. We
report that:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

{2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets,

{b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.
In accordance with the program, the Company has verified certain fixed assets during the year and no
material discrepancies were noted on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 6 on property,
plant and equipment to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The inventories have been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, and based
on the information and explanations given to us, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The
discrepancies noticed on such verification between physical stocks and book records were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with provisions of Section 186 of the Act, with respect to investments made. The Company has not granted
any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the
Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73, 74, 75 and
76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder to the extent notified.

We have broadly reviewed cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules prescribed by the
Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service
tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Goods and services tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues have generally been repularly deposited during the year by the Company with
appropriate authorities.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of customs,
Dty of excise, Value added tax, Goods and services tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were
inarrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Sales tax, Duty of
custom, Value added tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute. According to the information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
Income-tax, Service tax, Duty of excise and Entry tax have not been deposited by the Company on
account of disputes.

Amount in Rs.
Name of | Nature of lakhs Period to which the | Forum where dispute is
the Statute Dues amount relates (FY) pending
Income-tax | Income- 1.28 2012 - 2013 Commissioner of Income-
Act, 1961 tax Tax {Appeals),
Hyderabad
Finance Service 123.62 (paid 2012 -2014 Customs, Central Excise
Act, 1994 tax under protest Service Tax Appellate
(Service 87.26) Tribunal, Pune
tax)
Central Duty of 72.48 2007-2012 Customs, Central Excise
Excise Act, | excise {paid under Service Tax Appellate
1944 protest 18.12) Tribunal, Bangalore
Telangana | Entry tax 11.28 2014 -2017 Appellate Deputy
Tax on Commissioner
Entry of {Commercial taxes),
Goods in to Hyderabad
Local
Areas Act,
2001
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans and borrowings to its bankers. The Company does not have any loan or borrowing
from any financial institution or Government, nor has it issued any debentures during the year.
(ix)  The Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt

instruments) during the year. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the term loans taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

(x) During the course of examination of books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to
us, we have neither come across any instances of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers
or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

36




Sal

rrigke ot onathar

19" Annual Report 2017-18

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with requisite
approvals mandated by the provision of Sections 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the
Company, transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or person connected
with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/W-100024

Arpan Jain
Partner
Membership Number: 125710

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14 August 2018
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Sai Life Sciences Limited
Annexure B — To the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

The Annexure-B referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Sai Life Sciences
Limited (“the Company™) on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sai Life Sciences Limited
(“the Company™) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal contrel with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures sclected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

for BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 116231W/ W-100024

Arpan Jain
Partner
Membership Number; 125710

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14 August 2018
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(Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
(a} Property, plant and equipment 6 30,290.08 26,915.57 20,227.71
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1,367.54 916.41 808.77
{c) Other intangible assets 7 383.82 293.85 33.39
{d) Financial assets :
(i) Investments 8 384 3.84 3.84
(i) Loans and deposits 15 533,75 432.93 5335.46
(i) Other financial assets 9 [14.62 260.00 550.91
{e) [ncome-tax assets (net) 190 387.55 387.55 89.58
(f) Other non-current assets Il 1,874.91 142224 2,139.28
Total non-current assets 34,956.11 30,632.39 24,388.94
Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 7.285.40 443535 349391
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 13 26,163.30 22965.10 17,724.74
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 14(1) 782.32 889.49 1,476.89
(i) Bank balances other than (i) above 14(ii) 763.39 450.90 343,17
{(iv) Loans and deposils 15 54.39 96.89 36.19
(v) Other fmancial assets 9 611.33 1,431.62 2,443,93
{¢) Other current assets 11 6,138.32 4,201.64 3,004.09
41,798.67 34,470.99 28,522.92
(d) Asset held for sale 6 - - 912.80
Total current assets 41,798.67 34,470.99 29,4335.72
Total assets 76,754.78 65,103.38 53,824.66
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 1,417.53 1,397.97 1,397.97
(b) Other equity 17 34.975.15 30,503.55 25,726.91
Total equity 36,392.68 31,901.52 27,124.88
Liabilities
Naon-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 18 6,776.67 7.008.71 3.894.76
(i) Other tinancial liabilities 19 952.24 469.32 90.00
(b) Provisions 20 852.38 658.63 596.93
(c) Deferred tax liabilities {net) 21 1,472.81 702.23 502.26
(d) Onther non-current liabilities 22 257.17 418.01 -
Total non-current liabilities 10,311.27 9,256.90 5,083.95
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH (contd....)
(4l amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)
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As at
Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
{a) Financial habilities
(1) Borrowings 18 14,606.43 11.890.14 9,593.11
(i) Trade payables 23 6,611.21 4,835.05 6,202.08
(i) Other fmancial liabilities 19 7,369.87 5,826.90 5,026.43
(b} Provisions 20 350.64 269.92 202.80
(¢} Income tax labilities (net) 24 293.62 88.70 367.26
{d) Other current hiabilities 22 819.06 1,034.25 224.15
Total current liabilities 30,050.83 23,944.96 21,615.83
Total equity and liabilities 76,754.78 65,103.38 53,824.66
Significant accounting policies 1-5

Notes o the standalone Ind AS financial statements 6-44

The noles referred to above form an integral part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As per our Report on standalone Ind AS financial statements of even date attached

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 116231W/ W-100024

Arpan Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 125710

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14 August 20138

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sai Life Sciences Limited

CIN No: U241101G1999PLCO30970

K.Ranga Raju
Director
DIN No: 00043186

Sivaramakrishnan Chittor
Chief Financial Officer

Place; Hyderabad
Date: 14 August 2018

4]

Krishnam Raju
Managing Director
DIN No: 00064614

Runa Karan
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13721
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31« MARCH
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Income
Revenue from operations 23 51,653.63 44.473.48
Other income 26 1.679.26 1.946.83
Total income 53,332.91 46,420.33
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 27 15,164.85 10,948.49
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 28 (1,923.75) 254,27
Excise duty 29 32.42 227.21
Employee benefits expense 30 17.521.16 14,009.44
Finance costs 31 1,489.60 971.13
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6&7 2,744.96 2,081.02
Other expenses 32 12,084.14 11,625.31
Total expenses 47,113.38 40,116.87
Profit before tax 6,219.53 6,303.46
Tax cxpense 33
Current tax 1.597.73 1.375.87
Deferred tax
MAT credit entitlement - (214.22)
Other deferred tax 453.30 436.59
Total tax expense 2051.03 1,598.24
Profit for the year 4,168.50 4,705.22
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
(a) Re-measurcment gains/(losscs) of defined benefit plans (3.90) (64.72)
(b) Income-tax on iiems that will not be reclassified o profit or loss 1.35 22.40
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (2.55) (42.32)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,165.95 4,662.90
Earnings per equity share |EPES]| (in absolute ¥ terms) 34
Par value per share 10.00 10.00
Basic EPES 29.61 33.66
Diluted EPES 29.37 272
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.::MARCH (contd....)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Signilicant accounting policies 1-5
Notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements 6-44

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As per our Report on standalone Ind AS financial statements of cven date attached

For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sai Life Sciences Limited
Firm's Registration Number: 116231W/ W-100024 CIN No: U24110TGL999PLC030970
Arpan Jain K.Ranga Raju Krishnam Raju
Partner Director Managing Director
Membership No.: 125710 DIN No: 00043186 DIN No: 00064614
Sivaramakris hnan Chittor Runa Karan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: A13721
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 14 August 2018 Date: 14 August 2018
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Cupital (Refer note 16)

Saié
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=

Number of shares Amoung
As a1 April 2006 139,73, 711> 1.397.97
Chunges in equity share capital - -
As at 31 March 2017 1,39,73,711 1,397.97
Changes i equity shuare capital L35.6m 19,56
As at 31 March 2018 41,7531} 1,417.53
{her Kquity (Refer note 17)
Reservey and Suiplus Qcher comprehensive income
K¢ curitics premium Share application money Employee stack aptions Capital Rztained | Reme asurement of defined Tatal
Mescrve pending allotment outstanding accouwnt TeREIVE earningy benefit obligations
Falance as at | Apyil 2016 10,672,45 - 146.27 112.23 | 14,8BG8.73 (1277 25,726.91
Profit for the year - - - RNk el - 4.705.22
Other comprehensive mcome - not of Ay - - - (42 32y 42 32)
‘Total comprehensive income - - - 4,705.22 (42,32) 4,661,90
Sharg-based payment expense - - 11374 - - - 113 4
Ikalance as at 31 March 2017 10,672.45 - 260.01 112.23 | 19,573.95 {115.0%) 30,503.55
Profit for the year - - 4,168 30 - 4,168 30
Other comprehensive mcome - net of tax - - - (233) (2.53)
‘Total comprehensive income 4,168.50 (2.55) 414595
Share application money recenved - 35249 - - 3529
Sccurily premium an ¢quity shares 14741 - . - - 147.41
Share-based payment expense - - 122495 - - - 12298
Balarce as at 31 March 2018 10,819.86 35.20 382.96 112,23 | 23,742,458 (117,64} 3497515
Significant accounting policies I-3
Naotes 1o the standatone Ind AS financial stalements G4
The notes referred to above form an mtegral part of the standalone Tnd AS fmancil staements
As per our Report on standalone Tnd AS fmancial statemicnts of cven date anached
For B S R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Roard of Dmectors of
Chartered Accountants Sai Life Scicnces Limited

Fo's Regisu ation Nuniber 1123 TW W-100024

Arpan Jain
Parner
Membershp No 125710

Plice' Hyderabad
Date M August 2018
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CIN No UZ41L0TGI*RPLENING )

K.Ranga Raju
Direetor
DIN No ¥H3 1%

Savaramakrishnan Chittor
Chief Financal Ofcer

Plice, Hyderabad
Date 4 August 2018

Krishnam Raju
Managing Directo
DIN No 00064614

Runa Karan
Compan Secieany
Membership No - A 13721
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31s: MARCH
(A amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Cash flow from ope rating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest income
Equity -settled share-based payments
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment, net
Finance costs
Bad debts written off
Unrealised foreign exchange gain, net
Mark-to-market loss on derivative financial instruments
Other operating expense
Provision towards doubtful trade receivables, net
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in Loans and deposits
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Increase in other current assets
Decrease in other financial assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase in other financial liabilities & provisions
(Decrease )/increase in other non-current and current liabilities
Cash gene rated from operating activities
Income-taxes paid, net
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets ( including
capital work in progress, capital advances and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and assets held for sak
Movement in other bank balances, net
Interest income received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

6,219.53 6,303.46
2,744.96 2,081.02
(68.92) (80.90)
122.95 113.74
(0.28) (100.34)
1,489.60 971.13
522.41 11.94
(385.53) (379.61)
420.62 74.87
29.12 21.19
(192.50) 180.56
10,901.96 9,197.06
(32.31) 67.51
(401.75) 599.57
(2,850.05) (941.44)
(3,038.50) (5,554.20)
(1,935.76) (1,028.79)
968.37 1,056.96
1,802.76 (1331.56)
896.76 460.34
(376.03) 1,238.71
5,935.45 3,764.16
(1,075.53) (1,952.40)
4,859.92 1,811.76
(5.953.52) (8,140.39)
6.79 1077.15
(312.07) 118.38
39.57 75.37
(6,219.23) (6,869.49)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31:: MARCH (contd....)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Cash flows from financing activities
Share application money received 35.29 -
Proceeds from current borrowings, net 477.36 5,262.69
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 166.97 -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 1,535.76 4,608.81
Repayment of non-current borrowings (1,711.82) (1,484.58)
Interest paid** {1,389.43) {1,198.66)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) {885.87) 7,188.26
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year
(A+B+ Q) (2,245.18) 2,130.53
Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash
equivalents held in foreign currency 6.34 (6.18)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year {2,644.66) (4,769.01)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 1) (4,883.50) (2,644.66)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.:: MARCH (contd....)
(A1l amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Naote 1:
Cash and cash equivalents includes
Cash on hand 3.15 3.79
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 724.24 878.82
-in cash credit accounts (5,665.82) (3,534.13)
-in deposit accounts (with maturity of 3 months or less)* 54.93 6.88
(4,883.50) (2,644.66)

*Represents deposits held as margin money with banks.
** Interest paid in cashflow from financing activitics includes borrowing cost capitalised as property. plant and equipment during the
year amounting to ¥ 66.10 (31 March 2017: ¥ 294.84)

Note 2:
Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in balance sheet for financial liabiltties arising from financing activities are
given below:

As at Non-cash As at
Particulars 31 March Cash flows | transactions Foreign 31 March 2018
2017 exchange loss
Non-curtent borrowings 8,953.M (176.06) 32.36 8.810.24
Current borrowings 11.850.14 2,609.03 107.26 14,606.43

Significant accounting policies 1-3
Notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements  6-44
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate information

Sai Life Sciences Limited (“the Company™) is a closely held public limited company domiciled and incorporated
in India in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is
situated in Hyderabad, Telangana, India and has facilities in the states of Telangana, Karnataka and Maharashtra.

The Company carries out contract research and manufacturing activities for customers engaged in pharmaceutical
and biotechnology industries.

Basis of preparation
A. Statement of compliance

The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (*Ind AS™) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act™) read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA).

The Company’s financial statements up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, were prepared in
accordance with accounting standards notified under the Section 133 of the Act, read together with paragraph 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India (Previous
GAAP). These Company’s first standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously
reported financial position and financial performance of the Company is provided in Note 44

These standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis
of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting date 31 March 2018. These standalone Ind
AS financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors on 14 August 2018.

These standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual
basis except for the following material items in the balance sheet:

e (Certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value;

s Net defined benefit assets / (liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined
benefit obligations; and

e Share based payments, which are measured at fair value of the options,

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in [ndian Rupee (‘INR’ or ‘2") which is also the functional
and presentation currency of the Company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded
to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the standalone Ind AS
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financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could
change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates
are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the standalone Ind AS financial statements in the period in which such changes are made
and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone Ind AS financial statements is
included in the following notes:

¢ Note 4(d) and 4(e) — Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

e Note 4(g) — Impairment of non-financial and financial assets;

Note 4(j) — Financial instruments;

Note 4(f) — Leases : Whether an arrangement contains a lease; lease classification

Note 4(p) — Employee benefits including share based payments;

Note 4(q) - Provisions, contingencies - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources; and

¢ Note 4(r) — Income taxes

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the standalone Ind AS financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

* Note 20-measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

s Note 40 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood
and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

e Note 11 - impairment of non-financial assets;

¢ Note 35 & 36 - impairment of financial assets;

Summary of significant accounting policies
The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement
basis summarized below,

a. Current and non-current classification
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Act. The Company presents assets and
liabilities in the standalone balance sheet based en current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is;
¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o (ash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period
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A liability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

Current assets / labilities include the current portion of non-current assets / liabilities respectively. All other
assets / liabilities including deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

b. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
period are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or any other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the standalone statement of profit
and loss in the year in which they arise, except in case of exchange differences relating to long-term foreign
currency monetary items, to the extent they are used for financing the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (“PPE”) and drawn on or before | Aprit 2016, are added to or subtracted from the cost of such PPE.
In accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards the entity continues the
above accounting treatment in respect of the long-term foreign currency monetary items recognised in the
financial statements as on 31 March 2016.

¢. Revenue recognition
Revenue includes excise duty collected and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is net of returns, taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government other than excise
duty collected. However, it includes excise duty up to 30 June 2017

Contract research and manufacturing activities

With respect to contracts invalving research services, in case of ‘time and materials’ contracts, contract research
fee is recognised to the extent of services rendered in accordance with the terms of the contracts. Revenues
relating to fixed price contracts are recognised based on the percentage completion method determined based
on efforts expended as a proportion to total estimated efforts unless there is uncertainty as to performance,
measurement or ultimate collectability in which case, revenue recognition is postponed until completion of the
contract terms. The Company monitors the estimates of total contract revenue and cost on a regular basis. The
cumulative impact of any change in estimates of the contract revenue or costs is reflected in the period in which
the changes become known. In the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is made for
the estimated loss.

In respect of contracts involving sale of goods arising out of contract research and manufacturing, revenue is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer.
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Contributions received from customers towards items of property, plant and equipment which require an
obligation to supply services in the future to the customer over a specified period, is recognised as revenue from
operations over the specified period. The Company capitalises the gross cost of these assets as the Company
controls these assets.

‘Bill and hold’ sales, in which delivery is delayed at the buyer’s request but the buyer takes title and accepts
billing.

Revenue is recognised when the buyer takes title, provided:

(a) it is probable that delivery will be made;

(b) the item is on hand, identified and ready for delivery to the buyer at the time the sale is recognised;

{c) the buyer specifically acknowledges the deferred delivery instructions; and

{d) the usual payment terms apply.

Revenue is not recognized when there is simply an intention to acquire or manufacture the goods in time for
delivery.

Unbilled revenue

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and revenue from
the end of the last billing to the Balance Sheet date is recognized as unbilled revenues.

Revenues from fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts, where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or
collectability of consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion method. Provisions for
estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become
probable based on the current contract estimates.

Costs and earnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenues while billings in excess of costs and
earnings are classified as unearned revenues.

Export incentives

Export incentives are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is
established in respect of the exports made and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate
collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable. For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally, when shareholders approve the dividend.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and measurement

[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met
and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the itern and restoring the site on which it is located.

Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items initially recognized in the period
ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting period as per the previous
GAAP are capitalised.
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If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items {major components) of PPE,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful lives as
estimated by the management which coincides with the useful lives mentioned in Schedule II to the Companies
Act, 2013. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Freehold land and land under perpetual lease are not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are based on a technical evaluation reflecting actual usage of assets.

Asset Category Estimated useful life (in years)
Buildings 30

Leasehold improvements 1-9

Plant and equipment 15-20

Furniture 10

Freehold Vehicles 8-10

Leasehold Vehicles 3-5

Freehold Computers 3

Leasehold Computers 3-5

Items of PPE acquired wholly or partly with specific grant / subsidy from government (or) customers, are
recorded at the acquisition cost to the Company and the amount received under the grant pending donor
approval or conditions to be fulfilled is disclosed as a liability.

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ up to the date on which asset is
ready for use / disposed-off.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Internally generated
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the
expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future
economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss
as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.
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Others

Other intangible assets are initiaily measured at cost. Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in
standalone statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The intangible assets are amortized over a period of 6 years, on a straight line basis.

Leases
A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee is classified as
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Company as a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
standalone balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the
borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are generally recognised as an expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases
are recognised in the year in which the benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
also recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or groups of assets.

An impairment loss is recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable
amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. If, at the reporting date there is
an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed
and reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been previously
recognised.
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Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL™) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses. For all other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL., unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case
those are measured at lifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the
assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount in the standalone
statement of profit and loss. The Company’s non-financial assets, inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the fower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the
first-in first-out formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, preduction or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. In the case
of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to
the selling prices of related finished products.

Chemicals, reagents and consumables held for use in the production of finished products / rendering of services
are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the
cost of the finished products / services will exceed their net realisable value.

Measurement of fair values

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use
of unobservable inputs.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible, If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Financial instruments

Recogrition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

e ameortised cost;

fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™) — debt investment;
FVOCI — equity investment; or

FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated

as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Other
Income in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the standalone statement of profit and loss.

FVOCI — debt investment

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as

at FVTPL:

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
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o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCIl). However, the
Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
standalone statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to standalone statement of profit and loss. Interest earned
whilst holding FVTQOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity investment

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity
investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

1f the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There
is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

FVIPL

All financial assets not classitied as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is desighated as such on initial
recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; or the company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the
asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.
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k.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and interest rate risk
exposures to hedge its risk associated with foreign currency fluctuations and changes in interest rates.
Derivatives are initially measured at fair value and subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate
laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Government Grants

The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that the conditions
attached to them will be complied with, and the grants will be received. Government grants received in relation
to assets are recognised as deferred income and amortized over the useful life of such asset. Grants related to
Income are recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss as other operating revenues.

Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries
Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost in the separate
financial statements in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, *Separate Financial Statements’.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets
are not depreciated or amortised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
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necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

p- Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan.
Both the eligible employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Government administered
provident fund scheme equal to a specified percentage of the eligible employee’s salary. Amounts collected
under the provident fund plan are deposited with in a government administered provident fund. The Company
has no further obligation to the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

Short-terim employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed during the
period as the related service is provided. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Long-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable after twelve months of recciving employee services are classified as long-term
employee benefits. These benefits primarily include one-off retention incentive and long-term bonus provision,
in accordance with the policy of the Parent company. The Parent company accrues these costs based on the
expected payout and the same is amortised over a period of services.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (“the Gratuity Plan™) covering the eligible employees
of the Company. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn
salary and the tenure of the employment with the Company. Liability with regard to the Gratuity Plan is
determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each balance sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. The defined benefit plan is administered by a trust formed for this purpose through
the Company gratuity scheme. The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability
in its standalone balance sheet. Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability are
recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods.
The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any
plan amendments are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss, The net interest on net defined
benefit Hability which reflects the change in net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time is
considered as finance cost and disclosed under “Finance costs™

Compensared absences

The Company’s policy permits employees to accumulate and carry forward a portion of unutilized compensated
absences and utilize them in future periods or receive cash in licu thereof in accordance with the terms of such
policy. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet.

58




mmake 1t neilcr togette

19" Annual Report 2017-18

r.

Share based compensation

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation model. The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted
to employees is recogmised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based
on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards
that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
¢ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or

o Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually
certain, related asset is recognized.

Income taxes

Tax expense recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss consists of current and deferred tax except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in
OCI or directly in equity respectively.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted for the reporting period and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in
the standalone Ind AS financial statements, Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is
a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
Company

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations
is not considered as tax expense for the Company and all such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes
in equity as part of the associated dividend payment.
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Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit
can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

s. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

5. Standards, not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company

Following new standards and amendments to Ind AS have not been applied by the Company as they are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018:

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Ind AS 21 - The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates.

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018, notifying Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (New Revenue Standard), which
replaces Ind AS {1 ‘Construction Contracts’ and Ind AS 18*Revenue’. The core principle of the New Revenue
Standard is that an entity should recognize revenue (o depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Some of the key changes introduced by the New Revenue Standard include additional guidance for
multiple-element arrangements, measurement approaches for variable consideration, specific guidance for licensing
of intellectual property. The new standard also provides guidance on evaluation of performance obligations being
distinct to enable separate recognition and could impact timing of recognition of certain elements of multiple
element arrangements.

Significant additional disclosures in relation to revenue are also prescribed. The New Revenue Standard also
provides two broad alternative transition options — Retrospective Method and Cumulative Effect Method — with
certain practical expedients available under the Retrospective Method. The Company is in the process of evaluating
the impact of the New Revenue Standard on the present and future arrangements and shall determine the appropriate
transition option once the said evaluation has been completed.

Ind AS 21 — The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explains that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred
income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each
payment or receipt. The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its standalone Ind AS financial
statements.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued}

(Al amounts 10 Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where atherwise stated)

6. Property, plant and eguipment

Sai¢

e D oaetter togethe,

Freehold land | Leasehold land| Buildings Leasehold Plant and Fumnitures Freehald Leasehold Free hold Leaschold Total
proveme nts equipment and fixtures* Vehicles Yehicles Computers | Computers

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying amount)
Balance as at 1 April 2016 HZ56 1822 35287 13,123 56 297 67 18 05 368 70 184 89 207.57 022771
Addiions (refer note i & in below) - - 29.61 6365 (G 184 07 4375 158 70 5249 33zoh §,749.98
Adpustments (refer nete 1 below) - - - - - - 5al (501) 521 {521} -
Disposals/relrement - - - - 59 54 - 561 - - - 65.15
Batance as at 31 March 2017 342.56 18.12 6,656.52 38148 19,619.08 481.74 61,80 562,79 242.59 534.76 28912.54
Addions {refer note o & m hebon ) - 15500 1717 26 6591 340G 2217 4192 32665 12050 - 6,055.45
Adjustments {refer note 1 bekow ) - - - - - - K3 97 (483 97y 41.75 {4175 -
Disposalsiretirement - - - - - - 495 3533 - - 40.18
Balance as at 31 March 2018 342.56 173.22 8,373.78 448.39 23,015.52 703.51 582.74 37014 404.84 493.01 34,927.71
Accumulnted depreciation
Balance as at 1 Apnl 2016 - - - - - B B - - -
Charge for the ycar 207 198 %) 1827 127202 R 1074 143 73 50,47 148 31 1,998.11
Adjustments {refer note 1 below) - - - - - - 5ol (560 521 (520 -
Dasposalsietegment - - - - - 114 - - - 1.14
Balance as at 31 March 2017 107 198,90 118.27 1,272.02 53.60 15.21 138.12 55.68 143.10 1,996.97
Charge for the year i 26% 44 117 39 1.721 47 7826 2853 219.89 #1327 267443
Admstments (refer note 1 below) - - - - - 256.10 (256 109 3178 -
Dhsposalsietrement - - - - - 072 3308 - 33.77
Balance as at 31 March 2018 5.86 467.34 235.60 2,993.49 131.86 199.12 68.86 178,70 4,637.63
Net carrying amount
As at 1 April 2016 34256 18.22 531282 35187 13,121.56 297.67 18.05 369.70 184.39 207.37 20,227.711
As at 31 March 2017 332,56 16,15 6,457,62 264.21 18,357.06 428.14 46.59 424.67 186.91 391.66 26,915.57
As at 31 March 2018 342,56 E67.36 7,406,44 212.73 20,042.03 571.65 183.62 301.28 226.14 236.27 30,290.08

Capital work-in-progress T1367 34 31 March 2017, 3016.41, 1 April 2016: TRO8 77)

*Includes office equpment
Notes

i} During the vear ended 31 March 201%- the Company had excrewed its option (o purchase assets acquired under the finance kase Accordmgh . computers and 1ehickes (leased assets) haying gross block of 3325.72 (31 March 2017 Z10) 82,
1 Apnl 2006 Nlj and accwnulated depreciation of 297 83 (3] March 2017 Z10.82. 1 Aprl 2016 Nil] wete rechsaified from leasad assels to owned asscts
i) Additwans Lo property. plant and cqupment during the year ended 3 Mareh 2018 meludes borrow mg cost capitakised amounting to 2 66 10 (31 March 2017 2294 84 | Apnl 2016 Nif)
ni) Foreign exchange loss of €504 (31 Mareh 2017 gam of T96 46, | Apnl 2016, loss of T225.353) for the year ended 31 March 2013 has been adusted to the cost of property. plant and cqupment Such net gain or lovs represents the
exchanpe difference on long-term monetary dems pertamng to the acquisiuon of propenty. plant and equpment acquired on or before | Aprd 2016
) Refer note 18 for detads of propenty. plant and equipment subject 1o charge on secured borrow ings
+) Gross carmy g amount . accumulated depreciation & net carrying amount of property. plant and cqupment as per preyious GAAP as on 31 March 2018 would have been as follows
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued)

fAlf amounts in Indian Rupees fakhs, except share data and where othernvise siated)

Sai

Mo T oete

'y

Freehold land | Leasehold land | Buildings Leasekald Plant and Furnitures Freehold Leasehold Freehold Leasehold Tatal
improvements equipmeni and fixtures Vehicles Vehicles Computers | Computers
Ciross carrying amount 342 36 19391 9,380 38 1401 8% 3005181 1035.03 790,41 402 88 1.357.57 35396 45,691.06
Less- aceumulited deprecation - 26 55 147394 1,189.12 10,009 88 46398 306,79 101 60 1311 43 31769 15,400.98
Net carying amount 342.56 167.36 7,906.44 212.73 20,042.03 571.65 283.62 301.28 226.14 236.17 30,290.08

vi) As of 31 March 2016, the Company was m the procass of surrenderng SEZ keasehold land situated at Vishakhapatnam back to the kessor Pundmg release of charge by bank and deed execution, the

held for sake Such surrender was conchided dunng the vear ended 31 March 2017,

7. Otheri ible asseis
Computer Sofiware Tatal

Cost or deemed cost {grnss carying amount)

Balance as at 1 April 2016 33.39 33.39
Adduwns 343 37 343 37
Balance as at 31 March 2017 376.76 376.7%
Addiions 160 54 1601 50
Disposals/retrement - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 537.26 537.26
Accumulated amaortization

Balance as at 1 April 2016 - -
{'harge Tor Lhe ye R2 9} R2.91
Dispasals/retr ement - -
Balance as at 31 March 2017 32.91 82.91
Charge for the year 753 7053
hsposalsiretrement - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 153.44 153.44
Net carrying amount

As at 1 April 2016 a3.39 33.39
As at 31 March 2017 293.85 293.85
As at 31 March 2018 383.82 383.82
Notes

N Gross carmying amount |, accumlated deprecintion & net canying amaount of other mtangible assets as per
previous GAAP as on 31 March 2018 would have been_as follows

Campuler Software Total

Crruss cartying antount 967 47 967 47
Less accumulated depteciation 583 45 583 65

Net carying amount 383.82 383.82
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued)
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

0.

Salé

kg o netion ogeiher

Investments

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

Non-curre nt

Investment in equity instrume nts
Unquoted

Investments in subsidiary (at cost)

Sai Life Sciences Inc, USA 225 225 228

5,000 (31 March 2017: 5,000) (1 April 2016: 5,000) capial stock of USD 1 each fully

paid-up

Total investments in subsidiary 225 2.25 225

Orthers( al fair value through

Qcl)

Jeedimetla Effluent Treatment Lmited 0.50 0.50 0.50

500 (31 March 2017: 500, 1 April 2016: 500) cquity shares of T100 cach fully paid-up

Patancheru Envirotech Limned 1.09 1.09 .09

10,878 (31 March 2017: 10,878, | April 2016: 10,878) cquity shares of % 10 each fully

paid-up

Total non-current investments 3.84 3.84 3.84

Aggregate value of unguoted investments 3.84 3.84 384

Agaregate amount of impairment in the value of investinents - - -

. Other financial assets

Non-current 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Bank deposits (duc to mature after 12 months from the reporting date)* 100.00 100.42 326.53

Unbilled revenue - 153.18 150 96

Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits 14.62 6.40 3342
114.62 260.00 §50.91

*Represents deposits held as margin money with banks.

Current

Unbilled revenue 590.13 1.405.32 2424.50

Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits 21.42 2630 19.43
611.55 1,431.62 2,443.93

Income tax assets (net)
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation)

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

1 April 2016

387.55

387.55

89.58

387.55

I87.55

89.58

Refer Note 33 for detaifls of income tax expense
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

11.

12.

13.

Other assets
{Unsecurced, considered good unless stated otherwise)

etk i teeter

toneher

Non-current

- Considered good 31 March 2018 | 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Capital advances 542.50 462.46 558.74
Prepaid expenses 130.86 11538 39.07
Balances with statutory 23250 100,70 1,255.20
authorities
Export incentive receivahle 570.38 375.50 -
Tax demand paid under protest 398.67 368.20 286.27

- Considered doubtful
Custom duty receivable - - 37.28

1,874.91 1,422.24 2,176.56

Less: Allowance for doubtful assets - - {37.28)

1,874.91 1,422.24 2,139.28

Current

Advance to material / service providers 798.30 088.25 84529

Prepaid expenses 507.13 457.62 318.68

Balances with statutory authorities 3,820.50 2351.51 1,629.57

Export incentives receivable 946.48 335.20 134.15

Others 65.91 68.66 76.40

6,138.32 4,201.64 3,004.09

Inventories

(at lower of cosl and net realisable value) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Raw materials (at cost) 3,678.89 2,864.89 1,843.31

Work-m-progress {at lower of cost and net realisable value) 3.093.46 1,169.71 1,423.98

Stores and spares (at cost) 513.05 400.75 226.62

7,285.40 4,435.35 3,493.91

Trade receivables

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

(Unsecured)

- Considered good 26,163.30 22.965.10 17.724.74

- Considered doubtful 133.19 325.69 145.13

26,296.49 23,290.79 17,869.87

Less: Loss allowance for doubtful debts 133.19 325.69 145.13

26,163.30 22,965.10 17,724.74

Refer Note 36 for the Company’s credit risk management process.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Al amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data und where otherwise stated)

14.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

15.

Saié

maoks §Leter Koeho

Cash and cash equivale nts and other bank balances
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 315 3.79 5.10
Balances with banks
- current accounts 724.24 878.82 1,422.28
-in deposit accounts (with maturity of 3 months or less)* 5493 | 6.88 49 51
782.32 889.49 1,476.89
Bank balances other than above
in deposit accounts (due to mature within 12 months but more than 3 menths }* 763.39 450.90 343.17
763.39 450.90 343.17
1,545.71 1,340.39 1,820.06

*Represents deposits hekd as margin money with banks.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following:

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 782.32 889.49 1476.89
Less: Cash credit (refer note 18) (5,665.82) (3,534.15) (6,245.90)
(4,883.50) {2,644.66) (4,.769.01)
Details of Specificd Bank Notes (SBNs) held and transacted during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 are as
helow:
Particulars SBN* Other denomination notes Taotal
Closing cash i hand as on 08 1.86 3.95 5.81
November 2016
Add:Withdrawal from bank - 14.90 14.90
Add: Permitted receipts - 2.59 2.59
Add: Other receipts ** (.31 - 0.31
Less: Permitted payments - 15.82 15.82
Less: Amount deposited in banks 2.17 217
Closing cash m hand as on 30 - 5.62 5.62
Dceember 2016

*l'or the purposes of this clause, the term “Specified Bank Notes” shall have the same mieaning provided m the notification of the Government of
India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 5.0. 3407(F}, dated the 8 November 2016.
** Pertamns to voluntary donations by employvees in Specificd Bank Notes cellected in a hundi and subsequently deposited into the bank account of the

Company.

Loans and deposits

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
(Unsecured, considered good)
Non-current
Security deposils 533.75 432.93 535.46
533.75 43293 535.46
Current
Security deposits 14.95 19.14 18.63
lL.oans to employees 39.44 7175 17.56
54.39 96.89 36.19
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(Al amowmts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

16. Equity share capital
i. Authorised share capital

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of 210 each 2,14,00000 2,140.00 2,14.00,000 2,140.00 2,14,00,000 2,140.00
ii. Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of 10 each 141,75310 1417.53 1,39.79,710 1,397.97 1,39,79,710 1,397.97
1,41,75,310 1,417.53 | 1,39,79,710 1,397.97 1,39,79,710 1,397.97

ik

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the vean| 1.39.79.710 1,397.97 1,39,79.710 1,397.97 1,39,79,710 139797
Add: Issued during the year under 195,600 19.56 - - - -
Employees stock option plan
{ESOP)
Balance at the end of the year 1.41,75,310 1,417.53 | 1,39,79,710 1,397.97 1,39,79,710 1,397.97

iv. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordmgly, all equity shares rank cqually with regard to dividends and share m the Company’s
residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an cquity sharcholder on a poll
{not on show of hands) are in proportion to s share of the paid-up equity capttal of the Company. Votmng rights cannot be exercised in respect of
shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of
the shares. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remainmg after
distribation of all preterential amounts i proportion to the number of equity shares held.

v. Details of shareholders holding more than §% equity shares in the Company

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Name of the equity shareholders Number | % holding Number % holding Number % holding
Alpha FDI Holdmgs PTE Limnited 27,16,201 19.16% 27.16,201 19.43% 27,16,201 19.43%
Tata Capital Healthcare Fund | 2082917 14.69% 20,82917 14.90% 2082917 14.90%
K.Ranga Raju £1,36,636 8.02% 11.36,636 8.13% 11,21,636 8.02%
K. Mytreyi 10,87,633 7.67% 10,87,633 7.78% 10,87,633 7.78%
Sai Quest Syn Private Limited 10,68,748 7.54% 10,68,748 7.64% 10,68,748 7.64%
G. Subba Raju 9,38,730 6.62% 938,730 6.71% 938,730 6.71%
K.Krishnam Raju 9,19,000 6.48% $,19,000 6.57% 9,19,000 6.57%
HBM Private Equity India 9,04.462 6.38% 904,462 6.47% 9,04.462 6.47%
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(Al amounts in fndian Rupees lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated)

vi, Shares reserved forissue under options

(a) Employee stock option plan - 2004 ("ESOP 2004")
The Company established a plan ESOP 2004 under which 300,000 equity sharees of 210 each were earmarked and approved by the Shareholders at
the Extraordmnary General Meeting held on 13 September 2004. These options shall vest at the end of three years from the grant date. The vested
options can be exercised by the employee during his term of employment with the Company.

Employee stock option plan - 2006 ("ESOP 2006™)

The Company established a plan ESOP 2006 under which 350,000 equity sharcs of T10 ¢ach were earmarked and approved by the Sharcholders at
the Annual General Meeting held an 16 August 2006. 60% of the options granted shall vest at the end of three years from the grant date and 40% of
the options granted shall vest at the end of five years from the grant date. The vested options can be exercised by the employee during his term ot
employment with the Company.

Sai Employee stock option scheme - 2008 ("SESOS")

The Company established a plan SESOS approved by the Shareholders at the Annual and Extraordinary General Meetings held on 11 September 2008
and 30 March 2009 respectively. As per the scheme, maximum number of employee stock options are restricted to 10% of paid up share capital of
the Company. Out of which, 50% of the options granted shall vest at the end of two vears from the grant date and the balance 50% of the options
shall vest at the end of four years from the grant date. The vested options can be exercised by the employee durig his term of employment with the
Company.

The terms of the above schemes provide that each option entitles the holder to one equity share of Z10 each and that the options can be settled only
by way of issue of equity shares. The options grantcd are entirely time-based with ne performance conditions.

{b) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had incurred stock compensation cost of 122,95 (31 March 2017: T113.74) towards the above
schemes

(c) Stock options activity is as follows:
No of options
Under ESOP 2004 plan 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,000 5,000 8,000
Granted during the year - - -
Forfeited during the year - - (3,000)
Exercised during the year - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 5,000 5,000 5,000
Weighted average exercise price (3) 30 30 30
Exercisable at the end of the year 5,000 5,000 5,000
No of options
Under ESOP 2006 plan 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000 16,000
Granted during the year - - -
Forfeited during the year - - -
Exercised during the year - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 10,000 10,000 10,000
Weighted average exercise price (3) 45 45 45
Exercisable at the end of the year 10000 10,000 10,000
No of options
Under SESOS plan -2008 31 March 2018 31 March 217 1 April 2016
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 7.18.000 5,68.000 5,98,000
Granted during the year - 1,70.000 -
Forfeited during the year (20,0003 (20,0000 (30,000)
Exercised during the year {1,95,600) - -
QOutstanding at the end of the year 5,02,400 7,18,000 5,08,000
Weighicd average exercise price (Z) §3,104,116,120 83.104,116,120 83.104,116,120
& 284 & 284 & 284
Exercisable at the end of the year 3,47.400 4,060,750 4,726,500
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS (Continued)
(Al amownts in Indian Rupees lakhs, except shave data and where otherwise stated)
(d) The fair value of options is estinated at the grant date vsing the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Date of grant 27-May-12]  06-Sep-12 02-Jul-13 30-Sep-13 21-Sep-16
Risk-tree interest rate 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Expected life (in years) 4 4 4 4 4
Expected volatility 15.01% 15.01% 12.81% 12.81% 12.67%
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
For the year ended 31 March 2018
Date of grant 02-Jul-13 30-8ep-13 21-Sep-16
Risk-free interest rale 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Expected hfe {in years) 4 4 4
Expected volatility 12.81% 12.81% 12.67%
Expected dividend vield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

vii. During the period of five years inmediately preeceding the balance sheet date. no shares have been bought back, issued for consideration other than
cash and no bonus shares have been issued.

viii. In November 2014, pursuant to the terms of the Sharcholders’ agreement, the Company had granted the promoter or its nominge, the right to
subscribe to 900,651 cquity sharcs, called as Promoter Incentive Sharcs, at a price equal to 283 48 per share. These rights are exercisable on
occurence of specific events. The fair value of the warrants aggregating is valued at Z319.9 and has been accounted in accordance with Ind-AS 102
Share-based Payment based on management ¢stimates of its efforts and time. The fair value of the warrants was calculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The inputs for this model include stock price, exercise price, expected term. volatdity, risk free rates etc.

The following are the assumption used in determining the famr value of options at the grant date.

Date of grant 08-Nov-14
Risk-free mterest rate 7.00%
Expected life (in years) 35
Expectled volatility 9.11%
Expected dividend yield 0.00%
17, Other e quity
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Reserve and surplus
Securities premium reserve 10,819.86 [0,672.45 10,672.45
Capital reserve 112.23 112.23 112.23
Employee Stock options 382.96 260.01 146.27
cutstanding account
Retained ¢arnings 23,742 45 14,573.95 14,868.73
Share application moncy penditg allotment 35.29 - -
Total Reserve and surplus 35,092.79 30,618.64 15,799.68
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined beneftt plan { net of tax) {117.64) (115.09) {(72.77
(117.64) (115.09) (72.77)
34,975.15 30,503.55 25,726.91

Nature and purpose of reserves

{a) Securities premium reserve

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. In case of equity-settled share based
payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounied as securities premium reserve, During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issucd 705,510 equity shares and has incurred expenses of T 402.02 towards the issue, primarily related
to due-diligence, legal formalities and statutory filing fees. These expenses have been adjusted with the balance m sccurities premifum account in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013,
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CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION
OF AN OVERSEA COMPANY

(Registration of a UK establishment)

Company No. FC036192

UK Establishment No. BR021280

The Registrar of Companies hereby certifies that

SAI LIFE SCIENCES LIMITED

has this day been registered under the Companies Act 2006 as having
established a UK Establishment in the United Kingdom.

Given at Companies House on 1st May 2019,

&

Companies House REGiTAR O COMPANES




